
J. ;823
io Sacfus - .j

SELAH CITY COUNCIL

6:30pm July 28, 2015



Selah City Council
Regular Meeting
Tuesday, July 28, 2015
6:30pm
City Council Chambers

Mayor:
Mayor ProTern:
Council Members:

CITY OF SELAH

115 West Naches Avenue

Selah, Washington 98942

City Administrator:
City Attorney:
Clerkn"reasurer:

A.

B.

C.

D.

E.

F.

G.

AGENDA

Call to Order -Mayor Gawlik

Roll Call

Pledge of Allegiance

Agenda Changes None

Public Appearances/Introductions/Presentations

Getting To Know Our Businesses None

Communications

1. Oral

None

Jotin Gawlik

Paul Overby
John Tiemey
Dave Smeback

Allen Schmid

Roy Sample
Jane Williams

Laura Ritchie

Don Wayman
Bob Noe

Dale NovoblelskI

This is a public meeting. If you wish to address the Council concerning any matter that is not on the agenda, you may do so
now. Please come fonA'ard to the podium, stating your name for the record. The Mayor reserves the right to place a time limit
on each person asking to be heard.

2. Written

Andrew Potter a. Selah Downtown Association Quarterly Report
H. Proclamations/Announcements None

I. Consent Agenda
All items listed with an asterisk (*) are considered routine by the City Council and will be enacted by one motion, without
discussion. Should any Council Member request ^at any item of the Consent Agenda be considered separately, that item will
be removed from the Consent Agenda and become a part of the regular Agenda.

Monica Lake * 1.

DaleN. * 2.

Approval of Minutes; July 14,2015 Council Meeting
Approval of Claims & Payroll

J. Public Hearir^
K. New Business

L. Old Business

None

None

None

M. Resolutions

TomDurant 1. Resolution Approving the Preliminary Plat of "Somerset 11" (912.42.15-02) and
Adopting Findings and Conditions of Preliminary Plat Approval



Charlie Brown 2. Resolution Supporting the Selah Park and Recreation Service Area's (SPRSA'S)
Bond Measure Proposition Authorizing the SPRSA to Issue General Obligation
Bonds to Finance the Costs of Acquiring, Constructing, and Equipping Swimming
Pool Facilities

N. Ordinances

IMeN. r. Ordinance Amending the 20r5 Budget for Professional Services to Update the Police
Department's Operating Policy & Procedure Manual

O. Reports/Announcements

1. Mayor
2. Council Members

3. Departmental
4. Boards

Caprise Groo a. PlanningCommission Minutes-March 17,2015

P. Executive Session

1. 30 Minute Session - Real Estate ROW 42.30.110(1 )(b)

Q. Adjournment

Next Study Session
Next Regular Meeting

Au9ust11,2015
August11.2015

Kach item an (he Council Agenda is covered by an
Agenda Item Sheet (AIS)

A vcliow AIS indicates an action item.



CITY OF SELAH

CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEMSUMMARY

Council Meeting Informational Item

7/29/2015 G-2a

Title: Selah Downtown Association Quarterly Report

Thru: Donald Wayman, City Administrator

From: Andrew Potter, Assistant to the City Administrator

Action Requested: Informational - No action

Board/Commission Recommendation: Not applicable

Fiscal Impact: N/A

Funding Source: N/A

Staff Recommendation:

Informational Only

Background / Findings & Facts:

Attached is the Treasurer's Report given at the most recent SDA meeting held

on 7/13/2015.

Recommended Motion:

N/A



Selah Downtown Association

Treasurer Report
7/13/15

INCOME

Beg. Balance $22,780.33
Event Sponsorships $450.00
B&O Tax incentive donation $50d.00
Total Income $23730,33

EXPENSES

GL Insui'ance Cov. $8.00

Art Show Expenses $291.00
Brand Unveiling Expenses $94.74
Triathlon Expenses $70.00
Shawnee Olsen (binders for board members) $26.75

Total Expenses $490.49

CURRENT BALANCE ON HAND $23.239,84

Tammy E. AWan, Treasurer SDA

Date



CITY OF SELAH

CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEMSUMMARY

Council Meeting Action Item

7/28/2015 I-l

Title: Approval of Minutes: July 14, 2015 Council Meeting

Thru: Donald Wayman, City Administrator

From: Monica Lake, Executive Assistant

Action Requested: Approval

Board/Commission Recoinmendation: Not applicable

Fiscal Impact: N/A

Funding Source: N/A

Staff Recommendation:

Approval of Minutes

Background / Findings & Facts:

See Minutes for details

Recommended Motion:

Motion to approve the Consent Agenda as read. (This item is part of the

Consent Agenda)

























CITY OF SELAH

CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Council Meeting Action Item

7/28/2015 1-2

Title: Claims & Payroll

Thru: Donald Wayman, City Administrator

From: Monica Lake, Executive Assistant

Action Requested; Informational - No action

Board/Commission Recommendation: Not applicable

Fiscal Impact: See Check Registers

Funding Source: Various. See Check Registers.

Staff Recommendation:

Approval of Claims & Payroll as listed on Check Registers.

Background / Findings & Facts:

See Check Registers.

Recommended Motion:

Motion to Approve the Consent Agenda as read. (This item is part of the
Consent Agenda)



CITY OF SELAH

CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Council Meeting Action Item

7/28/2015 M-1

Title: Resolution Approving the Preliminary Plat of "Somerset If" (912.42.15-
02) and Adopting Findings and Conditions of Preliminary Plat Approval

Thru: Donald Wayman, City Administrator

From: Thomas R Durant, Community Planner

Action Requested: Approval

Board/Commission Recommendation: Approval

Fiscal Impact: N/A

Fuudiug Source! N/A

Staff Recommendation:

Approval of recommendation to approve preliminary plat with conditions.
Denial of recommendation to require private access street to comply with City
Design and Construction Standards.

Background / Findings & Facts:

Hearing Examiner conducted an open record public hearing June 10, 2015 and
prepared findings of fact and conclusions with two recommendations on June
26, 20151 The first recommendalioii for Approval of the Preliminary Plat with
25 conditions. The second recommendation that the private access street

comply with roadway section design standards as determined by the Public

Works Director in accordance with the City of Selah Design and Construction

Standards dated March 2012.



CITY OF SELAH

CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEMSUMMARY

Recommended Motion:

I move the Council approve Preliminary Plat No. 912.42.15-02 designated as
Somerset II, adopt the Hearing EKaminer's first recommendation with 25

specific conditions of plat approval, but not adopt the Hearing Examiner's
second recommendation.



CITY OF SELAH

CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Record of all prior actions taken by the City Council and/or a City Board, City

Committee, Planning Commission, or the Hearing Examiner (where applicable)

Date;

6/10/2015

7/14/2015

Action Tsdten:

Hearing Examiner Open Record Public Hearing

Council voted to set the matter aside until the minutes

from the PLannign Commission became available, and a
complete packet was provided for them to study.

Click here to enter a date. Click here to enter text.

Click here to enter a date. Click here to enter text.

Click here to enter a date. Click here to ertter text.

Click here to enter a date. Click here to enter text.



RESOLUTION NO.

RESOLUTION APPROVING THE PRELIMINARY PLAT OF "SOMERSET IF

(912.42.15-02) AND ADOPTING FINDINGS AND CONDITIONS OF PRELIMINARY PLAT
APPROVAL

WHEREAS, on July 14,2015 the City ofSelah City Council considered Preliminaiy Plat No.
912.42,15-02 known as "SOMERSET 11" located on Herlou Drive and Lyle Loop Road. Yakima
County Taxation Parcel Numbers: (181426-44005 & 44021); and,

WHEREAS, the Preliminary Plat application included the request to designate two ofthe proposed lots as
two family residential lots in accordance with SMC 10.12.040; and,

WHEREAS, the Preliminary Plat application included an application for variance (Exception under SMC
10.50.070) to allow access to four lots (six dwelling units) by private road; and,

WHEREAS, The Hearing Examiner recommended approval of the application for Preliminary Plat and
two two-family lots, consisting oftwo separate recommendations: The first recommendation to approve
the preliminaryplat subject to 25 conditions and the second recommendation being that the private access
street comply with roadway section design standards asdetermined by thePublic Works Director in
accordance with the CityofSelahDesignand Construction Standards datedMarch2012.The second
recommendation would supplement Conditions 10 and i 1 of the first recommendation; and,

WHEREAS, the City ofSelah Council has considered the Hearing Examiner's findings of fact and
conclusions and the City staff report dated June 3,2015 and the Council is satisfied that the matter has
been sufficiently considered; and,

WHEREAS, the City Council adopts the Findings andConclusions of the Hearing Examiner's
Recommendation dated Jime 26,2015.

WHEREAS, the CityCouncil considered the elementsofpublic use and interestto be servedby such
platting, and

WHEl^AS, the City Council considered the elements ofpublic health, safety, and generalwelfare
pertainingto the preliminaryplat;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SELAH,
WASHINGTON that Preliminary Plat No. 912.42.15-021 designated as "Somerset H" be approved, that
the Hearing Examiner's Findings and Conclusions and the Hearing Examiner's Recommendation be
adopted with the twenty five (25) specific conditions contained in said Findings and Conclusionsand a
copy ofwhich is attached hereto,but that the Hearing Examiner's Second Recommendationnqt be
adopted.

912.42.15.02 PLAT OF "SOMERSET 11"

RESOLUTION OF PRELIMINARY PLAT APPROVAL



PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SELAH, WASHINGTON
this 28*^ day ofJuly, 2015.

John Gawlik, Mayor
ATTEST:

Dale E. Novobielski, Clerk/Treasurer

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Robert Noe, City Attorney

CONDITIONS OF PRELIMINARY PLAT APPROVAL

1. All design and/or Improvement notations indicated on the preliminary plat are included as conditions

of preliminary plat approval. This condition is not intended to limit the Public Works Department in

the exercise of its authorities under other provisions of the Selah Municipal Code.

2. All the design and improvement notations indicated on Exhibit7 in the record ("Variance Proposal,

Somerset II, March 17, 2015), except as modified by the other conditions imposed by the CityCouncil
in this preliminary plat review proceeding, are included as conditions of preliminary plat approval.

3. Lots 19 and 20 are authorized to be designated as two-family residential lots on the final plat and may
be developed Into two-family residential structures up to 28 feet In height following final plat
approval, subject to the following additional special requirements:

a. The two-family residential designation of these lots applies only to these lots and may not be
transferred to other lots In the subdivision.

b. Off-street parking shall be provided on the lots to provide 4 spaces per each duplex. No credit
against this requirement shall be allowed for garages and tandem parking.

c. Building materials shall be consistent in appearance with that of surrounding single-family
homes. To further ensure harmonious development of the designated lots with the

development of single family lots in the subdivision, restrictive covenants that describe the
required building specifications for the two-family dwellings shall be recorded prior to

recording the final plat for the phase in which they are in.

d. Building specificationsfrom the restrictive covenants for the proposed two-familydwellings
shall be submitted to the Planning Department to review for consistency with these

conditions prior to recording the final plat for the phase In which they are in.
912.42.1S-02 PLAT OF "SOMERSET 11"

RESOLUTION OF PRELIMINARY PLAT APPROVAL



e. This decision does not preclude the development of detached single-family residences on any
of these lots.

4. Final lot dimensions and lot area must substantially conform to the preliminary plat.

5. A preliminary engineering report and/or plan, prepared by a Licensed Professional Engineer,

demonstrating the feasibility of constructing all public ln>proven»ents required by Selah Municipal

Code, Chapter 10.50, must be submitted to and approved by the Public Works Department for each

separately designated phase of development prior to commencement of construction.

6. Construction plans and specifications must be reviewed and approved by the Public Works

Department prior to commencement of construction of each separately designated phase of
development. Specifications for Improvements shown on the preliminary pjat are minimum

specifications whichmay be superseded by the conditionscontained herein or by specific conditions
as approved by the Public Works Department. Upon completion of construction and prior to final plat

approval (of each development phase for which final plat approval is sought), reproducible final 'as-

builf construction plans and a written certification by a Licensed Professional Engineer that said

improvements were completed in accordance with the City of Selah Design and Construction

Standards dated March, 2012, must be submitted to the Public Works Department for approval. All

required compaction and inspection reports shall also be submitted to the Public Works Department.

7. Reports, plans and specifications previously submitted shall count toward meeting the requirements

of Conditions #5 and #6 if accepted by the Public Works Director to the extent of the Improvements
for which they are determined to be sufficient.

8. All lots must be served with a full range of public services/private utilities. All publicservices/private
utilities must be underground and installed prior to the surfacing of streets. Lots 17 through 20 shall
be served by an 8 inch sewer line extended in a utility easement across Lots 11 and 12 and then
continued to the other lots In the access and utility easement as shown on the Preliminary Plat. There

shall be a moratorium on street cuts for a period of five (5) years from the date of each phase
recording.

9. LvleLoop Road; Street improvements must be constructed to Oty standards as approved by the Public

Works Director including 50 foot wide right-of-way, 32 foot wide asphalt pavement, concrete rolled
(or better) curb and gutter, five (5) foot wide sidewalk on one street side and street illumination. The
sidewalk shall be Installed on the same side of the street as It Ison the existing completed portion of

Lyie Loop Road. Utility improvements shall be extended beyond street pavement edge to facilitate
future extension where appropriate. Street grade shall not exceed 10%.

10. The private street roadway shall be constructed as a hard-surfacedstreet to specifications approved
by the Public Works Director prior to recording the final plat. The street shall have a minimum surface
width of 20 feet, subject to Increased requirements imposed by the City Council in this proceeding.

912.42.15-02 PLAT OF "SOMERSET 11"

Ri:sOLbTib.N OF PRELi^nNARVPlAt APPROVAL



11. The private street shaff be designated "no-parking" as shown by the site pfan submittedwith the
preliminary plat application and shall be posted with signs prior to final plat approval.

12. Covenants or a road maintenance agreement among the owners of Lots 17,18,19 and 20, providing
for the perpetual maintenance of the private roadway and that establish a road maintenance fund
shall be recorded with the Yakima County Auditor and a recorded copy submitted to the Selah
PfanningDepartment prior to recordingthe firtaf pfat. Ifdriveway access to LotsIS and 14 is made
availablefrom the private street, such covenants or agreement shall includeowners of Lots 13 and 14.

13. Drivewayaccess to Lots 13 and 14 shall be limited to Lyie Loop Road and the part of the private access
easement passing in a north-south direction between them.

14. Street illumination shall be installed by the developer at locations and to the specifications of the
Public Works Director (typically at 300 foot intervals or as otherwise determined bythe Director of
Public Works in order to maximize illumination). Street lights shall be installed on metal poles.

15. Fire hydrants shall be provided and installed by the developer at locations approved bythe City of
Selah Fire Chief and to the specifications of Selah Municipal Code, Chapter 11.30.

16. Storm Water drainage fecrfities to accommodate runoff-generated in the plat mustcomply with a

drainage facilities plan prepared by a Licensed Professional Engineer and approved by the Public

Works Director. Plans submitted previously will count toward meeting this requirement if approved by

the Public Works Director. Additional documentation may be required for portions of the site not

covered by any such previously submitted plans.

17. Areas reserved for sight distance vision triangles shall be shown and noted on the final plat. (Selah

Code, Chapter 10.50).

18. Dust control measures shall be implemented as required by the Yakima Regional Clean AirAuthority

rules and regulations. The Developer shall advise the Public Works Department of the name and

phone number of the contact person to report alleged dust control violations.

19. Allrequired street signs, posts and appurtenances must be supplied by the developer and will be

installed by the City.

20. An NPDES Construction Stormwater General Permit shall be obtained unless determined by the

Department of Ecology that it is not required.

21. The following notes shall be placed on the final plat map(s):

"The owner{s) shown hereon, their grantees and assignees in interest hereby covenant and
agree to retain all surface water generated within the plat on-site."

912.42.15-02 PLAT OF "SOMERSET 11"

RESOLITIOS OF PRELLMEVARV PLAT APPROVAL



21. The applicant shall recommend a street nameto assign to the private access street and shall submit
the name to the Pianning Department for approval prior to recording the final piat. The approved
street name shall be shown on the face of the final plat.

23. Asurety bond, or such other secure financial method, in the amount of 15%of the cost of the public
improvements (as each final phase is submitted) (i.e., roads, sidewalks,street lights,drainage facilities,
sewage collection and water dUstribution facilities, etc) shall be remitted to the Cityand held for a
period of two years to guarantee against defects of workmanship and materials.

24. Priorto final plat recording, ail required plat improvements (utilities, streets, drainage facilities, etc.)
must be installed and accepted by the Cityor a surety bond pledged to the Cityto ensure installation
of the plat improvements within two years of final plat recording.

25. Improvements required for the subdivision must be completedand the finaf plat must be submitted
within the maximum 5-year time period required by RCW 58.17.140. Aone-time, one-year extension

may be authorized in accordance with SMC 10.50.G33(c) but the request must be made before the 5-
year time period ends.

9K.42.r5J»2 yLAI OTP "SOMERSET 11"

RESOLUTION OF PRELIMINARY PLAT APPROVAL



CITY OF SELAH HEARING EXAMINER

STAFF REPORT

June 3,2015

FILE NO.: PRELIMINARY PLAT 912.42.15-02 "Somerset II"

SUBDIVISION VARIANCE 915.42.15-01

SEPA ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 971.42.15-04

PROPOSAL: Preliminary Plat of "Somerset II" subdividing the 4.7 acre subject property into 20 lots

served by a full range of public utilities consisting of 18 single family residential lots and 2 lots

designated for two-family dwellings. Four of the lots, including the designated two-family residential lots

are to obtain access from a private road requiring a subdivision variance.

Proposed lots sizes range from 8,000 to 12,298 square feet. Average proposed lot size is 8,578

square feet. The two lots proposed for two-family dwellings are 9,614 and 9,653 square feet. Proposed

density is 4.7 dwellings per gross acre.

A portion of the subject property was approved for a 17 lot preliminary plat by Yakima County,

but not recorded. Previous to the plat approval, part of the property was a tract InSomerset I,a

subdivision that other than this tract has been built out. Part of the property was acquired through a

street vacation for Herlou Drive.

PROPONENT & PROPERTY OWNER; Zuker-Sample, LLC

LOCATION: Site fronts on Herlou Drive to the west and Lyie Loop Road to the east. It is about 100 feet

north of the intersection of LyIe Loop and Herlou Drive and about 200 feet south of the intersection of

Herlou Drive and Weems Way (Tax Parcel Numbers: 181426-44005 and 44021).

The site is bordered on the south by Somerset I, a 24 lot subdivision recorded in 2002 and built

out with detached single family homes on lots that are mostly 8,000 to 10,000 square feet in size but

also includes a few somewhat larger lots up to 28,624 square feet (0.66 acre).

APPLICATION AUTHORITY ANDJURISDICTION: Selah Municipal Code, Chapter 10.50 (subdivision) and

Chapter 10.12 (R-1 Zoning District).

SMC 10.12.040 allows ten percent of the lots in a proposed land division often or more lots to

be designated for future two-family dwellings (or duplexes). The hearing examiner must consider the lot

locations and carefully consider adjacent properties to ensure harmonious compatibility. Other required

standards for two-family lots include a minimum lot size of 9,000 square feet or the minimum lot size .

based on slope as specified in SMC 10.12.030. Also, SMC10.50.041(e)(6)(C) from the subdivision code

requires the minimum lot size to be increased by an additional ten percent on corner lots.

Once the lots are designated, the future duplexes may be authorized as Class1 Uses, subject to

the same requirement for harmonious compatibility.



The subdivision variance or exception is being considered under SMC 10.50.070 which

authorizes the hearing examiner to recommend to the City Council an exception from the requirements

of Chapter 10.50 when in the examiner's opinion, undue hardship may be created as a result of strict

compliance with its provisions or any standards adopted by reference. The foilowing findings are

necessary to recommend an exception:

1. There are special physical circumstances or conditions affecting the property such that the

strict application of the provisions of the (subdivision) chapter wouid deprive the applicant

of the reasonabie use or development of the land.

2. That the exception is necessary to insure such property the rights and privileges enjoyed by

other properties in the vicinity.

3. That the public interest is preserved.

The Design standards and specifications for subdivisions include a standard that no private

streets are allowed in anv subdivision, and every lot and block shall be served from apublicly dedicated ^
^reet. The standard mal^an exception that authorizes private streets where there will be no adverse
effect on future traffic circulation of neighboring parcels (SMC 10.50.041(d)(4)). /

In addition to this requirement, SMC 10.50.041(e)(3) states that each lot must front upon a X I
public street with a width not less than those set forth in the street standards. SMC 10.50.041(e)(3)

provides that lots having frontage on two streets should be avoided whenever possible.

PUBLIC FACILITIES AND UTILITY SERVICES; A full range of public facilities and utility services including

water, sewage, storm drainage and fire protection serves the property.

ACCESS: Herlou Drive, Yakima County local access street borders the site on the west; Lyie Loop Road, a

local access street borders the site on the east and would be extended across the property to Herlou

Drive providing internal access to the proposed subdivision.

ENVIRONMENTALREVIEW;A Determination of Nonsignificance (DNS) (971.42.15-04) was issued on

May 7,2015 using the Optional Method of WAC197-11-355 foilowing the 14 day comment period for

the Notice of Application issued on April 15. As a result of concerns raised about the notice, the Notice.

of Application was reissued on May 20,2015 and an additional comment period provided for comments

on the pnuirnnmpntai rpvipw tn iiinp s. 701 This Staff report wiil be supplemented as necessary to

incorporate any comments received and any changes made to the SEPA decision as a result.

Three comment letters were received as of the date of this report including a letter from the

Department of Ecology and two citizen letters. One of the letters seemed to be in regard to another

project or to development now occurring in general, but since it made specific comments to "the

property on Herlou between Weems Way and Goodlander" it was included and considered in this

review.

)v\



The Department of Ecology letter recommended sampling the soil for lead, arsenic and

organochlorine pesticides and notifying potential buyers if they are found to exceed specific levels. It

also states that a NPDES Construction Stormwater General Permit is required if there is a potential for

stormwater discharge. AStormwater Pollution Prevention Plan would then be required to include

measures to prevent soil from being carried to surface water, including storm drains.

Issues raised by the citizen letters include:

Concerns about providing rental housing in development.

Planned development that does not fit with neighboring homes.

Traffic on Weems Way.

LAND USE AND ZONING:

Table 1: Existing Land Use, Plan Designation and Zoning

Area Land Use Plan Designation Zoning
Site Vacant; part is subject

to County approved
preliminary plat with
utilities in place

Low Density Residential One Family Residential
(R-1)

North Detached single-family
homes on 0.4 acre lots

Low Density Residentiai One Family Residential
(Yakima County - R-1)

South Detached single-family
homes on 8,375 to

10,176 square foot (0.2
to 0.25 acre) lots

Low Density Residentiai One Family Residential
(R-1)

East Detached single-family
homes on 15,795 to

28,624 square foot
(0.36 to 0.66 acre) lots.
One large lot (2.81 acre)
with a single-family
home and raising
horses

Low Density Residential One-Family Residential
(R-1)

West Detached single-famiiy
homes on 1/3 to Yt acre
lots

Low Density Residential One-Family Residential
(Yakima County - R-1)

UTILITIES; Public sewer lines, water lines and drainage improvements have been installed in Lyie Loop

Road in accordance with the County decision approving the previous preliminary plat; engineering plans

for these improvements have been approved by the Selah Public Works Department. These utilities will

need to be extended to the lots fronting on the proposed private street.



WATER : An 8 inch domestic water line has been extended in the proposed alignment of Lyie

Loop Road from where it currently ends on the east side of the site to Herlou Drive on the west. A water

line will need to be extended to the lots on the private street, presumably usingthe access/utility

easement that is to provide access to the lots in that phase.

SEWER: An 8 inch line has been installed through Phases 1 and 2 in the proposed alignment of

LyIe Loop Road from the existing end of that street to the east and terminating just before reaching

Herlou Drive on thewest. The preliminary plat shows a 16 foot wide sewer easement through Lots 11 ^
and 12 that would extend the line on LyIe Loop Road to the access/utility easement for the private

street allowing sewer extension to Lots 17 through 20. UmJIm, i [^0^i
FIRE HYDRANTS: Existing hydrants are located at the intersection of LyIe Loop Road and Herlou I

Drive in the existing Somerset Isubdivision and about 520 feet to the east on the north side of Lyle Loop |
Road. Although hydrant locations for the proposal are not indicated on the preliminary plat, a hydrant /
has been installed on the site in the alignment of Lyle Loop Road where it would front on proposed Lots u

3 and 11 about 450 feet (travel distance on the street) from the interior hydrant in Somerset I and about'

460 feet from Herlou Drive. An ^ditional hydrant will be required on the proposed private access ^
easement at the north end of Lot 13. ^ ^ ^
TRANSPORTATION: , '

Herlou Drive - (Yakima County, designated Local Access) -- Asphalt pavement with concrete

barrier curb and gutter, 5 foot wide sidewalk on the east side and illumination in a 60 foot wide right-of-

way.

Lvie Loop Road (Local Access) - 32 foot wide asphalt pavement with concrete rolled curb and

gutter, 5 foot wide sidewalk on the north and west sides of the street and illumination in §iO-foot wide

right-of-way. ^

Planned improvements - Lyle Loop Road will be constructed to the same development standards as the

existing part of the street (described above).

A private access street will be extended north from Lyle Loop Road in a 20 foot wide fire and

private access and utilityeasement north to Lots 18 and 19, and then east and west for a total length of

90 feet and a width of 26 feet forming a hammerhead type turnaround to accommodate emergency

vehicles. The easement then continues with a 20 foot width for about 48 feet to the west to serve Lot 17

and for 180 feet to the east to serve Lot 20.

According to the application materials, the access easement for the private street will be for the

exclusive use of six lots: Lots 13 and 14 and 17 through 20. It would not be available to three of the lots

in the subdivision over which it crosses or abuts or the adjacent property to the east. Lots 13 and 14

would have access to both the private street and Lyle Loop Road.



TWO-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL LOTS:

Location-The lots proposed for two family residential designation are Lots19 and 20 located on the

proposed private road in the northeast part of the subdivision. They border existing residential lots to

the north, but a difference in elevation and their adjoining on the rear property lineswith separate

access provides for some physical separation between the existing and proposed lots. They are also
located behind the proposed new lots on Lyie Loop Road rather than facing them. The applicant argues
that the proposed location is better for duplexes than a location that fronts on the exterior street (i.e.,

Herlou Drive) since they would not face existing homes across the street from the site.

Adiacent Land Uses-The proposed duplex lots adjoin three residential lots to the north. One of the lots

also borders a 2.8 acre parcel to the east which Is partially undeveloped with a single family home

located about 170 feet away that gains its access from Selah Loop Road to the east. The developed lots

to the north are all 0.44 acre (19,000+ square feet) developed with one to two story (i.e., finished or

partially finished daylight basements) single family homes of wood frame construction with brick or

painted trim. They have 1,100 to 1,500 square foot footprints. All three of these homes are set back 90

to 100 feet from the rear lot line shared with the proposed duplex lots. There are fences, a retaining wall

and a detached garage in the rear yards that appear to provide some site screening of the proposed

designated lots.

The large parcel to the east has an older two story home with about 1,300 square feet on two

stories, and a partially finished basement.

Based on the lot size, the net residential density of the three lots to the north is 2.3 dwelling

units per acre. Including the large parcel to the east would lower the density further, but it is assumed

that it could be developed to the allowable five dwelling units per acre (about six units per net acre), or

slightly less due to the minimum lot size.

Zoning Ordinance Consistency & Compatibilitv Analysis - The two proposed lots are over 9,000 square

feet In size, not corner lots, and not located on slopes that would trigger the larger minimum lot sizes

from the zoning ordinance. The 20 lot subdivision allows for the designation of two two-family

residential lots under the requirements of SMC 10.12.040.

The lots are 100 feet in width, consistent with the widths of the residential lots to the north, and

enough width to allow for single story units. Lotdepths are a slightly shallower 96.5 feet. The building

envelopes as shown on a site plan included with the application is 4,360 square feet. This is based on a

15 foot rear setback, which does not meet the minimum standard for the R-1 zone (20 feet). The 30 foot

front setback shown on the site exceeds the standard but may be necessary for off-street parking. The

35% lot coverage standard reduces the potential building footprint to 3,365 to 3,379 square feet (1,682

to 1,690 square feet per one-story unit - including garages). The lots should be large enough to

accommodate the proposed use and meet required setback and lot coverage standards. Net density is

about 6 dwelling units per acre or 6.6 dwelling units per acre if the lot area is reduced by the access

easement used for the private road in making the calculation.



SUBDIVISION VARIANCE;

Under the block design standards of SMC 10.50.041(d), a private access street may only be authorized

where there are no adverse effect on future trafficcirculationof neighboring parcels.Thiswording

appears to indicate that a variance or exception is not required if the required finding can be made. In

addition there is a standard in SMC10.50.041(e), the iot design standards, which provides that each iot

must front upon a public street with a width not less than [that] set forth in the street standards. The

only stated exception to this standard is that it can be waived or reduced when the subdivision is

combined with a Planned Development. While on its face, this requirement seems to prohibit lots that

front on public streets, when it is considered in the context of the other standards and the organization

of the code, it appears that its intent may have been to regulate lot width along street frontages. This is

supported by;

1. It contradicts SMC 10.50.041(d)(4) which allows private access streets if no adverse effect on

traffic circulation can be found; and

2. It falls under the lot design standards, rather than the block design standards of SMC

10.50.041(d) suggesting that it was intended to be evaluated for specific lots rather than the

street itself.

There is also a subdivision standard (for lot design - SMC10.50.041(e)) that lots having frontage

on two streets should be avoided whenever possible (emphasis added). This language is not mandatory,

so it does not appear to require a subdivision exception, it appears that an exception or variance may

not be required for any of these standards. However, since SMC 10.50.041(e)(3) can be interpreted to
not otherwise allow lots that don't front public streets, the exception is directed primarily to it.

The application indicates that a lot design that eliminates the private road would either require

the lots to have depth (distance from the front lot line to the rear lot line) in excess of 2.5 times their

width or lots that are 15,000 to 20,000 square feet, more or less. The depth to width ratio of more than

2.5 times violates another standard of the Selah code: SMC10.50.041(e)(6), but would be the same or

similar to the lots approved previously for this property by Yakima County (whichdoes not have this

standard in its code). According to the application, the rear of long narrow lots would remain largely
undeveloped and full of weeds.

Other design alternatives may be available, including the larger lot sizes cited in the applications,

but does not allow for lots that are consistent with the other lots in the proposed plat and on the south

side of Lyie Loop Road. Ifthe 2.5 to 1 lot to width ratio were allowed, or if it were be modified instead of

the standards being proposed by this application, it would, as argued by the applicant result in lots that

are less usable and desirable because of their lengths. It may also be possible to extend a cul-de-sac into

this part of the site, but due to its shape and size, it would be difficult to comply with what may be the
actual intent of SMC 10.50.041(e)(3) because it would tend to result in the use of "flagpole lots" in

designing this space.



While it could be argued that because of the characteristics of this site, larger lots are goine to

be necessary north of Lyie Loop, this does not seem tP rnncktont the zonine. comprehensive plan

designation and adopted s^ndards when considered that the code provides for an exception to the
most applicable standardUe., SMC 10.50.041(d)(4)). Under the terms of the Exception Requirements

(Sivn. iU.SU.070 (a)) it also could be considered an undue hardship.

The following findings and conclusions address the other criteria of the Exception Requirements:

a. The special physical circumstances and conditions affecting the property are the slopes

to the north and west and the fully developed lots that border the site in those

directions. They prevent the extension of public streets to the north that could then be

continued for other development. Along with the dimensions of the property, they also

result in there not being enough room to establish another two tiers of lots with an

intervening street as would be necessary to develop this area in the manner required by

all Code requirements if additional public streets were to be provided.

b. The exceptions ensure that the subject property enjoys the same rights and privileges

that other undeveloped properties in the vicinity have to develop to minimum lot size

and allowable density. That SMC 10.50.041(d)(4) and SMC 10.50.041(e)(4) include

exceptions or language that indicate that they are not mandatory requirements should

be considered important findings in making this conclusion.

c. The public interest is preserved. Lot design, density and use is otherwise consistent with

zoning standards and the comprehensive plan and with if appropriately conditioned,

compatible with surrounding development.

Compliance with the three applicable subdivision standards are as follows:

a. The private access street does not adversely affect future traffic circulation of

neighboring parcels. Properties to the north and west are fully developed and already

have access to public streets. Direct access to LyIe Loop Road is available to the partially

undeveloped property to the east.

b. It is not possible with this design to avoid having lots with frontage on two streets (i.e.,

LyIe Loop Road and the private street).

c. If the intent of SMC 10.50.041(e)(3) is to require lots that front on public streets to

have frontages that meet applicable standards, the standard is met. All of the proposed

lot frontages on public streets meet minimum lot width standards from the zoning

code. Lot 17 will have 40 feet of frontage on the proposed private access easement,

which is enough to provide for ingress and egress to that lot. It is also not a public

street. The other three interior lots have frontage on the easement that is more than or

equal to minimum lot width requirements.

7



RECOMMENDATION: APPROVAL of the preliminary plat and subdivision variance (exception) based on

the findings and conclusions in this report subject to the following conditions:

1. All design and/or improvement notations indicated on the preliminary plat are included herein

as conditions of preliminary plat approval. (Including, but not limited to, dedicated right-of-way

width, easement widths and locations, lot size and configuration).

2. A preliminary engineering report and/or plan, prepared by a Licensed Professional Engineer,

demonstrating the feasibility of construction of alt public improvements required by Selah

Municipal Code, Chapter 10.50 must be submitted to the Public Works Director for approval.

3. Allfinal plans and specifications for improvements must be prepared by a Licensed Professional

Engineer and reviewed and approved by the Public Works Director prior to construction.

Specifications for improvements shown on the preliminary plat are minimum specifications that

may be superseded by conditions contained herein or by specific conditions as approved by the

Public Works Director. Upon completion of construction and prior to final plat approval, final

'as-built' construction plans and a written certification by a Licensed Professional Engineer that

said improvements where completed in accordance with the approved construction plans must

be submitted to the Public Works Director for approval.

4. Reports, plans and specifications previously submitted shall count toward meeting the

requirements of Conditions#2 and #3 if accepted by the Public Works Director to the extent of •
1^'the improvements for which they are determined to be sufficient.

5. Lvie Loop Road: Street improvements must be constructed to City standards as approved by the

Public Works Director including 50 foot wide right-of-way, 32 foot wide asphalt pavement,

concrete rolled (or better) curb and gutter, five (5) foot wide sidewalk on one street side and

street illumination. The sidewalk shall be installed on the same side of the street as it is on the

existing completed portion of Lyie Loop Road. Utility improvements shall be extended beyond"^
street pavement edge to facilitate future extension where appropriate. Street grade shall not

exceed 10%.

6. The private interior street shall be constructed as a hard-surfaced street to specifications

approved by the Public Works Director prior to recording the final plat. The street shall have a

minimum surface width of 20 feet.

7. Covenants or a road maintenance agreement, providing for the perpetual maintenance of the

private roadway and that establish a road maintenance fund shall be recorded with the Yakima

County Auditor and a recorded copy submitted to the Selah Planning Department prior to

recording the final plat.



8. The private street shall be designated "no-parking" as shown by the site plan submitted with the

preliminary plat application and shall be posted with signs prior to final plat approval.

9. Driveway access to Lots 13 and 14 shall be limited to Lyie Loop Road and the part of the private

access easement passing in a north-south direction between them.

10. Street Illumination shall be installed by the developer at locations and to the specifications of

the Public Works Director (typically at 300 foot intervals or as otherwise determined by the

Director of Public Works in order to maximize Illumination). Street lights shall be installed on

metal poles.

11. All lots must be served with a full range of public and private services and utilities including

public water and sewer, power, natural gas and telephone. All utilities except for the standard

telephone box, transmission box and similar structures shall be underground and Installed prior

to the surfacing of streets. All utilities placed beneath streets, curbs or sidewalks shall be

extended beyond these features to avoid them being disrupted by future extensions.

12. There shall be a moratorium on public street cuts for a period of five (5) years from the date of

plat recording.

13. Fire hydrants shall be provided and Installed by the developer at locations approved by the City

of Selah Fire Chief and to the specifications of Selah Municipal Code, Chapter 11.30.

14. Final lot dimensions and lot area must substantially conform to the preliminary plat unless

otherwise amended during the public hearing process.

15. Storm Water drainage facilities to accommodate runoff generated in the plat must comply with

a drainage facilities plan prepared by a Licensed Professional Engineer and approved by the

Public Works Director. Plans submitted previously will count toward meeting this requirement if

approved by the Public Works Director.Additional documentation may be required for portions

of the site not covered by any such previously submitted plans.

16. A NPDES Construction Stormwater General Permit shall be obtained unless determined by the

Department of Ecology that it Is not required.

17. Prior to final plat recording, all required plat Improvements (utilities, streets, drainage facilities,

etc.) must be installed and accepted by the City or a surety bond pledged to the City to ensure

installation of the plat improvements within two years of final plat recording.

18. Lots 19 and 20 are authorized to be designated as two-family residential lots on the final plat

and may be developed into two-family residential structures following final plat approval,

subject to the following additional special requirements:



a. The two-family residential designation of these lots applies only to these lots and may

not be transferred to other lots in the subdivision.

/'̂ J Off-street parking shall be provided on the lots to provide 4spaces per each duplex. No
credit against this requirement shall be allowed for garages aitd tandem parking.

c. Building materials shall be consistent in appearance with that of surrounding single-

family homes. To further ensure harmonious development of the designated lots with

the development of single family lots in the subdivision, restrictive covenants that

describe the required building specifications for the two-family dwellings shall be

recorded prior to recording the final plat for the phase in which they are in.

d. Building specifications from the restrictive covenants for the proposed two-family

dwellings shall be submitted to the Planning Department to review for consistency with

these conditions prior to recording the final plat for the phase in which they are in.

e. This decision does not preclude the development of detached single-family residences

on any of these lots.

18. All required street signs, posts and appurtenances must be supplied by the developer and will

be installed by the City.

^9^he following note shall be placed on any final plat map:
"The owners shown hereon, their grantees and assignees in interest, hereby covenant

and agree to retain all surface water generated within the plat on-site."

"No driveway approach from any lot that fronts on Lyie Loop Road to [name given to

the private access easement] shall be allowed, except that Lots 13 and 14 may have

approaches to the part of the street that passes in a north-south direction between

said lots"

20. Lots 17 through 20 shall be served by an 8 inch sewer line extended in the utility easement

across Lots 11 and 12 and then continued to the other lots in the access and utility easement as

shown on the Preliminary Plat.

21. Prior to final plat recording, a surety bond, or such other secure financial method acceptable to

the City, in the amount of 15% of the cost of the public improvements as determined by the

Public Works Director (streets, sidewalks, street lights, drainage facilities, sewage collection and

water distribution facilities, etc.) must be remitted to the City and will be held for a period of

two years from the date of final plat recording to guarantee against defects in materials and

workmanship.

22. The applicant shall recommend a street name to assign to the private access street and shall

submit the name to the Planning Department for approval prior to recording the final plat. The

10



approved street name shall be shown on the face of the final plat and in the plat note required

by Condition 20.

23. Improvements required for the subdivision must be completed and the final plat must be

submitted within the maximum 5-year time period required by ROW 58.17.140. Aone-time,

one-year extension may be authorized in accordance with SMC 10.50.033(c) but the request

must be made before the 5-year time period ends.

11



CITY OF SELAH HEARING EXAMINER

STAFF REPORT

May 13,2015

FILE NO.: PRELIMINARY PLAT 912.42.15-02 "Somerset II"

SUBDIVISION VARIANCE 915.42.15-01

SEPA ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 971.42.15-04

PROPOSAL: Preliminary Plat of "Somerset 11" subdividing the 4.7 acre subject property into 20 lots
served by a full range of public utilities consisting of 18 single family residential lots and 2 lots

designated for two-family dwellings. Fourof the lots, including the designated two-family residential lots
are to obtain access from a private road requiring a subdivision variance.

Proposed lots sizes range from 8,000 to 12,298 square feet. Average proposed lot size Is8,578

square feet. Thetwo lotsproposedfor two-family dwellings are 9,614and 9,653 square feet. Proposed
density is 4.7 dwellings per gross acre.

Aportion of the subject property was approved for a 17 lot preliminary plat byYakima County,
but not recorded. Previous to the plat approval, part of the property was a tract in Somerset i, a

subdivision that other than this tract has been built out. Part of the property was acquired through a

street vacation for Heriou Drive.

PROPONENT 8l PROPERTY OWNER: Zuker-Sample, LLC

LOCATION; Site fronts on Heriou Drive to the west and Lyie Loop Road to the east, it is about 100 feet

north of the intersection of Lyie Loop and Heriou Drive and about 200 feet south of the intersection of

Heriou Drive and Weems Way (TaxParcel Numbers: 181426-44005 and 44021).

The site is bordered on the south by Somerset I, a 24 lot subdivision recorded in 2002 and built

out with detached single family homes on lots that are mostly 8,000 to 10,000 square feet in size but

also includes a few somewhat larger lots up to 28,624 square feet (0.66 acre).

APPUCATION AUTHORITY ANDJURISDICTION: Selah Municipal Code, Chapter 10.50 (subdivision) and

Chapter 10.12 (R-1 Zoning District).

SMC 10.12.040 allows ten percent of the lots in a proposed land division often or more lots to

be designated for future two-family dwellings (or duplexes). The hearing examiner must consider the lot

locations and carefully consider adjacent properties to ensure harmonious compatibility. Other required

standards for two-family lots include a minimum lot size of 9,000 square feet or the minimum lot size

based on slope as specified in SMC10.12.030. Also, SMC10.50.041(e)(6)(C) from the subdivision code

requires the minimum lot size to be increased by an additional ten percent on corner lots.

Once the lots are designated, the future duplexes may be authorized as Class 1 Uses, subject to
the same requirement for harmonious compatibility.



The subdivision variance or exception is being considered under SMC 10.50.070 which

authorizes the hearing examiner to recommend to the City Council an exceptionfrom the requirements
of Chapter 10.50 when in the examiner's opinion, undue hardship may be created as a result of strict
compliance with its provisions or any standards adopted by reference. The following findings are

necessary to recommend an exception:

1. There are special physical circumstancesor conditionsaffectingthe property such that the
strict application of the provisions of the (subdivision) chapter would deprive the applicant
of the reasonable use or development of the land.

2. That the exception is necessaryto insure such property the rightsand privileges enjoyed by
other properties in the vicinity.

3. That the public interest is preserved.

The Design standards and specificationsfor subdivisions includea standard that no private

streets are allowed in any subdivision, and every lot and blockshall be served from a publicly dedicated
street. The standard makes an exception that authorizes private streets where there will be no adverse

effect on future traffic circulation of neighboring parcels (SMC 10.50.041(d)(4)).

In addition to this requirement, SMC 10.50.041(e)(3) states that each lot must front upon a

public street with a width not less than those set forth in the street standards. SMC 10.50.041(e)(3)

provides that lots having frontage on two streets should be avoided whenever possible.

PUBLIC FACILITIES ANDUTILITY SERVICES: Afull range of public facilities and utility services including

water, sewage, storm drainage and fire protection serves the property.

ACCESS: Herlou Drive, Yakima County local access street borders the site on the west; Lyie Loop Road, a

local access street borders the site on the east and would be extended across the property to Herlou

Drive providing internal access to the proposed subdivision.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW; A Determination of Nonsignificance (DNS) (971.42.15-04) was issued on

May7,2015 using the Optional Method of WAC197-11-355 followingthe 14 day comment period for

the Notice of Application issued on April 15.

Three comment letters were received including a letter from the Department of Ecology and

two citizen letters. One of the letters seemed to be in regard to another project or to development now

occurring in general, but since it made specific comments to "the property on Herlou between Weems

Way and Goodlander" it was included and considered in this review.

The Department of Ecology letter recommended sampling the soil for lead, arsenic and

organochlorine pesticides and notifying potential buyers if they are found to exceed specific levels. It

also states that a NPDES Construction Stormwater General Permit is required if there is a potential for



stormwater discharge. AStormwater PollutionPrevention Plan would then be required to include

measures to prevent soil from being carried to surface water, including storm drains.

Issues raised by the citizen letters include:

Concerns about providing rental housing in development.

Planned development that does not fit with neighboring homes.

Traffic on Weems Way.

LAND USE AND ZONING;

Table 1: Existing Land Use, Plan Designation and Zoning

Area Land Use Plan Designation Zoning
Site Vacant; part is subject

to County approved
preliminary plat with
utilities in place

Low Density Residential One Family Residential
(R-1)

North Detached single-family
homes on 0.4 acre lots

Low Density Residential One Family Residential
(Yakima County - R-1)

South Detached single-family
homes on 8,375 to
10,176 square foot (0.2
to 0.25 acre) lots

Low Density Residential One Family Residential
(R-1)

East Detached single-family
homes on 15,795 to
28,624 square foot
(0.36 to 0.66 acre) lots.
One large lot (2.81 acre)
with a single-family
home and raising
horses

Low Density Residential One-Family Residential

(R-1)

West Detached single-family
homes on 1/3 to yi acre
lots

Low Density Residential One-Family Residential
(Yakima County- R-1)

UTILITIES; Public sewer lines, water lines and drainageimprovements have been installed in Lyie Loop
Road in accordancewith the County decision approving the previous preliminary plat;engineering plans
for these improvements have been approved bythe Selah Public Works Department. These utilities will
need to be extended to the lots fronting on the proposed private street.

WATER: An 8 inchdomestic water linehas been extended in the proposed alignmentof Lyie
Loop Road from where it currently ends on the east side of the site to Herlou Drive on the west. A water



line will need to beextended to the lotson the private street, presumabiy using the access/utiiity
easement that is to provide access to the iots in that phase.

SEWER: An8 inch line has been instaiiedthrough Phases 1 and 2 in the proposed aiignment of

Lyie Loop Road from the existing end of that street to the east and terminating just before reaching
Herlou Drive on the west. The preiiminary piat showsa 16 foot widesewer easement through Lots 11
and 12 that would extend the line on LyIe Loop Road to the access/utility easement for the private
street ailowing sewer extension to Lots 17 through 20.

FIRE HYDRANTS: Existing hydrants are iocated at the intersection of Lyie Loop Road and Heriou

Drive in the existing Somerset Isubdivision and about 520feet to the east on the north side of Lyie Loop
Road. Aithough hydrant iocationsfor the proposaiare not indicatedon the preiiminary piat, a hydrant
has been installed on the site in the aiignmentof Lyie Loop Road where it wouidfront on proposed Lots
3 and 11 about 450 feet (travel distance on the street) from the interior hydrant in Somerset Iand about

460 feet from Herlou Drive. An additional hydrantwill be requiredon the proposed privateaccess
easement at the north end of Lot 13.

TRANSPORTATiOM:

Herlou Drive - (Yakima County, designated Local Access) ~ Asphalt pavement with concrete

barrier curb and gutter, 5 foot wide sidewalk on the east side and iilumination ina 60 foot wide right-of-
way.

Lvie Loop Road (Locai Access) - 32 foot wide asphalt pavement with concrete rolled curb and

gutter, 5 foot wide sidewalk on the north and west sides of the street and illumination in 50-foot wide

right-of-way.

Planned improvements - Lyie Loop Road will be constructed to the same development standards as the

existing part of the street (described above).

A private access street wiil be extended north from Lyie Loop Road in a 20 foot wide fire and

private access and utility easement north to Lots 18 and 19, and then east and west for a totai length of

90 feet and a width of 26 feet forming a hammerhead type turnaround to accommodate emergency

vehicies. The easement then continues with a 20 foot width for about 48 feet to the west to serve Lot 17

and for 180 feet to the east to serve Lot 20.

According to the appiication materiais, the access easement for the private street wiil be for the

exclusive use of six lots: Lots 13 and 14 and 17 through 20. It would not be available to three of the lots

in the subdivision over which it crosses or abuts or the adjacent property to the east. Lots 13 and 14

wouid have access to both the private street and LyieLoop Road.

TWO-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL LOTS:

Location - The lots proposed for two family residential designation are Lots 19 and 20 located on the

proposed private road in the northeast part of the subdivision. They border existing residential lots to



the north, but a difference in elevation and their adjoining on the rear property lines with separate
access provides for some physical separation between the existing and proposed lots. They are also

located behind the proposed new lots on Lyie Loop Roadrather than facingthem. The applicant argues
that the proposed location is better for duplexes than a location that fronts on the exterior street (i.e.,

Herlou Drive)since they would not face existing homes across the street from the site.

Adiacent Land Uses-The proposed duplex lots adjoin three residential lots to the north. One of the lots

also borders a 2.8 acre parcel to the east whichis partiallyundeveloped with a singlefamily home

located about 170feet awaythat gainsitsaccess fromSelah Loop Road to the east. Thedeveloped lots
to the north are all0.44 acre (19,000+square feet) developed with one to two story (i.e., finished or
partially finished daylight basements) single family homes of wood frame construction with brickor

painted trim. They have 1,100 to 1,500 square foot footprints. All three of these homes are set back 90

to 100 feet fromthe rear lot line shared withthe proposed duplex lots.There are fences, a retainingwail
and a detached garage in the rear yards that appear to providesome site screeningof the proposed
designated lots.

The large parcel to the east has an older two story home with about 1,300 square feet on two
stories, and a partially finished basement.

Based on the lot size,the net residential density of the three lots to the north is 2.3 dwelling
units per acre. Includingthe large parcel to the east would lower the density further, but it is assumed

that it could be developedto the allowable five dwelling units per acre (about six units per net acre),or
slightly less due to the minimum lot size.

Zoning Ordinance Consistencv 8tComoatibilitv Analvsis-The two proposedlots are over 9,000square
feet in size, not corner lots, and not located on slopes that would trigger the larger minimum lot sizes
from the zoning ordinance. The 20 lot subdivision allowsfor the designationof two two-family
residential lots under the requirements of SMC10.12.040.

The lots are 100 feet in width, consistent with the widths of the residential lots to the north, and
enough width to allowfor singlestory units. Lot depths are a slightly shallower96.5 feet. The building
envelopes as shown on a site plan includedwith the application is 4,360 square feet. This is based on a
15 foot rear setback, whichdoes not meet the minimum standard for the R-1 zone (20feet). The30 foot
front setbackshownon the site exceedsthe standard but may be necessary for off-street parking. The
35%lot coverage standard reduces the potential building footprint to 3,365 to 3,379 square feet (1,682
to 1,690 square feet per one-story unit - including garages). The lots should be large enough to

accommodate the proposed use and meet required setback and lot coverage standards. Net density is
about 6 dwelling units per acre or 6.6 dwelling units per acre ifthe lot area is reduced bythe access

easement used for the private road in making the calculation.

SUBDMSiON VARIANCE:

Under the block design standards of SMC 10.50.041(d), a private access street may only be authorized
where there are no adverse effect on future traffic circulation of neighboring parcels. This wording



appears to indicate that a variance or exception is not required ifthe requiredfinding can be made. In
addition there isa standard inSMC 10.50.041(e)j the lot design standards,which provides that each lot
must front upon a public street with a width not less than [that] set forth in the street standards. The

only stated exception to this standard is that it can be waived or reduced when the subdivision is

combined with a Planned Development. While on its face, this requirement seems to prohibit lots that
front on public streets, when it isconsidered inthe contextof the other standardsand the organization
of the code, it appears that its intent may have been to regulate lot widthalongstreet frontages.This is
supported by:

1. It contradicts SMC 10.50.041(d)(4) which allows private access streets if no adverse effect on

traffic circulation can be found; and

2. It falls under the lot design standards, rather than the block design standards of SMC

10.50.041(d) suggesting that it was intended to be evaluated for specific lots rather than the

street itself.

There isalso a subdivision standard (for lot design - SMC 10.50.041(e)) that lots having frontage
on two streets should be avoided whenever possible (emphasis added). This language is not mandatory,
so it does not appear to require a subdivision exception. It appears that an exception or variance may

not be required for any of these standards. However, sinceSMC 10.50.041(e)(3) can be interpreted to
not otherwise allow lots that don't front publicstreets, the exception isdirected primarily to it.

The application indicates that a lot design that eliminates the private road would either require

the lots to have depth (distance from the front lot line to the rear lot line) in excess of 2.5 times their

width or lots that are 15,000 to 20,000 square feet, more or less. The depth to width ratio of more than

2.5 times violates another standard of the Selah code: SMC10.50.041(e)(6), but would be the same or

similar to the lots approved previously for this property by YakimaCounty (which does not have this

standard in its code). According to the application, the rear of long narrow lots would remain largely

undeveloped and full of weeds.

Other design alternatives may be available, includingthe larger lot sizes cited in the applications,
but does not allow for lots that are consistent with the other lots in the proposed plat and on the south

side of LyieLoop Road. If the 2.5 to 1 lot to width ratio were allowed, or if it were be modified instead of

the standards being proposed by this application, it would, as argued by the applicant result in lots that

are less usable and desirable because of their lengths. It may also be possible to extend a cul-de-sac into

this part of the site, but due to its shape and size, it would be difficultto comply with what may be the
actual intent of SMC 10.50.041(e)(3) because it would tend to result in the use of "flagpole lots" in
designing this space.

While it could be argued that because of the characteristics of this site, larger lots are going to

be necessary north of Lyie Loop, this does not seem to consistent with the zoning, comprehensive plan
designation and adopted standards when considered that the code providesfor an exception to the



most applicablestandard (i.e.,SMC 10.50.041(d)(4)). Under the terms of the Exception Requirements
(SMC 10.50.070 (a)) it also could be considered an undue hardship.

The following findings and conclusionsaddress the other criteria of the Exception Requirements:

a. Thespecial physical circumstances and conditions affecting the propertyare the slopes
to the north and west and the fully developed lots that border the site in those

directions. They prevent the extension of public streets to the north that could then be
continuedfor other development.Along withthe dimensions of the property, they also
result in there not being enough room to establish another two tiers of lots with an

interveningstreet as would be necessaryto develop this area in the manner required by
all Code requirements if additional publicstreets were to be provided.

b. Theexceptions ensure that the subject propertyenjoys the same rights and privileges
that other undeveloped properties inthe vicinity haveto develop to minimum lot size
and allowable density. That SMC 10.50.041(d)(4) and SMC 10.50.041(e)(4) include
exceptions or language that Indicatethat they are not mandatory requirements should
be considered important findings In making this conclusion.

c. The public interest is preserved. Lot design, density and use isotherwise consistent with
zoningstandards and the comprehensive plan and with if appropriately conditioned,

compatible with surrounding development.

Compliance with the three applicable subdivision standards are as follows:

a. The private access street does not adverselyaffect future trafficcirculationof

neighboring parcels. Properties to the north andwestare fully developed andalready
haveaccess to public streets. Direct access to Lyie Loop Road isavailable to the partially
undeveloped property to the east.

b. It is not possible withthis design to avoid having lotswith frontageon two streets (i.e.,
LyIe Loop Road and the private street).

c. Ifthe intent of SMC 10.50.041(e)(3) isto require lotsthat front on public streets to
havefrontages that meet applicable standards, the standard is met. All of the proposed
lot frontages on public streets meet minimum lot widthstandards fromthe zoning
code. Lot17 will have 40 feet of frontage on the proposed private access easement,
which isenough to provide for ingress and egress to that lot. It isalso not a public
street. The other three Interior lots have frontage on the easement that is more than or

equal to minimum lot width requirements.

RECOMMENDATION; APPROVAL of the preliminary plat and subdivision variance (exception) based on
the findings and conclusions Inthis report subject to the following conditions:



1. All design and/or Improvement notations indicated on the preliminary piat are included herein

as conditions of preliminary piat approval. (Including, but not limited to, dedicated right-of-way
width, easement widths and locations, lot size and configuration).

2. A preliminary engineering report and/or plan, prepared by a Licensed Professional Engineer,
demonstrating the feasibility of construction of all public improvements required by Selah
Municipal Code, Chapter 10.50 must be submitted to the PublicWorks Director for approval.

3. All final plans and specifications for improvements must be prepared by a Licensed Professional

Engineer and reviewed and approved by the Public Works Director prior to construction.

Specifications for improvements shown on the preliminary plat are minimum specifications that

may be superseded by conditions contained herein or by specificconditionsas approved by the
PublicWorks Director. Upon completion of construction and prior to final plat approval, final

'as-built' construction plansand a written certification by a Licensed Professional Engineerthat
said improvements where completed in accordance with the approved construction plans must

be submitted to the PublicWorks Director for approval.

4. Reports, plans and specifications previouslysubmitted shall count toward meeting the

requirements of Conditions #2 and #3 if accepted by the Public Works Director to the extent of

the improvements for which they are determined to be sufficient.

5. Lvie Loop Road:Street improvements must be constructed to Citystandards as approved by the
Public Works Director including SO foot wide right-of-way, 32 foot wide asphalt pavement,

concrete rolled (or better) curb and gutter, five (S) foot wide sidewalk on one street side and

street illumination. The sidewalk shall be installed on the same side of the street as it is on the

existing completed portion of Lyie Loop Road. Utilityimprovements shall be extended beyond

street pavement edge to facilitate future extension where appropriate. Street grade shall not

exceed 10%.

6. The private interior street shall be constructed as a hard-surfaced street to specifications

approved by the Public Works Director prior to recording the final plat. The street shall have a

minimum surface width of 20 feet.

7. Covenants or a road maintenance agreement, providing for the perpetual maintenance of the

private roadway and that establish a road maintenance fund shall be recorded with the Yakima

County Auditor and a recorded copy submitted to the Selah Planning Department prior to

recording the final plat.

8. The private street shall be designated "no-parking" as shown by the site plan submitted with the

preliminary plat application and shall be posted with signs prior to final piat approval.



9. Driveway access to Lots 13 and 14 shall be limited to Lyle Loop Road and the part of the private

access easement passing in a north-south direction between them.

10. Street illumination shall be installed by the developer at locations and to the specifications of

the PublicWorks Director (typically at 300 foot intervals or as otherwise determined by the

Director of PublicWorks in order to maximize illumination). Street lights shall be installed on

metal poles.

11. All lots must be served with a full range of public and private services and utilities including

public water and sewer, power, natural gas and telephone. All utilities except for the standard

telephone box, transmission box and similar structures shall be underground and installed prior

to the surfacing of streets. All utilities placed beneath streets, curbs or sidewalks shall be

extended beyond these features to avoid them being disrupted by future extensions.

12. There shall be a moratorium on public street cuts for a period of five (5) years from the date of

plat recording.

13. Fire hydrants shall be provided and installed by the developer at locations approved by the City

of Selah FireChiefand to the specifications of Selah Municipal Code, Chapter 11.30.

14. Final lot dimensions and lot area must substantially conform to the preliminary plat unless

otherwise amended during the public hearing process.

15. Storm Water drainage facilities to accommodate runoff generated in the plat must comply with

a drainage facilities plan prepared by a Licensed Professional Engineer and approved by the

Public Works Director. Plans submitted previously will count toward meeting this requirement if

approved by the PublicWorks Director. Additional documentation may be required for portions

of the site not covered by any such previously submitted plans.

16. A NPDES Construction Stormwater General Permit shall be obtained unless determined by the

Department of Ecology that it is not required.

17. Prior to final plat recording, all required plat improvements (utilities, streets, drainage facilities,

etc.) must be installed and accepted by the City or a surety bond pledged to the City to ensure,

installation of the plat improvements within two years of final plat recording.

18. Lots 19 and 20 are authorized to be designated as two-family residential lots on the final plat

and may be developed into two-family residential structures following final plat approval,

subject to the following additional special requirements:

a. The two-family residential designation of these lots applies only to these lots and may

not be transferred to other lots in the subdivision.



b. Off-street parking shall be provided on the lots to provide 4 spaces per each duplex. No

credit against this requirement shall be allowed for garages and tandem parking.

c. Building materials shall be consistent in appearance with that of surrounding single-
family homes. To further ensure harmonious development of the designated lots with

the development of single family lots in the subdivision, the two-family lots shall be

developed within one year of the recordingof the final plat. Thecompletion date may
be extended in the manner allowed for Class 2 and 3 applications by SMC10.06.060(c).

d. Asite plan and drawings, photos or elevations of each of the buildings proposed for

development of the designated two-family residential lots shall be submitted to the

Planning Department to reviewfor consistency with these conditions prior to recording
the final plat for the phase in which they are in.

e. Thisdecision does not preclude the development of detached single-family residences
on any of these lots.

19. All required street signs, posts and appurtenances must be supplied bythe developer and will
be installed by the City.

20. The following note shall be placed on any final plat map:

"The owners shown hereon, their grantees and assignees in interest, hereby covenant
and agree to retain all surface water generated within the plat on-site."

"No driveway approach from any lot that fronts on Lyie LoopRoad to [name given to

the private access easement] shall be allowed, except that Lots13 and 14 may have

approaches to the part of the street that passes in a north-south direction between

said lots"

21. Lots17 through 20 shall be served by an 8 Inchsewer line extended in the utilityeasement

across Lots11 and 12 and then continued to the other lots in the access and utility easement as

shown on the Preliminary Plat.

22. Prior to final plat recording, a surety bond, or such other secure financial method acceptable to

the City, in the amount of 15%of the cost of the public improvements as determined by the

PublicWorks Director (streets, sidewalks, street lights, drainage facilities, sewage collection and
water distribution facilities, etc.) must be remitted to the Cityand will be held for a period of

two years from the date of final plat recording to guarantee against defects in materials and

workmanship.

23. The applicant shall recommend a street name to assign to the private access street and shall

submit the name to the Planning Department for approval prior to recordingthe final plat. The
approved street name shall be shown on the face of the final plat and in the plat note required
by Condition 20.

10



24. Improvements required for the subdivision must be completed and the final plat must be

submitted within the maximum 5-year time period required by RCW 58.17.140. Aone-time,

one-year extension may be authorized in accordance with SMC 10.50.033(c) but the request

must be made before the 5-year time period ends.

11



Somerset II

912.42.15-02 Somerset II Preliminary Plat

915.42.15-01 Subdivision Variance

971.42.15-04 Environmental Review

EXHIBIT LIST

LIST OF DOCUMENTS PERTAINING TO SOMERSET II

EXHIBIT NO DESCRIPTION OF ITEM

1 Staff Report

2 Cover Letter-Applicant March 17, 2015

3 Preliminary Plat Application March 17, 2015

4 Variance Application March 17, 2015

5 Narrative-Variance March 17, 2015

6 Preliminary Plat.

7 Site Plan for Variance March 17,2015

8 Environmental Check List March 17, 2015

9 Determination of Nonsignificance May 7 2015

10 Comment Letter Department of Ecology

April 24, 2015

11 Comment Letter Michelle Bannister

April 20, 2015

12 Comment Letter Mr. & Mrs. Willie Morris

April 16, 2015

13 Notice of Application

14 Installation Certificate May 5, 2015

15 Subject Property Map



16. Affidavit of Pubiication and Legal Advertisement

5/22/15

17. Affidavit of mailing and mailing list 5/22/515

18. Comment Letter Diane Underwood 6/4/15

19. Comment Letter Abdul Maroof 6/4/15

20. Comment Letter Mr. & Mrs. Caidweil 6/8/15

JUXUa, iTlri. ¥-oUtZrux^

hdrr'J ^jy/iS

j ^ 'froo^ Af* ^tfin/rvVjbiiuH rccd;

r Jo/-A.P^V/J &NtS\ ihl>^
^ V/ -Ar-^ /»«rrk

^ 11. rrc<i
i-e<^ 1 / y

30. It-Nrr^ r-^Tc. Cr
5/. It^r ^CC'J^/W'^'
3^' 6Ai/'.y

7J'. crWAi-

?r. rc<,'̂ ^wW/u/
3^. dr-^r A- ^«7 V

rr,:;- "••'^6

<J.



ZUKER-SAMPLE LLC

1304 Heritage Hills PI,Selah WA 98942

509-910-1303

March 17,2014

Mr. Tom Durant

Public Works Department
City of Selah
113 W. NachesAve.

Selah, WA 98942

Dear Mr. Durant:

Attached is the Preliminary Plat and Environmental Checklist for the Subdivision of Somerset II
(Tax Parcel 181426-4405&44021) located on Herlou Drive and the extension of LyieLoop Road
in the City of Selah.

The parcel contains 4.71 Ac and are subdivided into 18 single family lots, and 2 - two family
residential lots. The Ordinance amending the Selah Municipal Code, Chapter 10.28 040(1}
allowing the property to be subdivided in this manner became effective on January 20, 2015.

The average lot size is8570 SFand has a density of 4.67 units/Ac or 4.25 Lots/Ac.

All lots are at least 8000 SFwith Lots 9 and 16 containing an extra 10% area at the intersection
of Herlou Drive and Lyie Loop Road. Lot 17 is 12,298 SFto accommodate a suitable building site
on that lot.

Lots 17,18,19,20 and partially lots 13 and 14 are served by a private access road easement.
This easement will serve fire access requirements and utilities. The fire access turn around will
be 26' wide and the balance of the easement will be 20' wide. The access easement, as shown,

will be paved and will be for the exclusive use of the aforementioned lots and shall be
maintained by the owners of these lots. There will be "No Parking" on the fire access easement
(cross-hatched on the Preliminary Plat).

The subdivision will be completed in three phases. Lots 1,2,3,4,5,11,12, and 13 will be in
Phase 1. Lots 6, 7,8,9,10,14,15 and 16 will be in Phase 2. Lots 17,18,19, and 20 will be in
Phase 3.

.../2



The locations of the two family residential lots were chosen for the following reasons:

1) These iots (19 and 20) are at the lowest point topographicaily on the property, thus marking
them the least visible.

2) This location places these lots furthest from Somerset I, the closest single family lot
subdivision in the CitvofSelah.

3) When lots 11,12 and 13 Phase Iare developed and built upon, the structures on lots 19 and
20 will be virtually invisible from LyieLoop Road.

4) Placing these 2 - two family residential lots along Herlou Drivewill have them facing the
single-family homes across Herlou Drive. Entering on Herlou Drive, these two family units
would immediately become visible.

5) This location will have the back of the two family residential lots facing the backs of the lots
on Weems Way. The houses on Weems Way are approximately 30' to 35' higher in elevation
than these 2 - two family residential lots.

Water and sewer design along LyIe Loop Road were approved by Mr. Joe Henne, Public Works
Director, on 3/29/10. Aportion of these utilities have been installed and approved bythe Public
Works Department.

Street and drainage design for LyIe Loop Road were approved by Mr. Joe Henne, Public Works
Director, on 5/25/12. Portions of the road grading and drainage have been completed.

Att: Preliminary Plat
Environmental Checklist

ZUKER-SAMPLE LLC

March 17,2015



CITY OF SELAH

PRELIMINARY PLAT

APPLICATION FORM

FILE NO;
DATE FEE PAID:

SEPA:

RECVD BY:

NSTRUCTIONS PLEASE READ PRIOR TO COMPLETING APPLICATION

Application and preliminary plat must be accompanied by:

Filingfee of $400 plus $40 per lot.

Completed environmental checklist plus $275 fee.

Title report (must be cun'ent and reflect the undersigned signatures)

One 11x17 reduced copy of the preliminary plat

Complete and full legal description of the property

Answer all questions completely. Ifyou have questions about this form or the application process, call the Selah Planning
Department at (509) 698-736
Remember to bring all necessary attachments and the required filingfee when the application is submitted.

The Citywill not accept an applicationfor processing unless it is complete and the filing fees paid. Filing fees are non-
refundable

NAME OF SUBDIVISION:

NUMBER OF LOTS: ZO
TYPE OF BUILDINGS TO BE
CONSTRUCTED:

AVERAGE LOT SIZE IN S.F.:

PROPERTY OWNERS AUTHORIZATION:

I hereby authorize the submittal of the preliminary plat the City of Selah for approval.

I understand that conditions of approval, such as dedication of rightof-way and easements, restrictions on the type of buildings
that may beconstructed, and access restrictions from public street^ may be imposed asa part of preliminary plat approval and
that failureto meet these conditionsmayresujt in denial of the final plat.

Signature of Property Owner(s):_
' DATE'

ADDRESS:.

TELEPPHONE

•r>J /V7X 7a} ft
HOME

signature of Contract Purchaser(s)/Developer(s)

ADDRESS:

TELEPPHONE: WORK: HOME:

ZONING CLASSIFICATION:

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN DESIGNATION:

YAKIMA COUNTY ASSESSOR'S TAX PARCEL NO

An/^tteo) ISl4-Z(>-f-'^0C:S^§ADt\
Revised 09/24/13



CITY OF SELAH
Planning Department
113 South Second Street

Selah, Vfastuttgton 99942

Phone 569^99-7365

Fax 569-699-7372

VARIANCE PROCEDURES

A variance is a means by which citizensare granted modification from the strict application of specific
provisions of the Zoning Code due to a hardship beyond the control of the applicant. Variances do not
permit property to be used in a manner other than provided in the ZoningCode. This process is intended
to review situations where uniform zoning applicationwould unduly burden one propertymore than the
other properties in the area.

EXAMPLE OF VARIANCE

When a portion ofa loi is too steep to conslnicl anything on, and
the only way to build wouldbe to use a poition of a requitedyard
or setback.

VARIANCE CRITERIA

The City Council shallhave authorityto grant a variance
where practical difHiculties, unnecessary hardship, or results
inconsistent with the general purpose of the Zoning Code
might result from the strict application ofcertain
provisions.

Everyvarianceis evaluated by criteria listedin the Zoning
Code. Variancesmay be authorizedwhen literaland strict
interpretation wouldcauseundueor necessaryhardship.

A hardshipis nota problem that youcreatedyourself. For
instance, if you buildyourhousein such a manner that you
cannot expand the living roomwithout encroaching ona
required side yard,youhavecreatedthat situation.

Hardship speaks to whether you would bedeprived of
property rights common to other properties in thegeneral
vicinity and zoning district

PROCEDURES IN THE VARIANCE PROCESS

Step I: Contact the City Planneror City Supervisorto
discussyour variance request. Although the staffcannot
speculate on thesuccess of you application, theymaybe
helpful in providingyou with past history.

Step 2: Preparean application for variance.

1) TheCityPlanner hastheforms and will assist with
any additional information needed.

2) Deliver to the City Plannerwhere you will be asked to
paya filing feeto defray processing andhearing costs.

Step 3: Your application will be processed by the City as
follows:

a. A public hearing will be held

b. You will be notified of the exact time and place of the
hearing.

c. Newspapernotice published prior to the hearingalong
with notice to adjacent property owners within 600
feet.

The Planning Corrunission will hold the hearing, review
exhibits, receive testimony and recommend to the Council
approval, approval with conditions or denial..

The Commission recommendation will be considered by
the Council at a public meeting. The Council may adopt,
remand or reject the Commission recommendation.



CITY OF SELAH

VARIftMCE APPLICATIGM

APPLICATIOK REOUIREHEMTS

Date Submitted/Received By

Non-Refundable Application Fee -

ZUZ— site Plan drawn to scale .

* ALL APPLICATION REQUIREMENTS MUST BE COMPLETED BEFORE THE APPLICATION IS ACCEPTED BY THE CITY.

1. NAME OF APPLICANT;

9 nuol OB» y^vnrijaAStii scfffunct xna /iirrao

74--7ADDRESS OF APPLICANT:

^ / Signature /
yrt^r,'^c9yqio^l-Sd'3.TELEPHONE: WORK

NAME OF LEGAL PROPERTY OWNER:

(If different from applicant)
ADDRESS:

Signature

TELEPHONE: WORK HOME

Aajt> tKil f: imP Roa-Q f=:Y-rfui^ir)A/.
r.n\^n-AiA-)< 4-71!

'PAei-iMl/OAfi.'J P//FT

3. GENERAL LOCATION OF PROPERTY INCLUDING STREET ADDRESS;

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY;

5. ZONE CLASSIFICATION

SUMMARY OP PROPOSED

; { TAX PARCEL NO.

VARIANCE;_ A- TTAcue.b '

7. SPECIFIC REASONS JUSTIFYING THE VARIANCE

ADD ADDITIONAL SHEETS IF NECESSARY



FOR OFFICE USE ONLY

VARIANCE

Scheduled Before: Planning Commission CityCouncil_

Public Hearing: Planning Commission CityCouncil_

Publication Date:



SITEPLANREQUIREMENTS

FORVARIANCEAPPLICATIONS

1.Allexistingorproposedstructxiresonthepropertyandtheirsetbacksfromall
propertylines.

2.Thelocationandwidthofalladjacentright-of-waysoralleys.

3.Thelocationofallrequiredoff-streetparkingspacesand/oroff-streetloading
berths.

4.Alleasementsandtheirwidthsontheproperty.

5.BeDrawntoascale

6.Themapsizeshallbe8M"x11"or8M"x14"

7.NorthArrowwithgraphicscale.



VARIANCE PROPOSAL - SOMERSET II

This proposal is to access Lots 17,18,19,20 and partially lots 13 and 14 with a private access road, to
include fire access and utility installation.

The City of Selah has a minimum lot size of 8000 SF in the R-1 Zone as long as there is less than a 10%
slope to the property. This requirement has been met. Easement areas are not deducted from the size
or area of thek JhJ: yusf ^£SLd^(
Per Selah's subdivision design standards (d) (4) "provided, that private access streets may be authorized
where there will be no adverse effect on future traffic circulation of neighboring parcels". The proposed

private road meets that criteria.

Because of the land configuration the area north of Lyie Loop Road cannot be extended to the north

property line and meet the 2.5 times ratio of lot width to lot length without creating +15,000 to 20,000

SF lots. The rear of these long, narrow lots would remain largely undeveloped and full of weeds.

The proposed access would serve no more than 7 residential units and would not extend outside the

boundaries of the proposed Subdivision Plat.

ZUKER-SAMPLE LLC

March 17, 2015

t ^ ^



)
7I.2S'

sdpT&r.

TA.Br

PRELIMINARYPLAT

OF

SOMERSETII 1/2OFTHESE1/4OFSECTION26.TOWNSHIPUNORTH.ftAN(£16EAST.WM
CITYOFSELAH,YAKIMACOUNTY.WASHINGTON

LOTis

ftWftlt
,ccftnji

<«r<

-~J.OTU

N69'M'jr.t

KSesS'84*E

\
LOTn

V(TWOFAMLY
FOCCNTIALXOn

\Mss%r.\
ITn«AWAV^

sai.ia'

lOtWO*

\8006sr.

/

LOT"40
rtwoFAM.r

14/4eoMRsee.».
T.14N.R-lfi&Mi

scoMitsecze.
T.14H.R-18C.Ml

LECALDESCftfTIONS

PAftCaA

meB0U1KHALTofIXNOftmiCStgUAATCA
ormcsouTHCAsrouartdicfme
SCUnCASTOJWTBtAWTHESOUTHUOrSCT
orTHATp»f(TarjxnoathnMforih£
NORTHHAl/crTHESOmCASTOUAAIEJTOf
mcsouTiosrojartcrltthc«cstcri>c
U4MurERALOfmeMiocs-seumcanau
NSeCnCN2A.TO«*<SHR14NQITTH.RANeeTfi
EAST.KHj

TCCeTHCRMTHim1.SBAWAyANCA.AS
aeccAosm<^ujicicrpiats,pace*y,
RCCCRDScrVAlQyACOUNTY.WA^OIOi.AND
THATrCRTtCNCTVACATED<MHTCFWAT
ACCRUINGTHOTtTORICCRDS9TR£aSONOF
RCSOUITTONMjyaen«60--2007.recordco
OCTCCKRn.MQ7.UNOOTAUDTICnSni£
Nuweoi7W4SU;

occtPTeeewNNoatapontcntheeast
UNeCPSAJOSECnONM,AOCSTANCECF
997.MFETTNORTHOfTHESOUTHCASTCOVCt
THCKOP:THEMENCRTHVEST370FEET
TOTHEC84TSTLtCOFSA40CANU.AWTHE
TMjEPOMTcreeaiNHO:thencsnorth
0*48EASTeoPEET;THEMESCCTHSSW1CST
180THEMESOUTH7*8EAST60FETT;
7HOKSscum«r3«EASTTOTXTMJEPONT
orBCCSMNe:

AWCECSPTTHATPQATIEKIIWCHT>WTHE
piATorsowoTsni.recmoedunocr
AUOITCRSruNUWSS7184172,PCCOnSCP
YAFiyACOUNTr,WAStMCTCK

PARCaB

THEWEST400FCSTOFTHEHORmHtiFCP
THEMCMTHHUSCPTHESCUTHEASTOUARTE?
OFTICSOUTHEASTCUAATD)OFSECTION26.
T0W9<S>14NCWTHRiMIGEIBEAST,WA:
KEPTTMscum10FEETVXKtf.

^It1T7JT

134.1S

8mtny«
-I27S

LOT*>

\

CURVETABLE
OAMtMAAeiAuUMMtApaonmwmmmmmio«nCWBRA(UBA0t«UWtMTMBWlo<aa8aoNMmcaaimh

oaaso*BHVmmMBAi•f7A)mmm*»lBYrMBAHit•'VJBUl**xa

«ay%mHHnrllO»7r*rT»*cmmm11146j'*r»r4A»«ir•TlWI*'«68*

ammrarr71•»Mli•7rv7«*•TV67CtO•7160ir>*YrB11BVit•BOYIB'•U6B

c«mm9WNJB46CB•'nTW•noiaiHft6Brvy•IKBMBBVIf*••A*4

sTUB•mm*n7,Y«707NttiraraNMeiiaaecIBMIB'60flan•BiVbT*•mm

aAB4BmyvIBIIiBBBauvca*«16(1cil006nrzr•M«>B•*nnf•t4a

CTza«BTtr*i**•tmT"V647eift1780BWIT•rwvTfami

LOT^
•"•aaeisr.

PWVATCCASQCNTNOTt

TWFMVAIEACCESSAWUTUTYEASCHTS
aaejustrcnDCecMTTAWUSorlots
IX14.17,10.IS*20

OWNER/DeVELOPen

MTTSANUntt
zum-s«iip\cUJL
PAtax247

sum.uMiiciaHii«as«2

SUnvrrOR/ENGMER

ROtAROL6CM1.Pto
FUAD0<DM«3*SUPiCtWS
1t20VESTuccmANCNJC

PLSA
ENOCEM-SUftVmMS-PtiMMG

TOOWESTlOCCENAVCMJC

YAXiU.VASWffirCN90002

(9DSS7S-t990

ffi
PHFTWARYPIAT

OFPMKC2.NO'S.18142S•4400894*021

mS»*XDFOR

ZUKER-SAyPLE.LLC
S1/2.a1/4,Stt.26.T.14M.H-18Ejm|

"BrI801

8/vaDia

.09199



>

<M
On

loT /7

X

A/

to ±

ACC£S5 ^
<^Ur//./Ty ^^Aier

hOi

/"--30

ecf/io/y6

Zooo ^/r

6CfUD/A/(Si
BA/VCLOf^^
SSooiSFy :

<f>' 8

_ __ _i4^_
UrulfS ^A'$B

It

rVO PA/liy/A/G, JlON^

11

LO/ /g' |V)

BU/j^DfA/C^

S^-OO

prtee^ Access^nL / ry

B/JytiofiB
Zooo sP

Lot

t'

lOT i<f

BUiLl> /A/^
€fy V€Lo pB

'^UiLptA^Of
ewBi-ope

/^<or /3
N— N

XW.<f loop TSOPT) - So' BjDM.

e^cH mrroHAyg z P/\&kiH6. <.?ACSs adp 7.C_A&.&iPii.A(S,s
fA!Mr£.Access, jSoap ppATM.e'&ciUi/i/s UneorloT/S, t^./tlZ.J'i'^ZO
Mfi/AJTSAJAZ/Ig' UJUL BeBVTMe otOAJ^/tKe/^TH^^e IaT< ^

lorzo i!o

( Z'CfA)rn>^

4.
• >•

JL
M

Ui

Z' Z

r

> i\

.1^
Vl
IN

^AJB'yZojPS

Z7So

Bu/tp/zJe,
BlJi/st£>P£

1/y'
->

\lAP)AAJCg PHoPO^AL.
<Q/V\t?/2.'<^-riT

MAR.cn n^-?aiK'



FILE NUMBER: '•^•q V
DATE FEE PAID

RECEIVED BY

FEE: $275

CITY OF SELAH
PLANNING DEPARTMENT

113 WEST NACHES AVENUE

SELAH, WA 98942
PHONE: (509)698-7365 FAX (509) 698-7372

ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST

INTRODUCTION

The State Environmental Policy Act (SEPA), Chapter 43.21C ROW, requires all governmental agencies to consider the environmental
in^acts of a proposalbefore making decisions. An environmental inqtact statement(EIS) must be prepared for all proposalswith
probable significant adverse impacts on the quality of theenvironment. Thepurpose of thischecklist is to provide information tohelp
you and the agency identifyimpacts fi-om yourproposal (and to reduce or avoid impacts from theproposal if it can be done) andto
help the agency decide whether an EIS is required.

This environmental checklist asks you to describe some basic information about your proposal. Governmentagencies use this
checklist to determine whether the environmental impacts of your proposal are significant, requiring preparation ofan EIS. Answer
the questions briefly, with the most precise information known, or give the best description you can.

You must answer each questionaccuratelyand carefully, to the best of yourknowledge. In most cases,you shouldbe able to answer
the questions from your own observations or project plans without the need to hire experts. If you really do not know the answer, or if
a questiondoes not apply to your proposal, write "do not know"or "doesnot apply". Complete answers to the questions now may
avoid unnecessary delays later.

-Some questions ask aboutgovernmental regulations, such as zoning,- shoreline, and landmarkdesignations. Answerthese questions if
you can. If you have problems, the governmental agencies can assist you.

The checklist questions apply to all parts of your proposal, even ifyou plan to do them over a period of time or on different parcels of
land. Attach any additional information that will help describe your proposal or its environmental effects. The agency to which you
submit this checklist;mayask you to explain your answersor provide additional informationreasonably related to determining if there
may be significant adverse inpacts.

Complete this checklist for nonprojectproposals,even thoughquestions may be answered"doesnot apply". IN ADDITION, complete
the SUPPLEMENTAL SHEET FOR NONPROJECT ACTIONS (part D).

For nonproject actions, the references in the checklist to the words "project applicant," and "property of site" should be read as
"proposal," "proposer," and "affectedgeographicarea," respectively.

BACKGROUND

1. Name of proposed project, if applicable:

2. Name of applicant: CL

Address and phone number of applicant and contact person; ^^ t

Date checklist submitted: '3/•2-^//5^ —

5. Agency requiring checklist: CITY OF SELAH

6. Proposed timing or schedule (including phasing, ifapplicable): ^ ^^
, 7^/MSe S -

1

3.

4.



7. Do you have any plans for future additions, expansion, orfurther activity related to orconnected with this proposal? If
yes, explain. O

8. List any environmental information you know about thathas been prepared, or will be prepared, directly related to
adspropcMi ^AOCO/O

9. Do you know whether applications arepending for governmental approvals or other proposals directly affecting the
property covered by your proposal? Ifyes, explain.

10. List any mvernm^ approvalsw permits that will be neededfipr your proposal, if known. ^ / A/ AT
Loiomxisj Tfr/i'O ^uBPii/iiion

11. Give brief, complete description ofyourproposal, including theproposed uses and thesize oftheproject andsite. There
are several questions later in thischecklist that askyouto describe certain aspects ofyourprraosal. You do notneed to
repeat thoseanswerson this page. ^_

12.

project, including a streetaddress, if any,and section, township, and range, if known. If a proposal would occur over a
range of area, provide the range or boundaries of thesite(s). Provide a legal description, site plan, vicinity map, and
topographic map, if reasonably available. While you should submit any plans required by the agency, you are not

(

13.

TO BE COMPLETED BY APPUCANT ^ 7^EV>5.UAT10N FOR AGENCY USE
ONLY

B. Environmental Elements

Earth

a. General descriptionof the site (circleone): Flat/roUingJhilly,steep slopes, mountainous, other

-

b. What is thesteepest slope onthe site(approximate percentslope)? Tf

c. What general types of soils are found on the site (for example, clay, sand, gravel, peat, muck)? If you know the
classification ofagn^tural soi^^c^^^j^ prime farmland.

d. Are there surface indications or history ofimstable soils in the immediate vicinity? Ifso, describe.
/^O

e. Describe the purpose, type, and approximate quantities of any filing or grading proposed. Indicate source of fill.
di4^nr/T/^s u/OKi^ou^JO ,Lor

f. Could erosion occur » a result ofclearing, construction, or use? Ifso, generally describe.
m/ aJo/z.

g. About what percent of the sitewill be coveredwith impervioussurfaces after project construction (for example, asphalt
or buildings)? A-O-^O

h. Proposed measures to reduce or control erosion, or other impacts to the earth, if any:

^iLT coinPaoh'oi^.
A/uv sroCiM

2. Air

What typesof emissions to the air wouldresult from the proposal(i.e., dust, automobile, odors, industrial wood smoke)
during construction and when the project is completed? If any, generally describe and giveapproximatequantities if

COfJ-^mucT/cJAj eciu<Pfne''Ori -
Are thereanyoff.eite sources ofemissloiis or odor that mayaffectyour proposal? If so,generally describe. ^

NO



c.

Water

a.

4. Plants

Proposed measures to reduce or control emissions or other impacts to air, if any:

OPB'aj S(T<^ ^

Surface:

1)

2)

3)

4)

Is there any surface water body on or in the immediate vicinity of the site (including year-round and seasonal
streams, saltwater, lakes, ponds, wetlands)? If yes, describe type and provide names. If appropriate, state what
stream or river it flows into.

Will the project require any work over, in, or adjacent to (within 200 feet) the described waters? If yes, please
describe and attach available plans, ^

Estimate the amount of fill and dredge material that would be placed in or removed from surface water or
wetlands and indicate the area of the site that would be affected. Indicate the source of fill material.

f^ope
Will the proposal require surface water withdrawals or diversions? Give general description, purpose, and
approximate quantities if known. /\l0

Does the proposal lie within a 100-year floodplain? If so, note location on the site plan.
HO

Does the proposal involve any discharges of waste materials to surface waters? If so, describe the type of waste
and anticipated volume ofdischarge. ^O

5)

6)

Ground:

1) Will groundwatcr be withdrawn, or will water be discharged to groundwater? Give general description,
purpose, and approximate quantities if known. ^ Q

2) Describe waste material that will be discharged into the ground from septic tanks or other sources, if any (for
example: Domestic sewage, industrial, containing the following chemicals...; agricultural; etc.). Describe the
general size of the system, the number of such systems, the number of houses to be served (if applicable),or the
number of animals or humans the system(s) are expected to serve.

Water Runoff (including storm water):

1) Describe the source of runoff (including storm water) and method of collection and disposal, if any (including
quantities, if known). Where will this water flow? Will this water flow into other waters? If so, describe.

-AJOP^To
2) Could waste materials enter ground or surface waters? If so, generally describe.

Proposed measures to reduce or control surface, ground, and runoff water impacts, if any:

As ^TAT^'D

a. Check or circle types of vegetation found on the site:

deciduous trees: alder, maple, aspen, other
evergreen tree: fir, cedar, pine, other



shrubs
grass

pasture
crop or grain
wet soil plants: cattail, buttercup, bulrush, skunk cabbage, other
water plants: water lily, eelgra^milfoil, other
other types of vegetation 5

b. What kind of and amount ofvegetation will be removed or altered?

Kyio-'so'no
c. List threatenedor endangered species knownto be on or near the site.

d. Proposed landscaping, useof nativeplants,or other measuresto preserveor enhancevegetation on the site,if any:

S. Animals

a. Circle any birds and animals, which have been observed on or near the site or are known to be on or near the site:

Bird:(Mwlyheron, eagIe,(^ongbird^ther:
Mammll^aeer, bear, ell^ neaverTother:
Pish: bass, salmon, trout, herring, shellfish, other:

b. List any threatened or endangered speciesknown to be on or near the site.

c. Is the site part of a migration route? If so, explain.
A/O

d. Proposed measures to preserve or enhance wildlife, if any:

aAoa)(^

Energy and Natural Resources

a. What kinds of energy (electric, natural gas,oil,wood stove, solar)will be used to meetthe completed project's energy
needs? Describe whether it will be used for heating, manufacturing, etc. ^J. /~/2. tC-fT K/

b. Wouldyourproject affectthe potentialuseof solar enei^ by adjacentproperties?If so,generally describe.
Uo

c. What kind of energy conservation features are included in the plans of this proposal? List other proposed measuresto
reduce or control energy impacts, if any. " T YPI

AdsA d ry oF
1. Environmental Health

a. Are thereany environmental health hazards, including exposure to toxic chemicals, risk of fireand explosion, spiil, orhazardous waste, that could occur as aresult o^^roposal? If so, describe.
1) Describe special emergency services^th^n^t^ required.
2) Proposed measures to reduce or control environmental health hazards, if any: ^

•j)usr coutkol^
:ilLT

b. Noise

1) What types of noise exist in the area which may affect your project (for example: traffic, equipment,
construction, operation, other)? ^ Oji)^



2) What types and levels of noise would be created byor associated with the project on a short-term or a long-
term basis (for example: trafllc, construction, operation, other)? Indicate what hours noise would come from
the site. CO Aj^VUXCTi'OfO AU/OO^ /<:l

3) Proposed measures to reduce or control noise Impacts, if any:

/Vt^^/OcT
8. Land and Shoreline Use

a. What is the current use of the site and adjaceny)ropertles? _

b. Has the site been used for agriculture? If so, describe.
/J

c. Describe any structures on the site.

d. Will any structures be demolished? If so, what?

e. What Is the current zoning classification of the site?

f. What is the current comprehensive plan designation of the site?
Loiv

g. If applicable, what is the current shoreline master program designation of the site?

icaocuAj
h. Has any part of the site been classifiedas an "environmentally sensitive" area? If so specify.

/^o
i. Approximately how many people would reside or work In the completed project?

C S"
j. Approximately how may people would the completed project displace?

AJ^/JcS'
k. Proposed measures to avoid or reduce displacement impacts, if any:

A/
1. - Proposed measures to ensure the proposal Is compatible with existing and projected land uses and plans, Ifany:

AJCAJG

9. Housing

a. Approximatelyhow many units wouldbe provided, Ifany? Indicate whether high, middle, or low-income housing.

b. Approximately how many units, If any, would be eliminated? Indicate whether high, middle, or low-Income bousing.
K/O /UcF

c. Proposed measures to reduce or control housing Impacts, if aiw:

UOAJC

10. Aesthetics

a. What is the tallest height of any proposed structure(s), not including antennas; what is the principal exterior building
materiaKs) proposed? 2,^ ^- ]SCjClc. ^^ T^CC£2j UJ MV

b. What views In the Immediate vicinity would be altered or obstructed?

A/O
c. Proposed measures to reduce or control aesthetic impacts, if any:

11. Light and Glare

a. What type of light or glare wijUheproposal produce? What time of day would it mainlyoccur?
^ AiCFTs' -Ahr

b. Could light or glare from the finished project be a safety hazard or interfere with views?

A/O



c. What existing ofr>site sources^of^jj^^^^Iare may affect your proposal?
d. Proposed measures to reduce or cratrol lightand glareimpacts, ifany:or cqptroi ught a

AfOhJ€'
12. Recreation

a. Whatdesignated and informal recreational opportunities are in theimmediate vicinity?
^ 7^/L^V/Sb. Would the proposed project displace an^xisting recreational uses? If so, describe.
c. Proposed measures to reduce or control impacts on recreation, including recreation opportunities tobeprovided bythe

project or applicant, if any:

13. Historic and Cultural Preservation

a. Are there any places or objects listed on,or proposed for, national, state,or local preservation registers known to beon
the site? Ifso, generally describe. A/O

b. Generally describe any landmarksor evidence ofhistoric, archaeological, scientific, or cultural importance known to be
on or next to the site. 0

c. Proposed measurers to reduce or control impacts, if any:

NOK)(B
14. Transportation

a. Identify public streets and highways serving the site, and describe proposed access to the existing street system.Show
o^te plans, if any. ^Cce^S IS A H^AILOU "D \/(f A T/^

A-^op Aoa-P
b. Is dte currently served by public transit? ITnot, whatis the approximate distance to the nearest transit stop?

Ciry OF
How many parking spaces would the completedproject have? How many would the project eliminate?

"I Aif/Puts VOAJe
Will the proposal require any new roads or streets, or intprovements to existing roads or stree^ not including
driveways? Ifso, generally describe (indicate whether public or private). 717)/U o jp "T"

fA'Anoo oFlyceu?oAAovr^i(/A7F'f^^pf^T(^AJoeTH
e. Willthe project use (oroccurin theunmediate vicinity of)water, rail, or air transportation? Ifso, generallydescribe.

f. How many vehicular trips per day would be generated ^ the completed project? If known, indicate when peak
vota^swouido^ur. 7:£^a/Ui /ku Sf?opt\

g. Proposed measures to reduce or control transportation impacts, if any:

13. Public Services

a. Would the project result in an increased need for public services (for example: fire protection, policeprotection, health

Pu^ra PfpuLmou
e. Proposed measures to reduce or control direct impacts on public services, if any.

N0ue

i.

16. Utilities

a. Circle utilities currently available at the site^ectricity, natural gas, water, refuse service, telephone, sanitary sewer,
septic system, other. — ^



b. Describe (he utilities that are proposed for the project, the utility providing the service, and the general construction
activities on the site or in the immediate vicinity which might be needed.

C.SIGNATURES

The above answers are (rue and complete to the best of my knowledge. I understand that the lead agency is relying on them to
make its decision.

roponent

S/n//^

Form



D. SUPPLEMENTAL SHEET FORNONPROJECT ACTIONS (do not use this sheet for project actions)

Because these questions arevery general, itmaybehelpfiil to readtheminconjunction with thelistof theelements of theenvironment

/Tien answering these questions, be aware ofthe extent the proposal, orthe types ofactivities likely toresult from the proposal, would affect
the item ata greater intensity orata fester rate than ifthe proposal were not implemented. Respond briefly and ingeneral terms.

1. How would the proposal be likely to increase discharge to water; emissions to air; production, storage, or release of toxic or
Wdou^utetanc«;orproto^^^^ S0UJf

A-iJt>COKiSTHc.rioP
Proposed measures to avoid or reduce such increases are:

A/0.fJ(£
2. How would the proposal be likely to affect plants, animals, flsh, or marine life?

IZc^o/'Al OF iMT> UWesiAA-Si^ S.
Tq -BcFeCcAcep 3q LAKWjr/i^, Bvsf«S-A<iFtOide.Zs.

Proposed measures to protect or conserve plants, animals, fish, or marine life are?

AS <7nr^ AISCV6^

3. How would the proposal be likely t^eplete enei^ or natural resources?
/VO/Oe

Proposed measures to protect or conserve energy and natural resources are:
A/OAJ^

4. How would theproposal be likely to use or affect environmentally sensitive areas or areas designated (oreligible or under study)
for governmental protection; such as parks, wilderness, wild and scenic rivers, threatened or endangered species habitat,
historic or cultural sites, wetlands, floodplain, or prime fannlands? ^

Proposed measures to protect such resources or to avoid or reduce impacts are: ^ C)KJ(^

5. How would the proposal be likely to affect land and shoreline use, including whether it would allow or encourage land or
shoreline uses incompatible with existing plans? ^ ^ ^

Proposed measures to avoid or reduce shoreline and land use impacts are:

6. How would the proposal be likely to increase demands on transportation orpublic services and utilities?

Proposed measures to reduce or respond to such demand(s) are:

A/OiOG
7. Identify, ifpossible, wtother the proposal may conflict with local, state, or federal laws orrequirements fortheprotection ofthe

environment. f j ( C<0(J PLiCX'



Determination of Nonsignificance

1. Description of Proposal: ''Somerset IF Subdivide 4.71 acres into 20 lots, 18 lots for
detached single family residences and two lots designated for two-family dwellings.
Four lots, includingtwo designated two-familyresidential lots are to be accessed
from a private road, requiring a subdivision variance. Average proposed lotsize is
8,578 square feet. The project is to beserved bymunicipal sewer and water.

2. Proponent: Zucker-Sample, LLC
PO Box 247

Selah, WA 98942

3. Location of Proposal including street address, if any: Between Herlou Drive and
Lyle Loop Road 200 feet south of the intersection ofHerlou Drive and Weems Way
and 100 feet north of the intersection of Herlou Drive and Lyle Loop Road in the City
of Selah. (Yakima County Parcel Number: 181426-44005 & 44021).

4. Lead Agency: City of Selah

5. The lead agency for this proposal hasdetermined thatit will nothave a probable
significant adverse impact on the environment. AnEnvironmental Impact Statement
(BIS) is not required under RCW 43.21C.030(2)(c). This decisionwas made after
review ofa completed environmental checklist and other information on file with the
leadagency. This information is available to the publicon request.

This DNS is issued using the optional DNS process in WAC 197-11-355; there is no
fiirther comment period on the DNS.

6. Appeals: You may appeal thisdetermination to the Selah City Council by filing a
writtenappealwith the required $300.00filing fee at the Selah PublicWorks
Department, 222 S. Rushmore Road no later than 5:00 p.m. on May 14,2015. You
should be prepared to make specific factual objections. Contact thePlanning
Department at 698-7365 to read or ask about the procedures for SEPAappeals.

7. Responsible Official: Donald Wayman

8. Position / Title: City Administrator

9. Address: 222 S. RushmoreRoad, Selah, Washington98942

10. Date: May 7,2015

11. Signature



MAr?

STATE OF WASHINGTON

DEPARTMENT OF ECOLOGY

15 W Yakima Ave, Siv 200 • Yakima. WA 98902-3452 • (509) 375-2490

April 24,2015

Thomas Duram

Selah Planning Department
222 South Rushmore Road

Selah, WA 98942

Re; Somerset II

Mr. Duranl:

Thank you for the opportunity to comment during the optional determination of
nonsignificance process for the subdivision of 4.71 acres into 20 lots, proposed by
Zucker-Sample, LLC. We have reviewed the documents and have the following
comments.

TOXICS CLEAN-UP

Based upon the historical agricultural use of this land, there is a possibility the soil
contains residual concentrations of pesticides. Ecology recommends that the soils be
sampled and analyzed for lead and arsenic, and for organochlorine pesticides. If these
contaminants are found at concentrations above the Model Toxics Control Act cleanup
levels Ecology recommends that potential buyers be notified of their occurrence.

If you have any questions or would like to respond to these Toxics Clean-up comments,
please contact Valerie Bound at (509) 454-7886 or email at valerie.bound@.ecv.wa.gov.

WATER QUALITY

Project with Potential to Discharge Off-Site

The NPDES Construction Stormwatcr General Permit from the Washington State
Department of Ecology is required if there is a potential for stormwaler discharge from a
construction site with disturbed ground. This permit requires that the SEPA checklist
fully disclose anticipated activities including building, road construction and utility
placements. Obtaining a permit is a minimum of a 38 day process and may take up to 60
days if the original SEPA docs not disclose all proposed activities. . n

t
u

7



Mr. Durant

April 24, 2015
Page 2

The permit requires that Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (Erosion Sediment
Control Plan) is prepared and implemented for all permitted constructionsites. These
control measures must be able to prevent soil from being carried into surface water (this
includes storm drains) by stormwater runoff. Permit coverage and erosion control
measures must be in place prior to any clearing, grading or construction.

More information on the stormwater program may be found on Ecology's stormwater
website at: http://AVWw.ecv.wa.gov/programs/wQ/stormwater/construction/. Please submit
an application or contact Ray Latham at the Department ofEcology, (509) 575-2807,
with questions about this permit.

Sincerely,

Gwen Clear

Environmental Review Coordinator

Central Regional Office
(509) 575-2012
crosepacoordinator@ecv.wa.gov

4137



April 20, 2015

Selah Planning Department
222 S Rushmore Rd

Selah WA 98942

Re: File No 912.42.15-02, 915.42.15-01, 971.45.15-04—^"Somerset 11" Zucker Sample,
LLC

Dear Selah Planning Department,

This is my first attempt at submitting a response to your notice regarding the above
request.

Iwould like to first explain who I am. My name is Michelle Bannister and I currently
reside at 31 Lyie Loop, Selah WA. I have been a home owner at this address since
2002.

Although this is not the first attempt to change the original plan for the above mentioned
property this is by far the better option proposed by Mr. Roy Sample and Mr. Zucker.

My opposition to this proposal would be the need to put "Rentals" within the
development. I do not understand the thought process behind the proposal and it just
makes no sense. As a homeowner I have a few concerns as to whom would be the

landlord(s) and who would ensure that my neighborhood would not be negatively
affected by this type of housing.

It is my understanding that our "Rental" homes/apartments/duplexes" is over half the
entire population within the "City Limits" of Selah and that frankly is mind blowing!
Please explain who benefits from all the "Rental" properties that continue to be built
within our city?

I feel that it is the responsibility of the "Developer" and the City of Selah Planning
Commission to build a "Quality" development that will contribute in a complementary
way. I am not against growth in this city but I truly believe that the process and those
who are "In charge" of the process have lost their ability to do the right thing.

Sincerely,

Michelle Bannister



• ~72)/^ 7~)c//2a/ic/- SeJdLh j-/-u
^paw<&oyu^& hJ?

r\

±:^p. -nAJ-id^d^ iii. A/07

9
I^JL /uJiO^yz (LiMJ?

Mp^/^7/^ \i^

Urhjp. J:Jj^Jp.\S^pyJ?r<P'j/ /> /j^s>P7£P^
Um^i^ ,flAiP/y^ ,l/xpjh--/?^, rA I:?^4 '̂, L^yiJi^

V y/>9Y? /.^?y Qp^s-u^ ? i2jciz::^
V /jjp. jL

pp „

i OlC'iJy9zy>yp.p2lyy?^

_lmLd£ALd£^

i/i/^Aopy^pg 'Od!np^o6 /iL^pz^ . ^
{J^Txdl^ -/tHyJyjASippypy-^p r^J JAyJ

' ^

y

TJhjL' ^AiMy}0.. A/jyyy^^my^ (Ojpj 7/d24Jc'€Pu^

7%/ 7 /M^tcay^J hlAA^ypen /jJ/Jt/J 0^ OAAAA^^pZyrdi^^iiTh ^
^ Oe^P2^.l££J^ L^MpAy-y^y^y/ Al^yyy.typpy?^^ -^pi':^ (9y2£<D

^ Qjy^-^ iAy. ATpU^A
^AlffJ ljJiiy.y9t^ p '̂Jh'y
.•^ /M(iJ^Ay^.jnrAj-ruyd/tp dJiast , jikp j?^jA0pS-6Z-3 .

vfMJAAj/JypjJ,/ '̂k'j thoM/lyiiAiyJ^ /lUX:^^-
^ (Jmyypjy^l A) ^^jLxJi rx Ajzyu-yutr-^ —

fe*A.'i-V fZ.



r\

f-v

j&bm

(S)

i^^^mAAc^^..

liiJj£.6D.^l4M^. .QtO_.
r?. I ct& Ljt^zc^

,/2^Mid:2^

thA^/Jd.- - _.



CITY OF SELAH
Public Works Department

222 South Riishinore Road

SELAH. WASHINGTON 98942

Phone 509-698-7365

Fax 509-698-7372

NOTICE OF DEVELOPMENT APPLICATION «&ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

OPPORTUNITY TO PROVIDE COMMENTS

NOTICE OF HEARING EXAMINER OPEN RECORD PUBLIC HEARING

File No. 912.42.15-02, 915.42.15-01, 971.42.15-04-"Somerset IF Zucker-Sample, LLC Notice
of Application, and Environmental Review,

Application: On March 17, 2015 the City of Selali Planning Department received applications
for a preliminaryplat and subdivision variance and an environmental cliecklist from Zucker- a
Sample, LLC, PC Box 247 Selah, WA98942 to subdivide 4.71 acres into 20 lots with.,six
dwelling units that have access from a private road. The application wasdetennined complete for
processing on April 7, 2015. Thedecision on this application will be made within one-hundred
twentydays of the determination of complete application.

Project Description Subdivide 4.71 acres into 20 lots, 18 lots for detached single family
residences and two lots designated for two-family dwellings. Four lots, including two designated
two-family residential lots are to be accessed from a private road, requiring a subdivision
variance. Average proposed lot size is 8,578 square feet. The project is to be served by municipal
sewer and water.

Location: Between Herlou Drive and Lyle Loop Road 200 feet south of the intersection of
FlerlouDrive and Weems Way and 100 feet north of the intersection of Herlou Drive and Lyle
Loop Road in the Cityof Selah. (Yakima County Assessor Parcel Number: 181426-44005 &
44021).

Approvals. Actions and Required Studies: Preliminary Plat, Subdivision Variance (Exception
- SMC 10.50.070).

Environmental Review: The City ofSelah is the lead agency for this proposal under the State . ej ^^
Environmental Policy Act (SEPA). The City has reviewed the proposal for probable adverse " ' '
environmental impacts and expects to issue a Dctemiination of Nonsignificance (DNS) for the '
proposal. The optional DNS process in WAC 197-11-355 is being used. This may be your only 1,
opportunity to comment on the environmental impacts ofthe proposed project. After all ^
conmients have been received and considered, a threshold detennination will be made without an H
additional comment period.

Request for Written Comments on the Proposal Written comments concerning the proposed
preliminaryplat, subdivision variance and environmental checklistwill be accepted during the
public comment period that expires at 5;00.p.m, on April 29, 2015. Please mail your comments
to Selah Plaiming Department, 222 So. Ruslmiore Road, Selah, WA 98942. Reference a file
number stated in this notice or "Somerset U" in your correspondence.



Open Record Public Hearing An open record public hearing on the proposed preliminary plat
and subdivision variance will be held before the City of Selah Hearing Examiner. The Examiner
will conduct the hearing on WEDNESDAY, MAY 20, 2015 COMMENCING AT 10:00 A.M.
in the Council Chambers, City of Selah City Hall, 115 W. Naches Ave, Selah, WA

At the conclusion of the public hearing the Examiner will prepare a recommendation for
preliminaryplat and variance approval, approval with conditions,or denial of the preliminary plat
and variance which will be transmitted to the Selah City Council for its consideration and final
disposition.

Application information including the SEPA environmental checklist and maps detailing the
proposal are available during regular business hours at the Planning Department at 222 South
Rushmore Road, Selah, Washington 98942. Contact the Planning Department with project,
procedural or environmental questions by mail at this address, by phone at 1 (509) 698-7365, by
fax at 1 (509) 698-7372 or by e-mail at tdurant@ci.selah,wa.us

Dated this 15'̂ day ofApril 2015.

Is/

Thomas R. Durant, Community Planner



File Number: 912.42.15-02 Somerset II

INSTALLATION CERTIFICATION

I understandthat Selah Municipal Code (SMC) 21.07.035 requires me to post the property at
least 20 days before the public hearing or meeting for which the notice is required.

I certify that on April 29,2015 the Notice of Public Hearing on sign(s) provided by the Selah
Planning Department wereposted on the property located at Herlou Road/Lyle LoopRoad,
Selah, Washingtonat the midpoint on the street frontage from which the site is addressed or as
otherwise directed by City staff.

Signature
s±Jl£_

Date

£.yUri,U /f



%

w

SUBJEa PROPERTY

APPLICATION: SOMERSET II

Zwtf

(aJc^V
i-gK^/Ti .aMcsr. n

SCALE: 1" = 200'

APPLICANT: ZUCKER - SAMPLE; LLC

is

£^v^l.-4.V />'



Y»iaHeralD',Repubug
^ Affidavit of Publication

STATE OF WASHINGTON,)

)
COUNTY OF YAKIMA )

Debbie Martin, being first duly sworn on oath deposes and says that she/he is the Accounting
clerk of Yakima Herald-Republic, Inc.. a daily newspaper. Said newspaper is a legal newspaper
approved by the Superior Court of the State of Washington forYakima County under an order
made and entered on the 13th day of February, 1968, and It is now and has been for more than
six months prior to the date of publication hereinafter referred to, published in the English lan
guage continually as a dally newspaper In Yakima, Yakima County, Washington. Said newspa
per is now and has been during all of said time printed in an office maintained at the aforesaid
place of publication of said newspaper.

That the annexed is a true copy of a:
•REISSUED* NOTICE OF DEVELOPMENT APR

it was published in regular issues (and not in supplement form) of said newspaper once each
day and for a period of 1 times, the first insertion being on 05/22/2015 and the last insertion be
ing on 05/22/2015

Yakima Herald-Republic 05/22/15

and the such newspaper was regularly distributed to its subscribers during all of the said period.
That the full amount of the fee charged for the foregoing publipation is the s^m of $269.10 .

S * '• ^ Sworn to before me
I ;fr

Accounting Clerk

this ^^?/vLdavof.^"/%.^ 2015
"TYl. Ah<^jp^

Notary Public in and for th»
State of Washington,
residing at Yakima

/(f?



•REISSUED*
NOTICE OF DEVELOPMENT APPLICATION &

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW
OPPORTUNITY TO PROVIDE COMMENTS

NOTICE OF HEARING EXAMINER OPEN RECORD PUBLIC
hearing

File No. 912.42.15-02, 915.42.15-01,971.42.15-04 - 'Somerset 11"
Zucker-Sample, LLCNotice of Application, and Environmental
Rewew.

Aaplleatlon; On March 17,2015 the City of Selah Planning
Department received applications for a preliminary plat and
subdivision variance and an environmental checklist from Zucker-
Sample, LLC,PO Box 247 Selah, WA98942 to subdivide 4.71
acres into 20 lots with six dwelling units that have access from
a private road. The application was determined complete for
processing on April7,2015. The decision on this application will
be made within one-hundred twenty days of the determination of
complete application.

Profeet Description Subdivide 4.71 acres Into 20 lots, 18 lots for
detached single family residences and two lots designated for
two-family dwellings. Four lots, Including two designated two-fam
ilyresidential lots are to be accessed from a private road, requiring
a subdivision variance. Average proposed lot size is 8,578 square
feet. The project is to be served by municipal sewer and water.

Location: Between Herlou Drive and Lyie Loop Road 200 feet
south of the Intersection of Herlou Drive and Weems Way and 100
feet north of the Intersection of Herfou Drive and Lyie Loop Road
in the City of Selah. (Yakima County Assessor Parcel Number:
181426-44005 & 44021).

Approvals. Actions and Required Studies: Preliminary Plat,
SutKfivision Variance (Exception - SMC 10.50.070).

Environmental Review: The City of Selah is the lead agency for
this proposal under the State Environmental Policy Act (SEPA).
The City has reviewed the proposal for probable adverse environ
mental impacts and Issued a Determination of Nonsignificance
(DNS) for the proposal on May7,2015. The SEPA Responsible
Official willaccept written comments for an additional 14 days that
ends on June 5,2015 and will reconsider the determination after
the comment period ends.

Request for Written Comments on the Proposal Written com
ments conceming the proposed preliminary plat and subdivision
variancewill be accepted upto the dayofthe hearing andonthe
environmental checMlst during thepublic comment period that
expires at 5:00.p.m, on June 5,2015. Please mail your comments
to Selah Planning Department, 222 So. Rushmore Road, Selah,
WA 98942. Reference a file number stated In this notice or 'Som
erset ir in your correspondence.

Open Record Public Hearino An open record public hearing on
the proposed preliminary plat and subdivision variance will be
held before the City of Selah Hearing Examiner. The Examiner
will conduct the hearing on WEDNESDAY, JUNE 10,2015 COM
MENCING AT10:00 A.M. in the Council Chambers, City of Selah
City Hail, 115 W. Naches Ave. Selah, WA

Atthe conclusion of the public hearing the Examiner will prepare
a recommendation for preliminary plat and variance approval,
approval with conditions, or denial of the preliminary plat and
variance which willbe transmitted to the Selah City Council for its
consideration and final disposition.

Application information including the SEPA environmental
checklist and maps detailing the proposal are available during
regular business hours at the Planning Department at 222 South
Rushmore Road, Selah, Washington 98942. Contact the Planning
Department with project, procedural or environmental questions
by mall at this address, by phone at 1 (509) 698-7365, by fax at 1
(509) 698-7372 or by e-mail at tdurant@ci.selah.wa.us

Dated this 20th day of May, 2015.

/s/Thomas R. Durant, Community Planner

(546933) May 22,2015

Courtesy ofYakima Herald-Republic



CITY OF SELAH

AFFIDAVIT OF MAILING

STATE OF WASHINGTON

COUNTY OF YAKIMA

I, Caprise Groo, being first duly sworn on oath dispose and says:

I am an employee ofthe City of Selah, 222 South Rushmore Road, Selah,
Washington; that I did on the <^3 day of fha i/ , 2013^ caused tobe
mailed, /^l envelopes, containing a true and cdrrect copy of a Notice of
Application & Environmental Review (File No 912.42.15-02, 915.42.15-
01, 971.42.15-04). Said envelopes mailed fi"om Selah, WA. with the
correct first class postage and addressed to the owners of property listed by
the Yakima County Treasurer as being the legal owners of real property
located within 600 feet of the proposal.

A listing of the legal owners of real property to whom notice has been
mailed is contained in file 912.42.15-02, 915.42.15-01, 971.42.15-04

STATE OF WASHINGTON

COUNTY OF YAKIMA

Caprire Groo

On this day personally appeared before me Caprise Groo to me known to be the
individual referenced herein and who caused to be mailed the Notice of Application &
Environmental Review (File No 912.42.15-02, 915.42.15-01, 971.42.15-04

Given under my hand and official seal this day of "/TOi^^2Q15.

Cynthi^ E Graziano

Notary Public in and for the State of Washington, residing at Yakima, WA. My term
expires 01 / j4 / / ^ .

I J
'"^1.^ 41

/I



181426-43426

Kurt M. Sweezea

/'^Herlou Drive
», WA. 98942

18142643429

Paul V. and Debbie Napolitano
240 Herlou Driv

Selah, WA. 98942

18142643436

Brian W.C. & Susan P. Pierce Richards

61 Lyle Avenue
Selah, WA. 98942

18142643415

Angela Finley
30 Herlou Drive

Selah, WA. 98942

18142643418

Robert D. and Denise L. Anderson

120 Herlou Drive

^^h, WA. 98942

18142643425

Skip S. and Karen SchofT
10 Lyle Avenue
Selah, WA. 98942

18142643406

David P. and Kelly Rambo
217 West Goodlander

Selah, WA. 98942

18142643471

David and Paiege Flink
P0B0X911

Selah, WA. 98942

18142644400

RichardJ. and Linda A Rossignol, Willsey
91 Lorry Lane
Selah, WA. 98942

42644403

Thomas R. and Nancy K. Moore
41 Lorry Lane
Selah, WA. 98942

181426-43427

Norman J. and Susan Hillstrom

200 Herlou Drive

Selah, WA 98942

18142643434

Hughes Family Trust
71 HexonRoad

Selah, WA. 98942

18142643408

Elva M. Gomez

10 Herlou Drive

Selah, WA. 98942

18142643416

Jon C. and Kelsey E. Hagen
70 Herlou Drive

Selah, WA. 98942

18142643420

Crystal Lewis
60 Lyle Avenue
Selah, WA. 98942

18142643438

John Ard

41 Terry Lane
Selah, WA. 98942

18142643407

David & Deanna Dillon

11 Herlou Drive

Selah, WA. 98942

18142644003/6; 44418/20/1/2/3; 44426;
44432; 44433; 44456
Glenn S. and Dena Faulkner

284 Lancaster Road

Selah, WA. 98942

18142644401

Kenneth W. Jr. and Charlotte M. Pope
81 Lorry Lane
Selah, WA. 98942

181426-44404

Walter R. and Margaret Tumer
31 Lorry Lane
Selah, WA. 98942

lc> Ipe

181426-43428

Bryant and Whiteey Kyger
220 Herlou Drive

Selah, WA. 98942

18142643435

Cart T. and Christie Herbst

208 Palmer Drive

Selah, WA. 98942

18142643409

403 West Goodlander Road

Selah, WA. 98942

18142643417

Johnny Minyard
110 Herlou Drive

Selah, WA. 98942

18142643424

Mary Sue Partlow
40 Lyle Avenue
Selah, WA. 98942

18142643405

Hendrickson Family Living Trust
61 Herlou Drive

Selah, WA. 98942

18142643430

Steven J. and Kacey J. Royce
91 Herlou Drive

Selah, WA. 98942

18142644007

Paul and Danette Franklin

215 West Goodlander Road

Selah, WA. 98942

18142644402

Kenneth J. and Bessie E. Blelun

61 Lorry Lane
Selah, WA. 98942

18142644405

Reeves Family Trust
11 Lorry Lane
Selah, WA. 98942



18142644406

Kappenimn Living Trust
207 West Goodlander Road

, WA. 98942

181426-44409

Kathy J. Kester
60 Lorry Lane
Selah, WA. 98942

18142644413

Michael D. and Linda Ritch

51 Herlou Place

Selah, WA. 98942

18142644416

Gary and Sherril Jones
POB 784

Selah, WA. 98942

18142643473

Kar King Ho and Pak Lee
30 Lyle Loop Road
Selah, WA. 98942

18142644002

Kenneth R. Peckman

1160Selah Loop Road
Selah, WA. 98942

181426-44437

Douglas and Kristen R. Armstrong
50 Lyle Loop
Selah, WA. 98942

18142644440

Howard and Corinne Stively
80 Lyle Loop
Selah, WA. 98942

181426-44443

Mark R. Weller

110 Lyle Loop
Selah, WA. 98942

/^42644446
..ushua and Stacey Busey
115 Lyle Loop
Selah, WA. 98942

181426-44407

Wade H. and Stephanie K. Erickson
30 Lorry Lane
Selah, WA. 98942

18142644410

80 Lony Lane
Selah, WA. 98942

18142644414

Richard E. and Jodeanna Rae Weller

50 Herlou Place

Selah, WA. 98942

18142644428

Michell Green

111 Herlou Drive

Selah, WA. 98942

18142643474

Christy Hombuckle
21 Lyle LoopRoad
Selah, WA. 98942

18142644005

Zuker-San^le Development LLC
PC Box 247

Selah, WA. 98942

18142644438

Antje C..Ehlert
60 Lyle Loop

Selah, WA. 98942

181426-44441

Rockie and Shari Muoth

90 Lyle Loop
Selah, WA. 98942

18142644444

Michael L. and JiU Christianson

PO BOX 473

Selah, WA. 98942

181426-44447

Christopher M.and Jennifer Dykstra
117 Lyle Loop
Selah, WA. 98942

181426-44408

Timothy A. and Leslie J. Knowles
40 Lorry Lane
Selah, WA. 98942

18142644411

Donald K. and Erin L. Thomas

90 Lorry Lane
Selah, WA. 98942

181426-44415

Raymond G. and Carole Jundt
211 West Goodlander Road

Selah, WA. 98942

18142643472

Kendall Nass

20 Lyle Loop Road
Selah, WA. 98942

18142644001

JeffA. & Cotton Ely
1162 Selah Loop Road
Selah, WA. 98942

18142644436

Justin M.W. and Anne C.M. Ross

40 Lyle Loop
Selah, WA. 98942

18142644439

Zeh A. and Jeanette Lilja
70 Lyle Loop
Selah, WA. 98942

18142644442

John and Magorie Rudick
100 Lyle Loop
Selah, WA. 98942

18142644445

Paul Patnode

113Lyle Loop
Selah, WA. 98942

18142644448

David and JtmgheeSpicer
101 Lyle Loop
Selah, WA. 98942



181426-44449

Paula and Michael W. Collett

^Lyle Loop
, WA. 98942

181426-44452

RichardW. and Tammy Lou KosofT
61 Lyle Loop
Selah, WA. 98942

181426-44455

Kevin L. and Michelle S. Bannister

P0B0X1114

Selah, WA. 98942

18142644014

Carl L. & Candi R. Torkelson

POB 292, Selah
WA. 98942

18142644019

Richard J. and Linda A, Rossignol Willsey
91 Lorry Lane
Selah. WA.98942

18142644429

GaryJ. Carmack and James P. Carmack
9306 Meadowbrook Road
Yakima, WA. 9890-3,

18142643412

Elvira Flores

81 Terry Ln
Selah, WA 98942

18142643419

Randy & Heather Sides
41 Terry PI.
Selah, WA 98942

181426-43423

Crystal Lewis
60 Lyle Ave
Selah, WA 98942

''**^/Mrs. Steven
_. Lyle Loop
Selah, WA 98942

181426^4450

John K. Harris

81 Lyle Loop
Selah, WA. 98942

18142644453

Troy L. and Micala S. Tomow
51 Lyle Loop
Selah, WA. 98942

18142644457

Diep Thi Miller
POB 2264

Yakima, WA. 98901

18142644015

Sean Broe^'e
117 West Goodlander Road

Selah, WA. 98942

18142644020

Wendy A Fizzell
PO BOX 699

Selah, WA. 98942

18142644430

Tyson D. Masias
105 West Goodlander Road
Selah, WA.98942

18142643413

Lane & Sharon Nicklin

20 Terry PI.
Selah, WA 98942

18142643421

William & Tawnya Eller
11 Terry PI
Selah, WA 98942

18142643481

Charles & Marlene Allan

1000 Terry Ln
Selah, WA 98942

Andrew Potter

205 B Valleyview
Selah, WA 98942

181426-44451

71 Lyle Loop
Selah, WA. 98942

181426-44454

Kyle and M. Margarita C. Sager
41 Lyle Loop
Selah, WA. 98942

18142644011

Kyle M. & Maty E. Lyons
1040 Selah Loop Road
Selah, WA. 98942

18142644018

Joan Currier

POB 1305

Selah, WA. 98942

18142644022

Board ofYakima County Commissioners
128 N. 2^ Street
Yakima, WA. 98901

18142644431

Timothy A. McDonald
109 West Goodlander Road

Selah, WA. 98942

18142643414

40 Terry PI
Selah, WA 98942

18142643422

Rosendo & Fidelia Carrillo

80 Lyle Ave.
Selah, WA 98942

18142643482

1006 Terry Ln.
Selah, WA 98942

Aaron Thompson
111 Herlou Dr.

Selah, WA 98942



181426-43498

Cody & Stacey Conley
918 Terry Ln.

WA 98942

181426-43502

Roberto & Elvia Munoz

1109 Terry Ln
Selah, WA 98942

181426-43505

Kristin Davie

1100 Terry Ln
Selah, WA 98942

181426-43508

Christy & Ellery Banks
1106 Terry Ln
Selah, WA 98942

181426-42400/1

Arthur Berger
311 Weems Way
Selah, WA 98942

181426-42406/7

Artisha Busey
1312 City Reservoir Road
Yakima, WA 98908

181426-42411

William & Desiree Lohman

300 Herlou Dr.

Selah, WA 98942

181426-41008/9

Stanley & Sharma Taylor
50 Weems Way
Selah, WA 98942

181426-41404

David Stover

121 Weems Way
Selah, WA 98942

i-41411

. -rbert & Mary Horn
220 Weems Way
Selah, WA 98942

181426-43437

Phillip 3f Marilyn Wharton
171 Terry In.
Sclah, WA 98942

181426-43503

Herbert & Janet Lyon
1107 Terry Ln
Selah, WA 98942

181426-43506

Jose & Kaleolani Busseau

1102 Terry Ln.
Selah, WA 98942

181426-43509

Jeannie Carroll

1108 Terry Ln.
Selah, WA 98942

181426-42402/3

Darin Berger
313 Weems Way
Selah, WA 98942

181426-42408/9

Don & Paulette Mallula

310 Weems Way
Selah, WA 98942

181426-41006

Ronald Caldwell

130 Weems Way
Selah, WA 98942

181426-41402

Earl & Cathy Stai
61 Weems Rd.

Selah, WA 98942

181426-41407/8/9

Bradley Busey
310 Weems Way
Selah, WA 98942

181426-41412

Wayne Worby
200 Weems Way
Selah, WA 98942

181426-43501

Cassandra Heide

1111 Terry Ln.
Sclah, WA 98942

181426-43504

Sheila Ogbum
1105 Terry Ln
Selah, WA 98942

181426-43507

Jessica & Russell Warner

1104 Terry Ln.
Selah, WA 98942

181426-43510

Barbara Binder

1110 Terry Ln.
Selah, WA 98942

181426-42404/5/

Bradley Busey
310 Weems Way

Selah, WA 98942

181426-42410

Terri Hemdon

270 Herlou Dr.

Selah, WA 98942

181426-41007

Willie Morris

100 Weems Way
Selah, WA 98942

181426-41403

Russell & Elena Loges
71 Weems Way
Selah, WA 98942

181426-41410

Ronald Sweezea

271 Herlou Dr

Selah, WA 98942

181426-41413

John & Kathy Duncan
180 Weems Way
Selah, WA 98942



181426-41414

Steven & Ellen Zeutenhorst

170 Weems Way
WA 98942

181426-41417

Rick & Sarah Fowler

141 Weems Way
Selah, WA 98942

Ron Caldwell

130 Weems Way
Selah, WA 98942

Brian Richards

61 Lyle Avenue
Selah, WA 98942

Bryant Kyger
220 Herlou Drive

Selah, WA 98942^

Hannah Halverson

121 Herlou Dr

Selah, WA 98942

Kathleen Fountaine

510 Southern Ave

Selah, WA 98942

181426-4I41S

Eric & Dorothy Johnson
140 Weems Way
Selah, WA 98942

181426-41418

Roger & Laraine Rising Jr
151 Weems Way
Selah, WA 98942

Stan Tyler
50 Weems Way
Selah, WA 98942

Brad Worby
441 Mullins Road

Selah, WA 98942

David Spicer
101 Lyle Loop
Selah, WA 98942

Brad Smith

1309 W Goodlander Rd

Selah, WA 98942

181426-41416

Richard & Jaye Vollmer
171 Weems Way
Selah, WA 98942

John Soder

511 Viewcrest Place

Selah, WA 98942

John & Alana Oaks

51 Weems Way
Selah, WA 98942

Lisa Freeze

1116 Collins Road

Selah, WA 98942

Archie Gardner

60 Lyle Ave
Selah, WA 98942

John Soden

511 Viewcrest Ave

Selah, WA 98942



June 4, 2015

^^^elah Planning Department
12 So. Rushmcre Road

Selah.WA 98942

Dear Thomas Durant, Community Planner

RE: Somerset II Development

Here are a some points that are In conflict ^wilh Selah Municipal Code or are being requested to be granted a variance
from the code and I feel these developments are being rushed through without thought or consequences to the
community of Selah.

Incomplete Issues on the plat map.Lack of location of fire hydrants and Street light location along with consideration of
light direction, public and private roads. There is a lack of retaining wall identification and design. Not to mention, a
lack of storm water runoff retention system and locations.

On top of that the average and individual lots size are misleading when considering the possibilityof the private road
removing usable land from the owner usage. Lots 11,12,13,14,15 and 18 all fall below the 8,000 sq. ft. area when
the paved road takes their land away and Lots 11,12 and 15 have roads on two sides and that Is to be avoided. Then
Lots 13 and 14 go even further and have roads on three sides and that Is to be avoided. The private road surface
reduces the requirement of 9,000 square feet requirement below minimum level for a duplex.

Mr. Sample speaks to the siting of the duplexes and recognizes they have an adverse effect on neighborhood
single family homes. He is locating them to hide their presence as a devaluation of adjacent properties.
Additionally this adds a higher level of traffic on a limited surface withoutpublicsafety issues of a wider driving surface

y-^d sidewalks for pedestrians.

Is it legal to claim property to create a private road from lots 11,12,13,14,15 and deny them access to land they are
paying property taxes on and as legal ownerof the land may be subject to liability Issues from road users.

Setbacks on the duplexes should not be considered for a variance as there is plenty of room on the lot. If locating the
required off-street parking is a problem then the duplexes are sited wrong.
The zoningfor the development Is R-1. The lotcoverage for R-1 is 35%, therefore the lots 19 and 20 will fall under the
R-1 municipal code of 35% Including building footprint, driveway, sidewalksand off-street parking... the proposed
structures are out of compliance.

The "undue hardship" that requires a variance for a private road is driven by maximizing the number of lots. Why
doesn't Mr. Sample explore other configurations before declaring "undue hardship" like Cul-de-sac. a variance on the
width to length ratioof lots. Dan Bowerwas given a ratio of 1 to 3.64 on Goodiander when he divided his land in May of
2014. The "undue hardship" was vacated when Mr. Sample quit working on an approved development that didn't require
a variance for a private road.

Many of us cannot make these meetings because we work for a living. Why are not meetings held at a time when the
majority of the community can come to them to have their say in what is happening to our city.

Sincerely, Diane L. Underwood, 402North 9'" Street, Selah, WA 98942, 509.480.0899 cell



June 4, 2015

Selah Planning Department

222 So. Rushmore Road

Selah, WA 98942

Dear Thomas Durant, Community Planner

RE: Somerset II Development

Below you will find issues that I feel are that are in conflict with Selah Municipal Code or
are being requested to be granted a variance from the code and Ifeel these
developments are being rushed through without thought or consequences to the
community of Selah but to the best interest of the developer.

Incomplete issues on the plat map.Lack of location of fire hydrants and Street light
location and the consideration of light direction, public and private roads. There's a lack
of retaining wall identification and design. Plus a lack of storm water runoff retention
system and locations.

On top of that the average and individual lots size are misleading when considering the
possibility of the private road removing usable land from the owner usage. Lots 11, 12,
13, 14,15 and 18 all fall below the 8,000 sq. ft. area when the paved road takes their land
away and Lots 11,12 and 15 have roads on two sides and that is to be avoided. Then
Lots 13 and 14 go even further and have roads on three sides and that is to be avoided.
The private road surface reduces the requirement of 9,000 square feet requirement below
minimum level for a duplex.

Mr. Sample speaks to the siting of the duplexes and recognizes they have an adverse
effect on neighborhood single family homes. He is locating them to hide their presence as
a devaluation of adjacent properties. This adds a higher amount of traffic on a limited
surface without public safety issues of a wider driving surface and sidewalks for
pedestrians.

Can a person legally lay claim to property to create a private road from the lots 11, 12, 13,
14, 15 and deny them access to land that they are paying property taxes on and as legal
owner of the land may be subject to liability issues from road users? This does not seem
right or legal in my opinion.

The zoning for the development is R-1. The lot coverage for R-1 is 35%, therefore the lots

I'iijJUyl



19 and 20 will fall under the R-1 municipal code of 35% including building footprint,
driveway, sidewalks and off-street parking.., the proposed structures are out of
compliance.

The "undue hardship" that requires a variance for a private road is driven by maximizing
the number of lots. Why doesn't Mr. Sample explore other configurations before declaring
"undue hardship" such as a Cul-de-sac or a variance on the width to length ratio of lots.
Dan Bower was given a ratio of 1 to 3.64 on Goodlander when he divided his land in May
of 2014. The "undue hardship" was vacated when Mr. Sample quit working on an
approved development that didn't require a variance for a private road.

Many of us cannot make these meetings because we work for a living. Why are not
meetings held at a time when the majority of the community can come to them to have
their say in what is happening to our city.

Sincerely,

' ' i0-
Oi

Abdul Maroof

402 No. 9'" Street

Selah,WA 98942



I %iJA^ '̂ da^rryoZt^
sS^tmeAA^t // .<^U '̂~££^^2uL

MmPi^ iJu^ /hiuC ^ /i^tP^:ila'ric£^. XiJ'Ay.
, /dene^ MAiy tAo/nu^Al'tnA^z^ti'

j "ixJA^^ ji dAoy?%U'̂ M'VMX
xt^ MZ-ndd^i^ JdAe^^dAe- jdA^VuHi^nd^y^

IMAUL. JkudJu^ /uaii^ M. /nod Ldii^iii/iUy
jXru idtc<U XZ^OA^ Jut^n^ xdiuiopid' f d^doA^
•MJAiAul^ duu/ yTTUl'n^ /iMXtalM/nd^ Cid^
ICA7y\^Ui/ud jdi/n^^ AM-ul-L.-ritexZ,
\ i/Jjf diAA^ MJM'Truty t{My> Ud^LC/mt- Xc^
dJw JtlaJi/ CctY Jtx znAiA/Uty.
U/nxHUuL^i'?^ Mxy Ato Mjdu^
dlA^l^lU^X t<^ XAl M/UtuXaMu JdlruL yTuAt
XM^ xX MrwuXXeC, JiAlu^rid^ X/ulX dAc'
dXduLs^ymemid xd^ruy Iddzi^ MUux
.y?7W\£^ ddlt- dAc- dXritidM^Xdx

ddULriy Xhc- (Utl^£^n4i JlMAy,

•-Jn/Zrik^ lXm<x^
BoXJAajla^

/^XAo^^ Cxidu^ddu
/3o ^UMn^ "(aJcl^
JUoJlj tdl

f.Kkl^' 6>T)

JUN-8 2015
V CFTYOFSEIAH /-

PUBUCWOM



June 6,2015

Selah Planning Dept,
222 S Rushmore Road,
Selah, WA 98942

Attn: Mr. Thomas Durand and Selah Planning Dept.

I am writing this letter to share my strong opposition to another of the proposed re-zoning
and construction of the Somerset II addition. As a lifelong Selah resident, attending Selah Schools
K-12 and teaching in the Selah School District for thirty years, and Selah taxpayer and
homeowner, I feel I have a vested interest in the responsible growth of my community.

It is my opinion that following issues need to be publicly addressed at your next review meeting
on June 10 @ 10:00AM before sending your recommendation on to the City Counsel.

• Is it legal to claim property to create a private road from lots 11,12,13,14,15
and deny them access to land they are paying property taxes on and as legal
owner of the land may be subject to liability issues from road users?

• The zoningfor the development is R-1. The lot coverage for R-1 is 35%, therefore
the lots 19 and 20 will fall under the R-1 municipal code of 35% including
buildingfootprint,driveway,sidewalks and off-street parking. Aren't the
proposed structures proposed out of compliance?

• Are there some incomplete issues on the plat map?
• Where are fire hydrants located?
• What is the street light location and has there been any consideration of light

direction?

• Where will retaining walls be located and what will be the design.
• Will there be a storm water runoff retention system? Where?

There are several other issues concerning this development that need to be addressed and
answered in the public meeting next Wednesday.

Summarizing,1am opposed to any constructionthat does not meet the codes already in
place for new construction. It would seem to this citizen that the "developers" need to be held
accountable for various code violations. Developers should NOT be expecting variances for each
and every issue that comes along as a bump in the road. The best interestsand characterof the
Selah community must be paramount over personal gain.

incerely

fee (Hovde) Furstenau
1851 NaglerRoad
Selah, WA 98942

<5/



Patrick Spurgin / ^
Selah Planning Department
222 S. Rushmore Road

Selah Wa. 98942

Re. conflict with Sommerset 11 development

As a concemed citizen ofSelah,as well as a homeowner directly affected by the the
development inquestion^ am appalled that the coimcil iseven considering the rezoneing
requested by the Zuker-Sample LLCdevopment.

#1

This is in the middle of an R-lneighborhood,and all of the adjacent property values will
plummet immediately if this is allowed to be rezoned.
Atleast (6) of the lots will besmaller than the 8,000 mimimum when the private roads
are put in. 2ofthe lots would actually have streets on 3sides oftheir lots!( Not the kind
ofneighborhood that homeowners will want topurchase,but suitable for rentals,which is
the end result if this were to be allowed.

#2

Mr. Sample has admitted that the "adjoined residences'̂ duplexes) will have an adverse
effect onthe value of adjacent R-1 lots,so hewants to hide Aem inthe comer???
Why not just build single family homes like Sommersetl,like you told those buying there
that 11 would be????

#3

I don't understand the plea of"undue hardship" posed by Mr. Sample so he can put ina
private road. County zoning allowed him to have the correct number and size ofR-
llots,but itappears that greed comesinto play and since he ison the City Council,THAT
IS A CONFLICT OF INTEREST!
He needsto step down fromcouncil if that is the case.

#4

The City council has shovra that they are more interested inappeasing their own members
more than their concem on growing Selah responsibly with real estate designed to attract
homeowners whoare invested in the commumty. The Cityof selahhas about50%of its
residents as renters,who have no stake in the longterm growth of thecommunity.

#5

I'm not sure why the Mayor feels the need to acquiesce to the wishes ofthese
devolpers,but he has certainly shown that he doesn't want that office any longer.



1A2.

.„. ..\IliiJL.d£^a£l^
{nUiS_^ . ZZ^ L^ Me y^iuiAJ

..o^

Mlmjrs.

./IrQCiJ.

^3£AJUti-J^



-/-V

r\

h " "";fe/ *

0 — ^S^
I--JI

V-

-/likjjtj/J^ 'TuluJ

j:^. JjjJ:^,

JAJ

JufBd^
, (jJj) ,/Ucci_

L^ UJ^_

(jf-W J)iSC^

J>^..

Ho-uj-
CSA44---

h-^Anifi. •

^ aIx) t

OAX^^f

^3-/h.
^_l l4<2.vr I



June 9, 2015

. Ta; Selah Planning Department ;;'i^N- 920l5
W" •<• ; • I-' • . ' •• '"W

222 South Rmhmore Road -

Selah, WA 98942

Rc; Zuker-Sample LL^ Development, Somerset II

Dear Mr. Spurgeon:

Jwish to cxpiess iiiv view regatding liie leicieiiceiJ plaimcu dcvclupiuciH.

1personally experienced the FLASH FLOOD on Goodlander and First two weeks ago. The flooding
was torrential, clogging drains, washing small hillsides without retention walls The current was swift-
enough to carry loose fencing down the road onto the entrance of our driveway. Water quickly
accumiilaled around the drains on the corner ofGoodlander and First.

1. Deri.scly populating this area is questionable and appears ill planned, Are there NO
neighborho^ covenants or municipal codes to protect homeowners from unreasonable
developments?

• 2. Will any of these proposed units be compliant with ADA'.'
3. Will sidewalks, curbing, street lighting be impiemenied and congruent tocurrent city codes?
4. Living directly on the corner of Goodlander and First, 1am very aware ofthe number emergency

vehicles traveling quickly in this area. Compounding population dciisit)'within this vicinity
seems to (>e lacking a vision for growth.

I moved iiom Westeiu WA lluee ycais ago with the dc-site to live ma small commiuiity The ambiance
and serenity are entirely depleted due to not only the traffic, but structures that do not adhere to esthetics
ofa small community. Three story boxes with no front orbackyard landscaping are for city dwelling. It
rmisi be cKtremcly Jisuppoiiiling lo uny ucigbhorliood to lose tt residential home to one or more ofthese
structures. There is no redeeming quality to free standing duplexes which appear tobe neglected after
being rented.

I hope this input has been of value tofurther discussion.s regarding the Development referenced.

sincerely,

Julie A.Tield

106 W Goodlander

Selah, WA 98942

509-379-9990



June9,2015

4

To; Selah Planning Department j/ju
C:; ^^2015

222 South Rushmore Ruau .

Selah, WA 98942 '

Re; Zuker-Sample LLC Development, Somerset 11

Dear Mr. Spurgcon;

i wish to express my view icgardms the icierenccd planned dcvclopiuent,

1personally experienced the FLASH FLOOD on Goodlander and I'irst two weeks ago. Ihe Hooding
was torrential, clogging drains, washing small hillsides without retention walls The current was swilt
enough to cany loose fencing down the road onto the entrance of our driveway. Water quickly
accumulated around the drains onthe corner ofGoodlander and First.

1. Dcitsely populating this area IS questioitable and appears ill planned. Aie there NO
neighborhood covenants or municipal codes to protect homeowners from unreasonable
developments?

2. Will any of these proposed units be eornplianl with .ADA'-'
3. Will sidewalks, curbing, street lighting be implemented and congruent to cwent city codes?
4. Living directly on the corner of Goodlander and First, Iam very aware of the number emergency

vehicles traveling quickly in this area. Compounding population density within this vicinity
seems to be lackinga vision for growth,

1moved ft-om Western WA three years ago with the desire to live in a small community. The ambiance
and serenity are entirely depleted due to not only the traffic, but structures that do not adhere to esthetics
ofa small community. TTifce story boxes with no front or backyard landscaping are for city dwelling. It
must be extremely disappointing to any neighborltood to lose a rcsideniial home to one or more of these
structures. There is no redeeming quality to free standing duplexes v/hich appear to be neglected after
being rented.

1hope this input has been ofvalue to further discussions regarding the Development referenced.

Sincerely,

^ndra G.,Field

106 W Goodlander

Selah, WA 98942

509-379-9990



Dear Mr. Durand,

I am writing to express my concerns with the application submitted by Sucker-Sample LLC in

regards to the Sommerset I! development. As his other applications have lacked specific, relevant and

necessary elements in order to receive serious consideration this one in my eyes is no different.

Specifically as I understand what I have learned about the Selah Municipal code, this application

stands in conflict with a few salient points or are asked to be considered as a variance to the present

code. 1. Lack of covenants for a private road. 2. Insufficient number of fire hydrants. 3. Streetlight

location and consideration of light direction on public and private roads respectively. 4. Lack of the

identification of a retaining wall and its intended design. 5. Lack of a storm water runoff retention

system and where these will actually be located.

1find a few other things very troubling about this proposed application as well. As a

homeowner, Iwonder about the legality of claiming property to create a private road from lots 11,12,

13,14 and 15 and denying them access to land they legally own, pay taxes on and are subject to liability

issues from individuals who choose to utilize this road. Moreover, the average and individual lots sizes

in my mind are a bit misleading when you consider the possibility of this private road when it removes

usable land from the owner's rightful use. Lots 11,12,13,14,15 and 18 all will fall below the 8,000

square foot area when this paved road is constructed and takes away the property they paid for. As to

the "setbacks," on the duplexes they should not be considered in my mind for a variance as there

appears to be plenty of room on the lot itself. If locating the required off-street parking becomes a

legitimate concern then I believe these duplexes are sited incorrectly.

Finally, the zoning as I understand it is for the development is R-1. The lot coverage for R-1 I've

been told is 35%, therefore the lots 19 and 20 would fall under the R-1 municipal code of 35% including

the building footprint, driveway, sidewalks and off-street parking which stands to reason they may very

well be out of compliance already.

Thanks for your time and consideration of my concerns.

Sincerely,

Mark R. Weller

110 Lyie Loop

Selah, WA 98942



To: Patrick Spurgin,

Re; Somerset II development

The Sample development should be constructed to look like the other houses in the area. The rental

duplexes will not match family homes and they will become a maintenance problem.

Also why should houses be built on private roads in the city, in the county ifyou have three homes it
must be a county paved road.

Thank you

\ 0



June 1,2015

r\

Tom Durand,

The development, Somerset II by Roy Sample, shouldn't be allowed to have the duplexes in a single

family neighborhood. I'm not against development just the mixing of the duplex and the home owner

occupied homes.

Thank you,

k.



June 8,2015

Patrick Spurgin

Regarding the Somerset 11 development. Private roads should not be allowed. Also this is a

singlefamily residential area and duplexes should be located in duplex zoned areas.

Tlie meeting for open comments should be at a time when working peoplecan attend and

comment.

fit

0

-



June 5,2015

Hearing Examiner, Patrick Spurgin

I have several issues with the Somerset II development. The development should not be approved as
presented.

My issues are:

No private roads.

No duplexes in the development.

All roads should have sidewalks

Thank you

m 10

£M:-t 31



June 6, 2015

Tom Durand,

The Somerset development on Herlou Drive should not be passed as submitted.

The neighborhood is single family and there are duplex rentals planned. Also there

should be restrictions so that buildings like the new 3 story ones being built by the High

School are not allowed in the development.

Sincerely



Patrick Spui^in,
Hearing Examiner:

I am writing of my concerns on the Summerset 11 development off Herlou Dr.
This area West ofNorth First and North of Goodlander is already struggling with traffic issues. This
intersection is a nightmare at peak traffic times and with an additional development It vrill get much
worse.

This area is zoned R-1 and consists of single family dwellings, there is no reason to put in an R-2
density into this neighborhood. It does not fit with the dynamics of the area. This development should
be built under R-1 codes.

There are no private roads in this area, all the roads in this area are public roads with sidew3alks to
keep the children safe. This development should not have a private drive, but a road with sidewalks and
gutters.

Who will lake care of the properties, Renters will not take the responsibility to maintain the up keep
like a homeowner would. There should be a maintenance agreement in place to make sure all roads wiU
be kept up and snow removed.

Selah has become a tovm with more renters than homeowners, who will pay the taxes for Police, Fire
Departments, schools, road repair it wont be the approximately 200 units of Renters these contractors
want to build. How will the City Manage all this new construction.

Thank You

cj/:. 6^1

33



Patrick Spurgin,
Hearing Examiner

I am writing ofmy concerns on the Summerset 11 development off Herlou Dr.
This area WestofNorth First and North of Goodlander is already struggling with traffic issues. This
intersection is a nightmare at peak traffic times and with an additional development it will get much
worse.

This area is zoned R-1 and consists of single family dwellings, there is no reason to put in an R-2
density into this neighborhood. It does not fit with the dynamics of the area. This development should
be built under R-1 codes.

There are no private roads in this area, all the roads in this area are public roads with sidewSalks to
keep the children safe. This development should not have a private drive, but a road with sidewalks and
gutters.

Who will take care of the properties, Renters will not take the responsibility to maintain the up keep
like a homeowner would. There should be a maintenance agreement in place to make sure all roads will
be kept up and snow removed.

Selah has become a town with more renters than homeowners, who will pay the taxes for Police, Fire
Departments, schools, road repair It wont be the approximately 200 units ofRenters these contractors
want to build. How will the City Manage all this new construction.

Thank You

I?

fxt.-f./- 7'i



To whom it may concern:

I am writing against the proposal for Summerset II;

This proposal does not meet the dynamics of this community. The existing properties are all single
family home owned properties.

Who is to take care of the maintenance, renters do not take care of their property like home owners do.

This area is zoned R-1, there are no RENTAL DUPLEXES in this area.

There are no private roads in this area.

There needs to be sidewalks to keep children safe.

The traffic in this community are already congested, what measures will be taken to oflFset the number
of units that Sample wants to build.

It would be nice for these meetings to be in the evening, so more of the public that want to attend can
come.

3'^



I am asking you to deny the proposal for Summerset 11.

There Is no Rental Properties near this proposed development, therefore it does not fit the criteria, of
the Single family dwellings that exist in this area.
There is no maintenance agreement as to who will take care of the properties.
This is an R-1 zone - there is no business putting in R-2 density
Selah does not need private roads - they all should have sidewalks for the children to be kept safe
The already congested traffic will increase leading to more problems and accidents

Please deny this proposal



June 8, 2015

Mr Durand,

I'm concerned about the increased traffic from the Somerset II development. The
traffic light on Goodlander is badly needed especially during school hours.

Also the Duplexes and the private road shouldn't be allowed in an R-1 zone.

Sincerely



June 4,2015

Hearing Examiner,

The Development planned for Herlou Drive, Somerset II, is allowing a private road that is going to be

unsafe because It has no sidewalks for the school children. Additionally the neighborhood is all single
family with no duplexes. Duplexes should be designated for an R-2 zoned area.

Where is the open space lot located?

Thank you

%

/ -v.
Etote-s-' •

•> AS-

3y



June 3,2015

Mr Patrick Spurgin

I'm against the Duplexes planned for the Somerset 1! development off Herlou Drive. The rentals will not
be taken care of like a home owner would. Please don't allow them to be built.

Thank you

I'"""-

£icU:^-



To whom it may concern:

I am writing to ask the city concil to deny the proposal for Summerset II:

This area is zoned R-1, there are no RENTAL DUPLEXES in this area.

Who is to take care of the maintenance, renters do not lake care oftheir property like home owners do.

There are no private roads in this area.

There needs to be sidewalks to keep children safe.

This proposal does not meet the dynamics of this community. The existing properties are all single
family home owned properties.

The traffic in this community are already congested, what measures will be taken to offset the number
of units that Sample wants to build.

Please Listen to the Concerns

3oT-t»i3

At.



Somerset II

912.42.15-02 Preliminary Plat

915.42.15-01 Subdivision Variance

971.42.15-04 Environmental Review

EXHIBITS SUBMITTED ATTHEJUNE 10, 2015 PUBLIC HEARING

Exhibit

HE-1 Points of Concern, submitted by Wayne Worby
HE-2 Two olderSomerset II Plat Maps submitted byWayne Worby
HE-3 Notice &CD recording from 3/17/2015 Planning Commission hearing
HE-4 Whispering View Plat map

HE-5 Yakima County Assessed valuations of lots in Goodlander Square
Townhouses and Somerset Isubmitted by Roy Sample



POINTS OF CONCERN SOMERSET II

10.50.000 - Title, purpose, scope and administrating authority.

(a) Title. This chapter shall be known as the "Selah Subdivision Code."

(b) Purpose. The purpose of this chapter is to r««nilatft «-iie subdivision nf land
to promote the public health, safety and general welfare in accoi'dan**^ rott-h
standards established by the citv and state of Washington, to prevent the
overcrowding of land, to lessen congestion in the streets and highways, to provide
for adequate light and air, to facilitate adequate provisions for water, sewerage.
parks and recreation areas, sites for schools and school grounds and other public
requirements, to provide for proper ingress and egress, and to provide uniform
monumenting ofland subdivisions and conveyance by accurate legal description.

(c) Scope. This chapter shall apply to aU land within the municipal boundary ofthe city
of Selah including any lot or block forming part ofany subdivision created and recorded
prior totheeffective date ofthischapter. Where thischapter orother standards adopted
by reference imposes greater restrictions or higher standards than other laws,
ordinances or restrictive covenants, the provisions ofthis chapter shallprevail.

INCOMPLETE ISSUES ON THE PLOT PLAN AND APPLICATION

• Where is the openspacearea that wasdeemed important in the last application?
• Where are the covenants for all properties affected by the private road?
• Where are locations of fire hydrants?

^ Where are the street light location and considerations for light direction, on both
public and private roads?

• There is a lack ofretainingwall identification and engineering.
• There is no design of storm water runoff retention system and locations.
• Where are the required profile drawings for all streets?

10.50.040 - Preliminary plat map preparation.

(a) Avicinity map at a scale between one inch representing four hundred feet and one
inch representing one thousand feet. The vicinity map shall show all adjacent
subdivisions, true north arrow, type of land use, zoning, streets and with the names of
owners of record of such parcels and amount they own;

(b) Name and location of proposed subdivision, name and address of the owner or
ovmers, name of the licensed land surveyor or engineer who prepared the preliminary
plat;

(c) Date ofpreparation, true north point and graphic scale;

(d) On both land to be subdivided and adjacent land, locate the following: Existing and
platted propertylines, streets (shouldshowstreets in the proposedsubdivisionand their
relationship with existing or proposed streets in adjacent subdivisions or undivided
properties), buildings, watercourses, railroads, sewers, bridges, culverts, storm drains,
water mains, all public or private utility or roadway easements, and any existing
development or improvements;



(e) The zoning applicable to the land to be platted, subdivided or dedicated, and of the
land adjacent and contiguous to it;

(1) * Plans of proposed underground utility layouts (sanitary and storm sewers, cable
T.V., water, gas, telephone and electrical power), showing connections to the existing or
any proposed utility systems;

(g) Contours shall be shown at vertical intervals of not more than five feet. The contour
maps shall be referenced to the U.S. Coast and Geodetic Survey Datum;

(h) * The names, locations, widths and other dimensions of proposed streets, alleys,
easements, parks and other open spaces, reservations, lot lines, yard requirements and
utilities;

(i) * Number of lots, total square feet in each lot, percent of land in streets, and total
area of proposed subdivision in acres;

(j) * The profiles and grades of each street, together with typical cross sections indicating
width of pavement, location and width of sidewalks, and location and size of utility
mains;

(k) * The proposed plat shall have attached to it copies of any proposed or existing
restrictive covenants.

*APPLICAT10N MAP IS MISSING COMPONENTS

LOT ISSUES

Average and individual lots sizes are misleading when considering the reality of the
private road removing usable land from the owner usage and control. Lots 11, 12, 13,
14, 15 and 18 all fall below the 8,000 sq. ft. area when the private paved road removes
their land from personal use and control. Square footage of lot losses are, minimally,
as foUows: Lot 11-690, lot 12-760, lot 13-2,280, lot 14-2,280,lot 15-200, lot-17-400, lot
18-820, duplex lot 19-1,000, duplex lot 20-1,000.

Lots 11,12 and 15 have roads on two sides and that is to be avoided.

Lots 13 and 14 go even further and have roads on three sides and that is to be avoided.

The private road surface reduces the requirement of 9,000 square feet requirement
below minimum level for a duplex lot in an R-1 zone.

Mr. Durand stated in the Selah staff report that longer lots will end up as weed
patches...What documentation or data is Mr. Durand presenting to make that statement
as a fact?

In the event of construction of multiple level residential homes, will a restriction of
windows that look into existing yards and private areas be required of the development?

Is it legal to claim property to create a private road from lots 11, 12, 13, 14, 15 and deny
them access to their land on which they are paying property taxes and as legal owner of
the land they may be subject to liability issues from those using the private street?



DUPLEX ISSUES

The private road surface reduces the requirement of 9,000 square feet requirement
below minimum level for a duplex lot in an R-1 zone.

In the Selah City Staff report prepared by Tom Durand, it is not recognized that Mr.
Ssunple spoke and voted, as a city council member, against the siting of duplexes in an
R-1 zone. In his Somerset II application, in his application Mr. Sample speaks to the
siting of the duplexes and recognizes they have an adverse effect on neighborhood single
family homes. He is locating them for two reasons, to hide their presence as a potential
devaluation of adjacent properties for reasons of property values and or lifestyles and in
retaliation for losing the Planned Development application he sited them behind my
house.

The Hearing examiner has the ability to deny not only locations of duplexes due to
appropriateness but also their siting in a development.

As a result of the duplex locations, the siting adds a higher level of traffic on a limited
surface without public safety requirements of a standard width driving surface and
sidewalks for pedestrians. Correct trafQc placement of higher density residences is
closer to the outlet or arterial roads not in the farthest reaches of a residential area.

Setbacks on the duplexes should not be considered for a variance as the lot meets the
9,000 sq. ft. of surface area requirement on the lot. If more space is needed for meeting
requirements, Mr. Sample should increase the size of the lot. If locating the required
off-street parking is a problem then the duplexes are sited improperly in an R-1 zone on
the private street. Where is the request for a variance to the rear setback? Where is the
required data supporting the need for the variance?

The zoning for the development is R-1. The lot coverage for R-1 is 35%, therefore the
lots 19 and 20 will fall under the R-1 municipal code of35% including building footprint,
driveway, sidewalks and off-street parking, etc. A proposed structure may be out of
compliance. No plans are presented to determine that the lots 19 and 20 are
appropriate. These locations should be denied.

DESIGN ISSUES

In the event of construction of multiple level residential homes, will a restriction on
windows that look into existing yards and private areas be required on the development
of both single family homes and duplexes.

By the calculations derived at by the Selah Planning Department in their staff report,
the "net density is about 6 dwelling units per acre or 6.6 dwelling units per acre if the
lot area is reduced by the access easement used for the private road in making the •
calculation." This, again, is in violation of the 5 dwelling units per acre in the R-l>
zoning. Quoted from the staff report prepared by Tom Durand. ^

Does the 16' wide sewer easement on lots 11 and 12 reduce the avcdlable lot usability
further below the S'OOO sq. ft.? Can the owner build over this easement?

As per the development application will the 24' height design on the duplexes be
enforced as a covenant restriction?

Reverse curves on a street re not allowed back to back. Where is the separation on Lyle
Loop?



Will there be any consideration for street light, visual barriers and noise barriers from
the development into the existing residences. The barriers could be vegetative, masoniy
or other durable and appropriate material.

10.50.043 - Curbs and gutters.

Curbs and gutters of cement concrete shall be provided in accordance with the
standards set forth in Chapter 10.50.

10.50.044 - Sidewalk standards.

Sidewalks of cement concrete shall be installed on both sides of an arterial street. On a

residentieil street, cement concrete sidewalks shall be installed on at least one side of
the street. The sidewalk shall be located on the public right-of-way contiguous to the
curbs. Sidewalks shall be a minimum of five feet wide on arterial streets and five wide

on all other streets and shall be constructed in accordance with the standards set forth
in Section 10.50.041(a) of this chapter.

PRIVATE ROAD ISSUES

10.50.010 - Definitions.

(i) "Public right-of-way" means any defined area dedicated to public use for vehicular
and/or pedestrian use.

(j) "Roadway" means the portion or portions of a street or way that is available for
vehicular traETic or the portion or portions lying between curbs where curbs are laid.

(k) "Street" means a public right-of-waywhich is intended to provide or which provides
a roadway for vehicular circulation and gives access to abutting properties and which
may also include provisions for public utilities, pedestrian walkways and drainage.

(1) "Arterial streets" means a roadway designed to collect and distribute trafiic from
different areas or neighborhoods within a community.

(2) "Residential streets" means a roadway whose primary function is to provide access
to residential property within a neighborhood.

(3) "Street width" means the shortest distance between the lines which delineate the
right-of-way of a street.

♦BECAUSEPRIVATE ROADS ARE NOT ALLOWED IN A SUB DIVISION, THERE IS NO
DEFINATION

10.50.041 - Design standards and specifications.

(a) The mostcurrent design documents, including any amendment thereof, are herein
adopted by reference and shall be considered the standards and specifications for the
city. These standards and specifications, together with the laws of the state of
Washington, ordinances and resolutions of the city, shall apply except as amended or
superceded by city ordinance or resolution.

1. Standard Plans

for Road, Bridge and Municipal Construction

Washington State Department of Transportation

American Public Works Association, Washington State Chapter



2. Standard Specifications

for Road, Bridge and Municipal Construction

Washington State Department of Transportation

American Public Works Association

3. Construction Manual

Washington State Department ofTransportation

4. Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices

U.S. Department ofTransportation

Federal Highway Administration

*WHERE ARE THE ESTABLISHED STANDARDS FOR A PRIVATE STREETS LOCATED?

(c) In addition to the design documents adopted by reference, the following provisions
shall apply:

(8) Cul-de-sacs are permitted provided they do not exceed six hundred feet measured
from the center of the tum-around to the nearest connecting street intersection.

(11) Street jogs with centerline offsets ofless than two hundred feet shall not be allowed.

(d) Block design in a subdivision shall conform to the following standards

(4) There shall be no private streets in any subdivision, and every lot and block shall
be served from a publicly dedicated street; provided, that private access streets may be
authorized where there will be no adverse effect on future traffic circulation of

neighboring parcels. There shall be no privately held or owned reserve strips paralleling
or terminating street ends or otherwise controlling access to streets.

(e) Lot design in a subdivision shall conform to the following standards, except in the
event a subdivision is combined with a planned development zone proposal, in which
case the following standards may be modified for good cause shown and where
appropriate to provide for the type of development and land use contemplated as a
planned development:

(4) Lots having fi-ontage on two streets should be avoided whenever possible.

*"WHENEVER POSSIBLE" IS CLEAR UNAMBIGIQUS LANGUAGE....AND IT ADDS

"SHOULD" NOT "MAY", ADDITIONALLY TWO LOTS, 19 AND 20, WILL HAVE STREETS
ON THREE SIDES.

The Staff report suggests that "appears" is good enough to control the granting of a
variance of the private road. This in reference to whether or not the future can be
foretold as to whether future traffic patterns will be affected. Absent physical limitations
or features it may well be impossible to foretell the future traffic patterns. In the
approval of Shane Snodgrass' development on Speyers Road, the city was making a case
for requiring the developer to move the access road based on the potential of linking it
to a future road from Valhalla Heights. The Hearing Examiner rejected the staff
recommendation due to a lack ability to accurately predict future opportunities.



Merium-Webster An Encyclopaedia Britannica Company

Pull Definition of UNDUE
1: not due: not yet payable
2: exceeding or violating propriety orfitness: excessive <undueforce>
Pull Definition ofHARDSHIP
1: privation, suffering
2: something that causes or entails suffering orprivation
Pull Definition ofPRIVATION
1: an act or instance ofdepriving: deprivation
2: the state ofbeing deprived; especially: lack ofwhat is neededfor existence

From the Selah Staff report "undue hardship may be created as a result of strict
compliance with its provisions or standards adopted by reference. The following findings
are necessary to recommend an exception:"

10.50.070 - Exceptions.

(a) Exception Requirements. The hearing examiner may recommend to the city council
an exception from the requirements of this chapter when, in the examiner's opinion,
undue hardship may be created as a result of strict compliance with the provisions of
this chapter or any standards adopted by reference. In recommending an exception the
hearing examiner may prescribe conditions that the examiner deems necessary to or
desirable for the public interest. No exception shall be recommended unless the hearing
examiner finds:

1. There are special physical circumstances or conditions affecting the property
such that the strict application of the provisions of the (subdivision) chapter
would deprive the applicant of the reasonable use or development of the land.

2. That the exception is necessary to insure such property the rights and
privileges enioved by other properties in the vicinity.

3. That the public interest is preserved.

(b) Applications Required. Applications for an exception shall be submitted in writing
by the subdivider prior to or during the installation of the required facilities to the
hearing examiner. The application shall state fully all substantiating facts and evidence
relating to the request. A request for an exception shall be considered separate and
apart from the consideration of the plat.

THERE IS NO APPLICATION FOR THE PRIVATE STREET WITH SUBSTANTIATING

FACTS AND EVIDENCE RELATING TO THE REQUEST

Mr. Sample has presented no evidence of physical circumstances or conditions affecting
the property, simply his desire to maximize the monetary profit. The property is not
being denied "reasonable use or development" into an R-1 neighborhood by refusing to
allow the private road. As for the public interest, Mr. Sample has failed to present any
credible data supporting a measurable benefit to the "public interest" which is required
for a variance to achieve the private road, the only benefit is to, again, maximize profits
for the developer...Which has nothing to do with "the public interest is preserved".

The "undue hardship" clause was vacated when Mr. Sample abandoned work on an
approved development that didn't require a variance for a private road on this exact
same land. The "property rights and privileges" are still available without the private
street. He is a not a victim of "undue hardship" of land use and not subject to



consideration of the "undue hardship" clause- Furthermore, he bought the property as
it is and was fully aware of its physical size and was granted a preliminary plat earlier.

The "undue hardship" that requires a variance for the private road is driven by
maximizing the monetization through the number of lots, Mr. Sample has demonstrated
no effort to develop other configurations than the private street, before declaring "undue
hardship". Absent presentation ofother options like Cul-de-sac, a variance on the width
to length ratio of lots and making a definitive case why other solutions aren't
"reasonable" he has no basis to declare an "undue hardship". Dan Bower was allowed a
ratio of 1 to 3.629 (75.32' X 273.31") on lot width to length at 207 East Goodlander when
he divided his land in May 28, 2014.

The private street is a public safety issue, there will be no curbs, gutters or sidewalks
and fences may be placed directly adjacent to the 20' road surface, where is the safe
walk area for pedestrians or school children?

The private street will create "flag lots" of all parcels using the street. Effectively the
buildable lot area is served by long privately owned access strips or driveways that are
being labeled as a "Private Street".

Will the road surface be required to control water runoff without gutters and how can
water from driveways be allowed to run into the private street without gutter controls?

The required road surface standard on Lyle Loop is 32' wide, why is it acceptable to
reduce the trafficked surface on the unguarded private road by 37.5% and call it a safe
road... The city of Selah uses established standards for safety within the city limits.
SMC 10.50.041 (a) (2) Standard Specifications. Does the city have the authority to waive
their responsibility and liability for public safety within the city limits?

Since there will be no parking siUowed on the private road, is the City of Selah prepared
to enforce the regulation? If not how is this to be enforced?

Is it legal to claim property from a second party land owner to create a private road
from their lots 11, 12, 13, 14, 15 and deny the same land owners access to land they
are paying property taxes on and as legal owner of the land they may be subject to
liability issues fi-om road users?

When the proposed private street is removed from the development almost all
issues are resolved. That being the case, how... can the variance be granted?

COMPREHENSIVE GROWTH MANAGEMENT ACT

Objective HSG 1: Maintain and upgrade the character of existing residential
neighborhoods.

Policy HSG 1.1: Discourage rezoning which would allow incremental conversion of
existing sin^e-family dwellings to duplexes or multi-family dwellings.

Policy HSG 1.2: Encourage new single-family development throughout existing single-
family neighborhoods as redevelopment and infill construction at appropriate densities.

Objective HSG 2: Encourage new residential development to approximate existing
residential densities and housing mix levels.

Objective HSG 4: Encourage new residential construction to be compatible with existing
residential development.



Washington courtshave long condemned "spotzoning". Smith v. Skagit County, 75Wn.2d 715,
743,453 P.2d 832 (1969); SaveANeighborhood Environment v. City of Seattle, Wn.2d 280,286,
676 P.2d (1984); and Chrobuck v.Snohomish County, 78 Wn.2d 858, 872,480 P.2d 489 (1971).
In Anderson v. Seattle, Wn.2d 198, 390 P.2d 994 (1964), a rezone from multiple residence low
density to multiple residence high density was set aside asanillegal spotzone because itprimarily
aimed at benefiting the private interest of the propertyowner applicantand not the community
as a whole. As such the rezone was arbitrary, capricious, unreasonable and illegal. Id. At 200-
202.

While Mr. Sample is not asking for a rezone he isdemonstrating the belief that a property right
isto develop property to the absolute maximum even when variances have to begranted to bend
the rules or codes. When a developer tries to max out the density of residencesthen claim it is
a property right to develop it to the max, they are in error. Courts and the Comprehensive
Growth Management Act both recognize the density designation is a maximum not a target.



SELAH

PRQMNAf.MEDDEVOOPMENT
or

SOMERSETII MTKSOFTXSEt/4OFSECTIONtO.TOWNSKPMNORmRANSEMEAST,WAL
orrOFSCUM,'takmacounty,waswnoton

VBI^

-SsU

»/''lOT-4

rfr-

•-i^tiaSLsH •'aaich^^MWs,

^)lcr.^.

i\\\I\\I—
JIMs.viMir>Ww

V+ot'o«

'a:

\^

•,

toT:
KiUrV.

mSt\$if.

USALeaCRFTONt

riicaA

MmiMHMJerncMeRMctreuMm
crMteuiMunouMWKcrIMC
tOMCAtl0W«M9ANDfi<t«UlMlitRlt
9MATNMfor1HCHeMNMMfOfM
MiwKM/hfiMleuvcAarouMniiV
•«MwftCACTDVMtSIilMMT9TK
iMNumiM.orwcwAom^ioMcm«i»
MSCMHA.1Mt99l4N9nK•««(tl
PAauM

I0BM9«TMiOTI,mMHMMtOAAl

MtronOMorwcAtploMtormt
tammixuno>«<mnrwwp»cr
lOUffiaMiiifiwi440*iMi^iqca«^
eewo«woimsroisni

AtAWl91Mcast
'iO»TW«Cr
nmcAficoMn

rar

IONicAOCTwiKcr
erMnmcAcicl,

cttWMenrvBts>9ral
HCor|A»CAMktM1M

IAowloricoioipci«Mpictwarne*>-
IMncDSeNCtsdtftHmcecfttis tauwAOfwi}

wyecaoMiiwwc1*1*f«T
MttttritMAVroNMfitwemmi»c
rmcreoHptetnotecwBtfcoi
aSimiftcMMCojtHttt.wmetor
IMAC«Am.PAHtCTiM.

rcrtt9eairacAiicuaaioi

V410W,.sJirr«,
.A•:a..
\-On

>.1^1111^"VI

—u'J"

^_Viv'
5

;^̂-sy?-OJt

-VI

S^
"tot17S,

asm

Nennrcis&»'

9»IM4CfANUTIOOQa%f.Wl

•S»TOSrU.'S5S?r!'^^
o11fOMMOWMliMI*.«mmmt•tIMTAMWASIBIOCHOUMIII/S»aB<.tCMOMAfiC.mm
*rieMiMl>.9rcNiuori)iV.leuiUoiuMttTttc'.

9tnm»9M1M1&aacMnooAk0KoaeoKtmaafcmaaaacc.o<inooRismtr.

O«ie"t<u«umMacPioeR.9mamm.1iad^tcanoana#.cwtnooNimitr.

9wmmil.U/A.YAORC•Toimtfim.

tlillUKlvtgMIZI?!rETgrsg
•ryt;i,UMK!.lTT:MMiIMfTIi7:ay7TTniHnrM
•cT—CTiTrjBTTJ—Tiraimnmgi^rTiaffiiumcri
••MnrTTagi.-r.jini^iTMFTniagrTiTi•

t\r.iiim\j-MtmnjmmiLmw:i:r:am:TnamK7r3m

lBT,jh,
•gmV

-S h-
mjd£~

OVNUI/eCVCWKflWRVtYOR/OIGMKA

rtf?oiAMS&ttuMCiK linWStUWOMAiOWi
WoaWPOW^wlMIC9

\"t
...\\\\

ivl¥if\V

[31J5A^*''mminjNc£rAm TNnu.wAHBimnen

fRuwtiirMMCDKvaonarT•MMn

orMNcawitiiAM•Aieu0aaqi

tum-wmc.LLC.

".! XX1l/L«f/LRC.M.1-11M.N-teuw



)

LOTIS
fit*sr.

I''sinm^K

PRELNNAnrFUNNS)DCVaOPMENT
OP

SOMERSETII
:sc1/4
CITY01

IM-n«9VJ0PTHESC1/«0PatCTIOMtt,TOWNSWMNORTHRANOC18EAST,WJ*
CfTYOPSOAHVANMACOUNTY.WASMNSTON

i»

LOTtS
mo%r,

LOT1
TcnV.

LOTIt

LYl£LOOPROAO
••mtrcnur

LOTa

LOT10
nojtr.

LOTtt
V.B

LOTt

22K^.S&!S

LOT>0
fWOu.

lOTs1;
neoir.

LOT6
fWDtf

LOT«
fenif.

in'isgs

ffwrtIfgg

Uwww.WL
T.MM,CSi

ttULOOPBOAO
metremi?

LOTta
imifi

)

.lEOM.otscRpma

PAAtaA

MseuwiwerBEignwsteuwoi
crMBuiiaMffluSnRer
teuBcmoiMWBitmscsnnMiiorm
9sMtpm9sceecwmvernt
•eesiwcferselgmciwewm*<r

——iMcjcsr9sc
„,--eo^nwtturn,
Bng%toc^HNOISVSMC1|

«S(tstI,jCMUUSISCM
MveuactsMiAASMif,

STStttBHOr
-'4f»iCOQSMB

'A\fjgf*UMBoiMimtru

iTAfwtoificatf

PARca•

aotriconpvoc SOBMMCMr

LOT14

I

SfscMnwni
9SSQTnoracf

twnfgf
wftsccclam*p*t»c*nnfits
fMKMCnowimcttTIDecpm

tSJt ernoSTn. won.cMt

PLSA
mcarifieeiN*va«c

nsNDm
^MO

raitMrnair

tMon1—wipwi•asifloimni££
CMSrt•AMISAM

.,JmmMMAAM

mwmm

MA

•n

MAMa

mmMl•A

mmmmmmMMMA

•r^wr-rnrmmmHMmmUiUA

mmIMMMMM

ffr-T-^rrru1

owwfVMvoopeRsLmvcTon/cNcmii*"rr*rTocvacmwrI crMwea«oiiui«ii•iian*wni

\mm.69Ull

tt»WTNOMI.SMlllCISHUMI

—mum«s—S&SZSLS
auicgw-SAMPti.ux;I

it/t«%/t.CCtAT««4W.S-Wt«l|t«rIII



CITY OF SELAH
Public Works Department

222 Souih Rushniorc Raid Phone 509-698-736S

.Sfil.AH.WASHINCiTON 98942 Fax 509-698-7372

CITY OF SELAH PLANNING COMMISSION

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING

NOTICE IS ffiREBY GIVEN that on Tuesday, March 17, 2015, commencing at 5:30 p.m., or
as soon thereafter as practical, in Council Chambers, Selah City Hall, 115 W. Naches, Selah,
WA., the Planning Commission will conduct a public hearing to receive testimony and to
consider adoption of text amendments to Selah Municipal Code as requested by Wayne Worby.
The proposed text antendments are as follows;

Proposed Amendment to Title 10. Chapter 10.12:

Repeal SMC 10.12.040 Designated two-familv residential lots,

Proposed Amendment to Title 10. Chapter 10.28. Table A-5:

Amend the Table to remove two-family dwellings as a Class 1 use in the R-1 zone.

Repeal SMC 10.28.040(1)

A copy of the request to amend the Selah Municipal Code is available for public inspection
during regularbusiness hours (8:00 a.m. to 5:00p.m.) at the Selah Planning Department, 222
South Rushmore Road, Selah, WA.

Dated this 4th day ofMarch, 2015.

/si

Thomas R Durant, Community Planner



Kwoau

mtu-amt

CMffWC
18
AIM uriMsi

20' Access
P.S. EASOflENr

arrepsajtii z
PMiea.m
SO9<2»4M0

/ S'OAKBtD
«M£ FDKC

20' ACCESS 4rv~ -
it\P.S. EASEKNT

607.01-

SW COR. SEC. 25.
T-14 H. R-10 E.WJ1I.
2-1/2' ALUM. CAP tM
MON. CASE FOUND
SEE LCR 7639176

fSumncoiMrr
pAKceLmx
mcv-uta

S BS19 E 273Jt

UT a I0T 47 LOT 4e

R S49 X
^saFtd

t

DOT 40

an

JOT 99

13.7

•^PARK

LOT 304^

LOT
4too

BOOT

LOT IB

SO SO. Hii
mggr

LOT 17
SO sa FT

LOT 5

3792 sa n

LOT 4

2700 SSL El.

LOT 3

^oo so-ol-'

(m 2
4bea sa nl

ow

son.

|]sn
Sa n.

an

107 97
2t«

sa n.

90 FT.

SIFT

10714

2490
an.

ZJiM
5 OSIWW'nsW.Tg-

SO. FT.

or 95

LOT 33
3999 sa

son

2400

92 n.

JOT 19

an.

un^i
/MS I
an

tract 1,
io*s5Aorh.

/-PARK X'

/ -

aojii
LOT 2

LOT 1

.sa r

GOODLANDBR ROAD

Hoau eoamy
p*ncB.m.y

/

rMOMCpum
pjaiea.ua.

^9li2s-9aoa
•^W ACCESS

PA EASEH^

mni

\ nURSLMd^

20" ACCESS k
P^l EASEMENT

25* ACCESS

S 1/4 COR. SEC. 2&
T-14 N, R-1B E.IKM.

3* AUai. CAP W
MON. CASE FOUND

SEE ICR 1M-700

/

—26* *txe& A /
P.S. Ei^EUENT /

y

NOTl

1.

Z

n

—a



Taiciina L-ouiiiy uia rage i oi i

u[Print Map) [Close Mapli'-^ ^ Yakimap.com

[4458 i

'rOlO/Jlrt<pU^(^S

)-114
2

80-114

11472

11419

C/J 11421

11422
22

11423

t11528 811535 CD
CO
ID

10
h-
CO
ID

3
ID ID

i^mdmbER SQUARE \
3 K
-jjtsaa
4 ;5

_imU±1.5.32^.-

11533
11506 1

96-212

11413

0/S ^
CopyrightlC>^ah)nta>Ceunty glCl /! yg

11466
1

M-9

11467 ! 11468
2 3

M-91

11469
4

fS?"^ 10^^

PROPERTY PHOTO

HlHf

Zoning:

Urban Growth Area: Selah

FEMA: Not In floodplain (X)

+ Latitude:46'' 39' 52.893"

PROPERTY iNFORMATlON

Parcel Address: 124 GOODLANDER RD, SELAH .WA 98942

Owner(s): LUCIA DETLOFF

Parcel Number: 18143511530 [Parcel Size: 3841 Square Feet
Property Use: 11 Single Unit

TAX AND ASSESSMENT INFORMATION

Tax Code Area (TCA): 410

Improvement Value: $90000

CurrenlUse Value: $0

New Conslructlon:$0

OVERUY INFORMATION

jJurisdiction: Selah

•Tax Year: 201S

L"a"nd"Va"lue"$49"36o
CurfentUseflffi^ffiintr$0

ITotal Assessed Value:$139300

iFuture Landuse Designation: City Limits (Yakima County Plan 2015)

"Fr^PanVlN'umber: 53077007160
LOCATION INFORMATION

,+ Longitude:-120' 31' 54.476" :Range:18 Township:14 Section:3S

Narrative Description: Section 35 Township 14 Range 18 Quarter NE GOODLANDER SQUARE LOT 3 PLAT 7242072

DISCLAIMER

MAP AND PARCEL DATAARE BELIEVEDTO BE ACCURATE, BUT ACCURACY IS NOT GUARANTEED: THIS IS NOT A LEGAL
DOCUMENT AND SHOULD NOT BE SUBSTITUTED FOR A TITLE SEARCH, APPRAISAL, SURVEY. FLOODPLAIN OR ZONING
VERIFICATION

we

/ f (•L

hitp://www.yakimap.coni/servlel'com.esri.esrimap.Esrimap?name=YakGlSH&Cmd=PrinL.. 5/18/2015



I ilKllim \^UUIliy VJIO

{Print Map] fClose Maol

kS/^rVTj

1
80-114

rage i or i

yakimap.com

2
80-114

R F^AQ
la

s.
CO
to

11472
P (^0)

P-97

(JJ 11421 ni528 s11535 <D
CO
LO

)ilMbER\ 11419
\ 19 CV 11422

22

square

11530. .1153.3.
y

/ 11531 11532.,

11467
2

M-9

11506 1
96-212

11413 . s . .

cbpy^hl Gl^i /\

X

PROPERTY PHOTO

l/CK IJimili!" w

Zoning:

Urban Growtti Area: Selah

FEMA: Not In floodplain (X)

+ Latttude:46'> 39' 53.357"

11423
23 11466

1

M-9

11468
3

PROPHP.ri' INFORMATION

Parcel Address: 122 GOODLANDER RD, SEtJtH ,WA 9B942

Parcel Owner(s): MATTHEW &MANDi"m MOULT^Y
Parcel Number 18143511529

11469 j

FeBl"T5""'" "?Oo"TS

;Parcel Size:4960 Square Feet

Property Use: 11 Single Unit

TAX AND ASSESSMENT INFORMATION

Tax Code Area (TCA): 410

Improvement Value: $98300

CurrentUse Value: $0

New Constructton:$0

Tax Year: 2015

jLand Value: $50680

ICurrentUs^^^W^ntTso
Total Assessed Value:$148950

OVERLAY INFORMATION

Jurisdiction: Selah

Fut(^ Landuse Designation: City Limits (Yakima County Plan 2016)
RRM Panel Number: 53077C0716D""

l-OCATION iNFORMATIOH

1+ Uongitude:-120° 31"54A77" |Range:18 Town5hlp:14 Sect!on;35
Narrative Description: Section 35 Township 14 Range 18 Quarter NE GOODLANDER SQUARE LOT 2 PLAT 7242072

DISCLAIMER

MAP AND PARCEL DATAARE BELIEVEDTO BE ACCURATE, BUT ACCURACY IS NOT GUARANTEED; THIS IS NOT A LEGAL
DOCUMENT AND SHOULD NOT BE SUBSTITUTED FOR A TITLE SEARCH, APPRAISAL, SURVEY, FLOODPLAIN OR ZONING
VERIFICATION

^ 2 oi'io

http://www.yakimap.com/servlet/com.esri.esrimap.Esrimap?name=YakGISH&Cmd=Print... 5/18/2015



I dKllim \^UU1U}' \Jli3

rPfint Mapl fClose Maol

aiil^

80-114

rage 1 011

•Yakimap.cQm

2
80-114

R
11472
P (20)

P-97

C/J 11421 1M5 s11535

-y-

CO
CO

itr
h-
CO
ir>

\ 11419
Q;

CN/i

21

11422
22

11530 '11531..["

SQUA^RE!

11413 / \ ^
13 /

^pyright 6lB| /\

PROPERTY PHOTO

I'M is:i'

Zoning:

Urban Growth Area; Selah
FE'̂ M: Not In floodplaln (X)

+ Latitude:46'' 39' 53.926"

r
/

11506 1
96-212

11423
23

11531 ...11532.

11466 i 11467
I 2

'W-SI M-9

11468
3

11469
4

FmI SO 100 . 190

PROPERTN' lUFORMATiON

Parcel Address; 120 GOODLANDER RD. SELAH ,WA 98942

Parcel Owner(s): MATTHEW & MANDI M MOULTRAY

Parcel Number; 18143511528
T,

Parcel Size; 6822 Square Peet

_ , iProperty Use: 11 Single Unit

TAX AND ASSESSMENT INFORMATION

Tax Code Area (TCA); 410

Improvement Value: $98300

CurrentUse Value: $0

New Conslruction:$0

OVERLAY INFORfAATICN

Tax Year 2015

'LandWuV$52060"
iCurrentUse^^flffiRent: $0
<Total Assessed Value:$1S0300

iJurisdiction: Selah

[Future Landuse Designation: City Limits (Yaklma County Plan 2015)

FIRM Panel Number: 53077C0716D

LOCATION INFORMATION

1+Longjtude:-120® 31' 64.479" Range:18 Townshlp:14 Sectlon:35

Narrative Description: Section 35 Township 14 Range 18 Quarter NE GOODLANDER SQUARE LOT 1 PLAT 7242072

DISCLAIMER

MAP AND PARCEL DATA ARE BELIEVED TO BE ACCURATE, BUT ACCURACY IS NOT GUARANTEED: THIS IS NOT A LEGAL
DOCUMENT AND SHOULD NOT BE SUBSTITUTED FOR A TITLE SEARCH, APPRAISAL, SURVEY, FLOODPLAIN OR ZONING
VERIFICATION

3.H

http://www.yakimap.coin/servlet/com.csri.csrimap.Esrimap?name=YakGISH&Cmd=Print... 5/18/2015



I aKiina c-uumy uiis

fPrirtt Map) fClose Maol

43427

43426

43425

31
Copyright (C) Yaktma tQ

PR0PER1Y PHOTO

Se

Zoning:
Urban Growth Area: Selah
FE^: Not innoodplain (X)

+ Latitude:46® 40' 03.454"

' ^^fS, !/ \^Q0-2007 \10/1 1/07
rAM'^-r

44021

rage i oi i

Vakimap.c<;»m

44455
44454 X 44452

\

44453 44451

21 20 19

SOMERSET

43474

tVLE
43472 43473

44436
44437

PROPERTr' INFORMATION

Parcel Address: 51 LYLE LOOP, SELAH ,WA 98942

Parcel Owner(s): TROY L &MICALAS TORNOW

Parcel Number. 18142644453

LOOP
44439'!444M^-iocfJ 44

I Fnt 9 inn i iwi100 ! ISO

[Parcel Size: 8875 Square Feet
Property Use: 11 Single Unit

TAX AND ASSESSMENT INFORMATION

'Tax Code Area (TCA): 403

il^rovement Value: $203900
ICurrentUse Value: $0
New Construction:$0

OVERLAY INFORMATION

lJurisdiction: Selah

Tax Year 2015

Land Value: $59150

ICurrentUse Improvement: $0
Tola) Assessed Value:$263050

Future Landuse Designation: UGA (Yakima County Plan 2015)

'FIRM Panel Number: S3077C0716D

LOCATION INFORMATION

\* Longitude:-120° 32' 06.401" |Range:18 Townshlp:14 Section;26
Narrative Description: SOMERSET 1: LOT 21

DISCLAIMER

MAP AND PARCEL DATA ARE BELIEVED TO BE ACCURATE. BUT ACCURACY IS NOT GUARANTEED: THIS IS NOT A LEGAL
DOCUMENT AND SHOULD NOT BE SUBSTITUTED FOR A TITLE SEARCH. APPRAISAL. SURVEY. FLOODPLAIN OR ZONING
VERIFICATION

http://www.yakimap.coin/servlet/com.esri.esrimap.Esrimap?name=YakGISH&Cmd=Print... 5/18/2015



1 aKima c.oumy uia rage i oii

{Print Maol fClose Mad §p.c^ni

44450 44448
4444944451

44445

H.E. B

3QP~-ROAD
44441

44440

44411

12

) raklma County GIS

PROPERTY PHOTO

Zoning;

1tt42e-<4U3

7itua

Urban Growth Area: Selah

FEMA: Not in floodplain (X)

+ Latltude:46° 40'01,728"
Narrative Oescription: SOMERSET 1: LOT 11

44442 \ 44443

10 \ ^ 11

44400

44Q|iMBh-1f]0FBel

PROPERTY INFORMATION

Parcel Address; 110 LYLE LOOP. SELAH .WA 98942

Parcel Owner(s): MARK R WELLER

Parcel Number: 18142644443

Property Use; 11 Single Unit

IParcel Size: 13867 Square Feet

TAX AND ASSESSMENT INFORMATION

Tax Code Area (TCA); 403

Improvement Value: $192400

CurrentUse Value: SO

New Constructlon:SO

OVERLAY INFORfMTION

'Jurisdiction: Selah

Tax Year; 2015

' L£nd ValuV!^^^^^
jCurrenlUse Improvement: $0

Total Assessed Va1ue:$254750

Future Landuse Designation: UGA (Yaklma County Plan 201S)

FIRM Panel Number: 53Q77C0716D '
LOCATION INFORMATION

!->• Long>tude:-120<' 32' 00.223" Range:18 Townshtp;14 Section:26

DISCLAIMER

MAP AND PARCEL DATA ARE BELIEVED TO BE ACCURATE, BUT ACCURACY IS NOT GUARANTEED; THIS IS NOT A LEGAL
DOCUMENT AND SHOULD NOT BE SUBSTITUTED FOR A TITLE SEARCH, APPRAISAL, SURVEY, FLOODPLAIN OR ZONING
VERIFICATION

http://www.yakimap.com/servlet/com.esri.esrimap.Esrimap?namc=YakGlSH&Cmd=Print... 5/18/2015



Copyright (C) Yakima QounW GIS

Dfw Inch-100 Faal

taT's 100 ISO

PROPERTY PHOTO PROPERTY INFORMATION

Parcel Address: 50 LYLE LOOP. SELAH ,WA 98942

Parcel Owner(s): DOUGLAS & KRISTEN R ARMSTRONG

Parcel Number: 18142644437 'Parcel Size: 8656 SouareFeet

Property Use; 11 Single Unit " "
TtX AND ASSESSMENT INFORMATION

Tax Code Area fTCAl: 403 iTax Year: 2015

Improvement Value: $134100 'Land Value^SSISO
CurrentUse Value: $0 CurrentUsi^mpro^enl: SO
New Construction:$0 Total Assessed Value:$193250

OVERLAY INFORMATION

Zoning:

Urban Growth Ares: Selah

Jurisdiction: Selah

Future Landuse Designation: U6A (Yakima County Plan 2015)

FEUA: Not in floodplain (X) FIRM Panel Number S3077C0716D

LOCATION INf-ORMATION

♦ Latltode:46® 40-01.755" + Longltude:-120» 32" 06.910" •Range:18 Towr>shlp:14 Sectlon:26

Narrative Description: SOMERSET 1:1 .OTS

DISCLAIMER

MAP AND PARCEL DATA ARE BELIEVED TO BE ACCURATE, BUT ACCURACY IS NOT GUARANTEED; THIS IS NOT A LEGAL
DOCUMENT AND SHOULD NOT BE SUBSTITUTED FOR A TfTLE SEARCH. APPRAISAL, SURVEY, FLOODPLAIN OR ZONING
VERIFICATION

i.u

http://www.yakimap.com/servlet/com.esri.esriniap.Esrimap?name=YakGISH&Cmd=PrinL.. 5/18/2015



City ofSelah, Washington
Office ofdie Hearing Examiner

In the matter of the Review for the 20-

Lot "Preliminary Plat of Somerset IP* in
the vicinity ofHerlou Drive and Lyle
Loop Road and an Application for
Subdivision Standard Variance

Submitted by Zuker-Sample
Development, LLC

Selah FUe Nos. 912.42.15-02; 915.42.15-01

HEARING EXAMINER

RECOMMENDAIIONS

I. INTRODUCTION.

Zuker-Sample Development, LLC (hereafter "Applicant") has applied to subdivide 2 parcels of
property and to serve 4 of the newly created lots by means of a private street using access
easements across other lots created in the subdivision process. Two of the lots served by the
private street are proposed to be designated as two-family residential lots based on provisions
allowing such designations in Chapter 10.12 of the Selah Municipal Code. The name of the
proposed subdivision is "Somerset II." The proposal would result in the subdivision of the 2
existing lots into 18new single femily lots and thetwo designated two-family residential lots. A
portion ofthe subject property wasapproved fora 17lot preliminary platbyYakima County, but
not recorded. Previous to the earlierplat approval, part of the property was a tract in Somerset 1,
a subdivision that, other than the subject 2 parcels, has been built out. The City Public Works
Director reportedly hasconcurred withtire proposed public street design.

An open record hearing on the subdivision and variance proposal was conducted June 10, 2015.
Community Planner Tom Durant provided a staffreport prior to thehearing, which is included in
the hearing record. Roy Sample appeared at the hearing on behalf of the Applicant. Several
members of thepublic commented extensively on the^plication at diehearing. The record for
the current application includes, but is not limited to, die application materials, the staffreport
and recommendation, comment notes and letters from members of die public, materials
presented at the hearing by Mr. Sample, and materials presented at the hearing by persons
providing comments. The Hearing Examiner takes notice of the public records concerning the
adoption of the applicable ordinances.

The concerns raised in the public comments related to
• theadequacy of completion of theapplication materials, including theplatmap;
• the inconsistency ofdiqilexes with R-1 zoning;
• the potential adverse effects of duplex development on the neighborhood, including

aesthetic impacts finm duplex design;
• increase in traffic in the area, with associated pedestrian safety issues;
• adverse effects to the neighborhood from rental properties;
• necessity for fire protection facilities, curbing, sidewalks, and street lighting consistent



with city standards;
stonnwater runoffmanagement;
the relationship of minimum lot-size requirements and the encumbrance of created lots
with access easements;

the basis for complying with maximum lot coverage requirements in the zoning
ordinance;
theapplicability of variance or exception review criteria fortheprivate street;
the amount and nature ofevidence to support the elements ofa variance request;
the role of the developer's past actions inproducing and current hardship considered in y
review ofa variance request;
the appropriate location of designated two-iamily residential lots withinthe subdivision,
based on traffic levels on the proposed private street
impacts fiom multi-level home construction on neighboring views [harmonious
compatibility issues];
compliance of the proposed configuration of Lyle Loop Road improvements with public
street design standards;
standards applicable to private street design;
potential multiple street frontage forcertain lotsdue to theproposed design of the private
street;

enforceability of paricing restrictions on the propose private street;and
compliance withtheSelah Urban Area Comprehensive Plan.

n. SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATION.

This preliminary plat reflecting thedesignation ofLots 19and 20as two family residential lots
should beapproved, subject to conditions to assure compliance with subdivision design and
zoning stand^s, including requirements to promote the compatibility ofthe development ofthe
two family residential lots with adjacent properties. Inaddition, it is recommended thatthe
private roadway proposed aspart of the development berequired to comply with typical
residential access street roadway section design standards asa matter ofthepublic interest, and
for the protection ofthe publichealth, safetyand welfare.

Based on (1) the staff report and exhibits, (2) the review of the original preliminary plat
^plication, (3) the viewing ofthe site, (4) comments received atthe open record hearing and in
writings and a review of pertinent development regulations, the 2005 Selah Urban Area
Comprehensive Plan Comprehensive Plan") provisions and the legislative history of the
pertinent ordinances, &e Hearing Examiner makes &e following

m. FINDINGS.

1. APPUCANT AND PROPERTY OWNER

Page 2
Somerset II
912.42.15-02; 915.42.15-01



The preliminaiy plat and variance application were filed by Zuker-Sample Development, LLC,
P.O. Box 247, Selah, WA, 98942, through Roy Sample, its manager. The property owners of
record Zuker-Sample Development, LLC.

2. LOCATION.

The properties firont on HerlouDriveto the westand LyleLoopRoadto the east.

3. PARCEL NUMBERfSL

The Yakima County Assessor's tax parcel numbers for the properties are 181426-44005 and
181426-44021.

4. APPUCATION.

The^plication is for preliminary plat approval of "Somerset II" a 4.71-acre, 20-lotsubdivision.
Eighteen (18)lotsaredesignated for single family residences andthepreliminary plat requests
that twolots (Lots 19and 20)be designated as "twofemily residential lots." TheSEPA
checklist indicates that the buildingheight for any duploces on theses lots would be 28 feet The
subdivision would access the existing City transportationgrid by the completionofLyle Loop
Road fi-om its current terminus to a new intersection with Herlou Drive, completing Lyle Loop
Road. Theproposed course of thenewsegment of Lyle Loop Road follows the same course as
waspreviously approved by Yakima County before thesubject property wasarmexed to the City
ofSelah. At the hearing, the Applicant asserted againthat the City had previously approved this
alignment Utility lines have beeninstalled to follow thestreet alignment in theearlier county
preliminary plat{qrproval. A ftdl range ofutilities is available to the property.

The proposed lots are organized essentially into three blocks: a southern block fi'onting onLyle
Loop Road to the north (Lots 1through 9),a central block fi^nting onLyle Loop Road tothe
south (Lots 11 through 16) and anorthern block (Lots 17through 20). Lot 10 would front on
Herlou Drive. Asdepicted onthepreliminary plat, the lots range in size from 8,000 square feet
to 12,298 square feet. Average lots size is8,570 square feet The proposed two-family
designated lots (Lots 19, and 20) are9,653 square feet and 9,614 square feet respectively. The
lots at the new intersection ofLyle Loop Ro^ and Herlou Drive (Lots 9and 16) are 8,800 and
8,807 square feet, reflecting a 10% increase inminimum lots size for comer lots as required in
the City's lotdesign standards. Thepreliminary platshows a 16-foot wide sewer easement
through Lots 11 and 12thatwould extend theline onLyle Loop Road totheaccess/utility
easement for the private street allowing sewer extension toLots 17 through 20.

The northern block of lots would be served by a private street in a paved 20-foot wide access
easement burdening Lots 13 and 14and centered ontheir mutual boundary, aswell asburdening
portions ofthenorth 10 feet ofLots 11 through 15, and the south 10 feet ofLots 17 through 20
Where it mters«:ts with LyleLoop Road, theprivate street would be configured to provide a
"hammerhead" turnaround for emergency vehicles. Theturnaround area wouldbe pavedto a
width of26 feet within an access easement ofthe same width burdening Lots 13 and 14. The

Pages
Somerset II

912.42.15-02; 915.42.15-01



application materials indicate that no parking will be allowed in the fire access portion ofthe
access easement.Str^t lightingand &e hydrantswouldbe included in the privatestreet design,
though locations are not specifiedon the preliminaryplat No provisionsfor sidewalks on the
private street are included in the applicafion materi^s. According to the application materials,
the access easementfor the private streetvdll be for the exclusiveuse ofsix lots; Lots 13and 14
and 17 through 20. It would not be available to three ofthe lots in the subdivisionover which it
crossesor abutsor the adjacent propertyto the east Lots 13and 14wouldhaveaccessto both
the private street and Lyle Loop Road.

The proposedmaximumresidential density is 4.67 dwellingunits/acre. Storm water would be
retained on site. The preliminaiy plat application materials indicate that developmentwould be
completed in three phases as follows: Phase 1 includes Lots 1 through S and 11 through 13;Phase2
includes Lots 6 through 10 and 14 through 16; Phase 3 includesLots 17 throu^ 20.

5. CURRENT SITE CONDITION AND ZONING

Zoning: Thesiteis zoned R-1 andis vacant. Theproperty is sloped downward generally west to
east Thesubject property is topographically lowerthan surrounding properties to the north,
west and south, lite northwest comer ofLot 17 is steeply sloped.

Transportation: Herlou Drive (within Yakima County, designated Local Access) is in asphalt
pavement withconcrete barrier curband gutter, withS-foot wide sidewalk onthe eastsideand /
illumination in a 60footwideright-of-way. LyleLoopRoad (Local Access within the City) is
in 32-foot wideasphalt pavement withconcrete rolled curband gutter, a S footwidesidewtilk on
the north and west sides ofthe street and illumination in a 50-foot wide right-of-way.

Utilities: Public sewer lines, water lines and drainage improvements have been installed in Lyle
Loop Road in accordance with the County decision approving theprevious preliminary plat;
engineering plans forthese improvements have been approved bytheSelah Public Works
Department per the staff r^ort

Water: An 8 inch domestic water line has been extended in the proposedaligoment ofLyle
Loop Road fix>m where it currently ends on theeast side ofthesite toHerlou Drive onthe west.

Sewer: An 8 inch line has been installed throughPhases 1 and 2 in the proposed alignmentof
Lyle LoopRoadfromthe existing end of that streetto the east and terminating just before
reaching Herlou Drive on thewest.

FireHydrants: Existing hydrants arelocated at theintersection ofLyle Loop Road andHerlou
Drive intheexisting Somerset I subdivision and about 520 feet tothe east onthenorth side of
Lyle Loop Road. Although hydrant locations for theproposal arenotindicated onthe
preliminary plat, a hydrant has been installed onthesite inthealignment ofLyle Loop Road
where it would fient on proposed Lots3 and 11 about450 feet (travel distance on the street)
from theinterior hydrant inSomerset I and about 460feet from Herlou Drive. Anadditional
hydrant will be required ontheproposed private access easement at thenorth endof Lot 13.

Page 4
Somerset 11
912.42.b-02; 915.42.15-01



6. NEIGHBORING ZONING AND LAND USE.

The following table describes the neighboring zoning and land use:

Area Land Use Plan Desisnation Zoning
North Detached single-

family homes on 0.4
acre lots

Low Density
Residential

One Family
Residential (Yakima
County-R-1)

Soudi Detached single-
family homes on
8,375 to 10,176
square foot (0.2 to
025 acre) lots

Low Density
Residential

One Family
Residential (R-1)

East Detached single-
femily homes on
15,795 to 28,624
square foot (036 to
0.66 acre) lots. One
large lot (2.81 acre)
with a single-^mily
home and raising
horses

Low Density
Residential

One-Family
Residential (R-1)

West Detached single-
family homeson 1/3
to Vt acre lots

Low Density
Residential

One-Family
Residential (Yakima
County-R-1)

The lots proposed to be designated as two-&niily residential lots adjoin three residential lots to
the north. One ofthe lots also borders a 2.8 acre parcel to the east which is partially undeveloped
with a older two story single family home with about 1^00 square feet on two stories, located
about170 feet away that is accessed from Selah Loop Road to theeast Thedeveloped lotsto the
north are all 0.44 acre, more or less, developed wiA one and two story (i.e., finished or partially
finished daylight basements) single family homes of wood frame construction with brick or
painted trim. The houses have 1,100 to 1,500 square foot footprints. All three ofthese homes are
set back 90 to 100 feet from the rear lot line shared with the proposed two-family residential lots.
There are fences, a retaining wall and a detached garage in the rear yards.

7. PUBLIC NOTICE

Based on the affidavitofmailing in the project files for this application, the notice ofthe hearing
was mailed to property owners within 600feet of the subject property on May22,2015. Notice

Page 3
Somerset n
912.42.15-02; 915.42.15-01



was also published in the Yakima Herald-Republic on May 22, 2015. Notice was also posted
on the propertyprior to hearing.

8. ENVreONMENTAL REVIEW.

A DeterminationofNonsignificance(DNS) (971.42.15-04) was issued on May 7,2015 using the
Optional Method of WAC 197-11-355. As a result of concerns raised about the notice, the
Noticeof Application was reissued on May20,2015 and an additional comment periodprovided
for comments on the environmental review to June 5, 2015. No appeal of the DNS was timely
filed.

9. 7nnf; set .ah urban area comprehensive plan designation.

The subject property and surrounding areas are designated as Low Density Residential
authorizing a maximum densityoffive (5) dwelling units per acre.

10. PRO.TECT ANALYSIS

a. Review Criteria.

1. Preliminary Plat Review: A hearing examiner recommendation on preliminary
plat is to be based on a determination ofwhether the proposed plat complies with the standards
set forth in Chapter 10.50 SMC and those adopted by reference, including but not limited to,
appropriate provisions for drainage, roads, alleys and other public ways, water supply, sanitai^
sewage disposal, parks, playgrounds, fire protection facilities, minimum lot size and other public
and private facilities and improvements and provisions contained in any of the city's adopted •
comprehensive plans (i.e., land use, sewage, storm drainage, transportation, water, etc.) and the
zoning ordinance. SMC 10.50.025. Subdivision design standards are set out in SMC 10.50.041
through SMC 10.50.046. Die hearing ocaminer may, at the examiner's discretion, recoinmend
higher standards than those set forth in the subdivision and zoning provisions of the Title 10 •
SMC if the examinerdetermines it is necessary to protect the health, safety, welfare and public .
interest ofthe city. SMC 10.50.026. It isnoted for the record that a standard set ofconditions
designed to assuring compliance with design standards and other applicable standards has been Jr
developed by city planning staffand is customarily included inreconunendations on preliminary
plat reviews. These include conditions requiring submission and city approval ofengineered
utility and drainage system plans and other public works elements ofthe projects. Adjustment is .
made to these standard conditions as necessary for particular projects in recommendations
provided to the CityCouncil.

2. Two Family Residential Lot Designation: SMC 10.12.040 allows ten percent of
the lots in a proposed land division of ten or more lots to be designated for future two-farmly
dwellings (or duplexes). The ordinance requires the Hearing Examiner to consider the lot
locations and tocareftilly consider adjacent properties toensure harmonious compatibility. Other
required standards include a minimum lot size of 9,000 square feet or the minimum lot size
based on slope specified in SMC 10.12.030.

Page 6
Somerset II
912.42.15-02; 915.42.15-01



3. Applicationfor "Variance." The Applicant £q>plied separately for a variance from
subdivision standards. The variance application was made on the basis ofguidance provided by AjlA^
the City, including guidance on site plan requirements. See Exhibit 4 in the record. The
Applicant also provided a narrative "Variance Proposal" (Exhibit 5) and a variance site plan

A threshold question is whether the Applicant is seeking an "exception" from subdivision
standards or a determination of allowability with respect to the use of a private street access to
the northern block of lots.' The code addresses "exceptions" to subdivision design standards
(generally in SMC 10.50.041 through SMC 10.50.046), and establishes a specific s^of"^
for the approval ofexceptions fiom such standards in SMC 10.50.070. Howey^iV^ subdivisionN
blockdesign standards also allowfor the use ofa privatestreet in a subdivis)jcm withoutreference
to an exception, ifthe private street meets block design criteria in SMC 1(o0dl4101)(4).

The narrative in the application materials specificallycites the private sneet proviaioiis in SMC
10.50.041(d)(4). It does not cite any other subdivision standards from which it might seek an
exception. On the other hand, the staff report analysis considers that the application materials
also provide both for lots not fronting on public streets and for lot configurations that can be
argu^ to amount to lots fionting on multiple streets, which might be contrary to the provisions
of SMC 10.50.041(e)(3)^ and(4/, respectively. In that case, an exception review in accordance
with SMC 10.50.070 would be the proper review procedure. Under that procedure, the hearing
examiner may recommend an exception fium the standards when undue hardship may be created
as a result of strict compliance with the requirements. Applications for exceptions must include
£q>propriate substantiatingfacts to showthe hardship. SMC 10.50.070.

(a). Permissibility ofPrivate Streets.

Interpretation of local ordinances is governed by the samerules of construction as state statutes.
Ordinances must be reasonably construed with reference to their purpose. HJS Development, Inc.
V. Pierce County 148 Wn.2d 451, 471-472, 61 P.3d 1141 (Wash. 2003). Ordinances are to be
interpreted to give effect to legislative intent. City ofSpokane v. Fischer, 110 Wn,2d 541, 542,
754 P.2d 1241 (1988), and to not produce an absurd result. Post v. CityofTacoma, 167 Wn.2d
300, 310, 217 P.3rd 1179 (2009). Ordinances must be interpreted and construed so that all the
language used is given effect, vrith no portion rendered meaningless or superfluous. Whatcom
Comty V. City of Bellingham, 128 Wn.2d 537, 546, 909 P.2d 1303 (Wash. 1996). The
subdivision design ordinance cannot properly be read to allow lots and blocks to be served by
private streets on the one hand ( based on Ae SMC 10.50.041(d)(4) language) and to require

' In Ch^ter 10.30 SMC, theSelah Municipal Code addresses variances indiebroad context ofTitle 10 SMC, and
establishes decisioncriteria to be appliedin approvinga variance. In absenceof a delegation ofauthorityto heara
variance pursuant to SMC 1.60.080, theHearing Examiner does nothave authority to actona variance. Block and
lot stand^s can also bemodified aspart ofa Planned Development rezone application, but no such application is
being considered in this proceeding.
^This subsection provides: "Each lotmust front upon a public street with a width not less than those set forth inthe
street standards."

' "Lots having frontage ontwo streets should beavoided whenever possible."

Page?
Somerset II
912.42.15-02; 915.42.15-01



across the board that lots be served by public streets on the other band (based on the SMC
10.50.041(e)(3) language). The staff report suggests that the latter ordinance provision relates
primarily to lot width rather than allowability of the use of private access streets, based on its
location in the lot design ordinance. Even if that is the case, it does not clearly resolve the
problem ofthe specificity of the language requiring frontage on a public street In addition, the
standardcould be read as requiring an appropriate street width to serve a lot rather than relating
to lot width. This ambiguity requiressome other means ofconstruingthe language.

The history of the ordinance prowdea^me umited ciaiificarion. Private streets in new
subdivisions were prohibited in 200tf/ to 201D,-SMC10.50.041(d)(4) wps amended to include a
proviso "that private access streets may be aumorized whtiie llUii& wilrbe no adverse effect on
future traffic circulation of neighboringparcels." The city council discussion in the March 23,
2010 City Council Minutes indicates that the allowance for private streets originated in the
context of implementation of the Planned Development ordinance and the potential
appropriateness of private streets in gated communities. The discussion emphasized that such *
developments and associated subdivisions were subject to frirdier city council review. Despite-
this di^ussion, the 2010 block design ordinance provided separately for both the modification of
the design standards through a planned development, and for the approval of private streets
following analysis of impacts to traffic circulation for neighboring properties. This change was
accompanies by changes to the ordinance relatingto

• parcels being so arranged so as to allow for the opening of future streets and logical'
further subdivision, unless doing so is impracticd for reasons of property size or
topography (SMC 10.50.041(b))

/"^ • conformance of public street location with tiie official street plan adopted or in
preparation by the city (SMC 10.50.041(c)(1)).

If the city council intended that private streets only be considered as part of Plaimed
Developments, it could have so provided; instead, it provided for allowability of private streets
(subject to consideration of traffic circulation impacts toneighboring properties) separately from
provisions for modification of the standards for Platmed Developments. It did so in the context
of other changes in the ordinance to promote public street planning and efficient city street
access to new subdivisions. No change was made to SMC 10.50.041(e)(3) at the same tinie^
which supports the staff report suggestion that the thrust of that subsection is not to requirejj
lots to be served by a public street

Considering these matters all together, it does not appear that theCity Council intended that an
SMC 10.50.070 exception wouldbe requiredfor a private street. Rather, a private street may be
approved if supported by findings that (1) there is"no adverse effect on future traffic circulation
of neighboring parcels," (2)thearrangement of lots for opening future streets is impractical and
(3)nostreet plandictates theextension of a public street rather tlmn the.proposed private street.

None of these considerations relate to tire roadv
Subdivisions still must make adequate provisions for

'requirements fflr a private street.
none of^e application

SMC 10.50.041 (dX4) asenacted byOrdinance 1635 provided that"every Jot andblock shall be served ficm a
publiclydedicated street."

Page 8
Somerset n
912.42.15-02; 915.42.15-01

/ ^
/ /



materials provided any rationale f<
street roadway width.

(//) ApplicabilityofSMC 10.50.041(e)(4).

Lots lundng frontage on twostreets should be avoided whenever possible. SMC 10.50.041(e)(4).
The Applicant did not apply for any exception to this requirement. The principle question
arising in the application of the ordinance is the extent to which it is mandatory under the
specific circumstances of the proposal. The staff report indicates that "whenever possible"
means that the standard is not mandatory. This characterization does not ^pear to completely
capture the intent expressed in SMC 10.50.041(e), which requires conformance with 6
enumerated standards. One view is that a proposal entailing frontage on two streets would have
to demonstrate that anotherconfiguration is not possible. This is the thrust ofmuch of the public
comment regarding alternative configurations to the private access street serving the proposed
northem tier of lots. But the ordinance does not expressly say "unless it is impossible to
configure lots in a subdivision without lots fronting on two streets."

However, this problem depends on the second frontage actually being on a public street
"Street" is a defined term in SMC 10.50.010(k). Streets are publicly owned. "Access easement"
means any private easement for the purpose of ingress and egress that is not dedicated to the
public and that is owned by the imderlying owners of the land over which it crosses. Title 10
SMC Appendix A. A "private street" is in the nature of an access easement. The regulatory
implications of frontage on two public streets are not clearly the same as those where access
easements are used to provide access to some lots while burdening other lots. It is equally
unclear diat the City Council intended that private access approaches would trigger the same
considerationsas public streets in its regulatory scheme. Private streets were not even permitted
when SMC 10.50.041(e)(4) was enacted. It is not appropriate to extend the scope of the
ordinance by implication under these circumstances. Development Services ofAmerica, Inc. v.
CityofSeattle. 138 Wn.2d 107,117,979 P.2d 387 (1999)

b. Application ofthe Review Criteria

(1) Conformance to the 2005Selah Urban Growth Area Comprehensive Plan:

The Low Density Residential designation for the subject property on the adopted 2005 Future
Land Use Map provides for a density of 5 dwellings per acre. Considered in its entirety, and
assuming that two of the lots would be developed as duplexes, the 20 lot plat has a density of
4.67 units per acre, which would comply with the density limitation in the land use
Comprehensive Plan. In otherrespects, unless a matter is not addressed by tiiedesign standards,
goals, objectives and policies related to the proposal are govemed by the design standards.^ The
standards are intended to assure satisfaction of state subdivision review standards at RCW

58.17.110. See also SMC 10.50.000(b).

a 20-foot roadwa idth versus residential access

^Asindicated on p. 1of the200S Comprehensive Plan, "ThePlanis nota dictation of whatmust be or an answer
book for complicatedquestions."

Pagc9
Somo^et II

912.42.15-02; 915.42.15-01



(2) Adequacy ofcompliance with design standards:

As noted in the staff report, there are no issues related to the availability of utilities. The
application does not seek relief from the design standards in SMC 10.50.041 through SMC
10.50.046 except as noted below. The plat generally shows compliance with applicable
standards or the capacity to meet applicable standards. The development includes extensions of
existing water and sewer lines.

Theprinciple issues raised on review withregard to thedesign standards relate to whether
• the use ofa private street affects traffic circulation on neighboringproperties;
• the private street and related lot configurations are allowable in light of SMC .

10.50.041(e)(4);
• the layoutof Lyle LoopRoad is consistent withSMC 10.50.041(c)(l1);and
• theprivate street design provides adequately foraccess andpedestrian safety.

Private Street. Regarding the private street, properties adjacent to the subject property are
generally already subdivided and served with city or county public streets. The large property
directly to the east has not been divided and served potentiaUy could be divided, but there is
nothing in the record to suggest that such division is planned or accounted for in any otherpublic
street planning process. Thus there is no substantial evidence that the proposed private street
would have any particular adverse effect on circulation or public street planning related to
neighboring parcels.

Dual Frontage. Regarding the dual street frontage limitation, the private street does not clearly .
provide for public street frontage on the northern lot lines of the lotsthatwould abut Lyle Loop
Road. There is no indication that the ordinance contemplates that private streets would trigger /
the applicability of SMC 10.50.041(e)(4). In this regard, it is noteworthy that the purposes
genei^ly smred by the frontage limitation related to regulation ofsetbacks, fences and yard size
are served by planincluded in the record as Exhibit 7. To assure thatthepublic interest is served, >
by such a configuration of lots, it is appropriate that any subdivision approval would bg,'
conditional upon conforming at a minimum to the representations in Exhibit 7, as adjusted to
reflect 20-foot minimum rear yard setback requirements. ' •

Lyle Loop Road Design. Public comments claim that the proposed layout of Lyle Loop Road
violates fhe design standard requiring that street jogshave centerline offsets of 200 feet. Street
jogs are not defined in the ordinance. Thisarises from a deflection in the centerline of the street
as it was origiDally planned in order to avoid the large parcel inimediately to the east of the
subject property. City staff review did not raise issues about this design. In absence of any
indication of public health safety or welfare issues associated wifli the proposed design, there is
no compelling basis to find a violation of thestandard.

(3) Adequacy ofcompliance withthe zoningordinance:

Page 10
Somerset D
912.42.15-02; 915.42.15-01



Two principal zoning ordinance issues are raised by comments on the proposed preliminary
plat' They relate to

• the effect of the use of a private street access system on the determination of lot sizeand
lot coverage; and

• theappropriateness ofthedesignation ofLots 19and 20as two family residential lots.

Lot size andcoverage. The zoning ordinance does not define lotsize. It does, however define
"lot area" as "the total horizontal area within the boundarylines ofa lot." Publiccomment noted •
that the paved private street easement proposed inthis case effectively reduces the area ofthe lot
available to the landowner, particularly forthe central tier of lots. However, the lot size standard •
does not provide for adjustments based on the use ofprivate access easements. The presence of"
the paved easements does affect the nature of use th^ a landowner could make ofthe burdened
property. This may have some kind of impact onthe neighborhood character. This, however, is '
the consequence of allowing private streets, which the City has done in SMC 10.50.041(d)(4), '
without regard to such kinds ofeffects. There is no basis for reading an idea of"full use lot size" ^
into the zoning ordinance and thereby into subdivision review. As dqricted in the preliminary
plat, theproposed lots meet lotsize requirements.

Lot coverage standards specify which aspects ofadevelopment are accounted for inthe coverage '
calculation. In the R-1 zoning district, coverage is based on structures and accessory structures.
See Table 8-1 in Chapter 10.08 SMC. In appl:^g Chapter 10.02 through 10.48 SMC,
"Accessory structure" means a building, part of a building or structure, which is ancillary to the
operation orenjoyment ofa lawful use, and the use ofwhich is incidental to, that of the primary
building, or structure on the same lot "Structure" means anything constructed orerected which '
requires location on the ground orattached to something having a location on the ground, but not
including fences or walls used as fences six feet or less in height Lot coverage comes into play
vdren a decision is made as to the design of structures. The approval of a subdivision does not
entail the approval of the footprint of a specific structure or accessory structure with respect to •
zoning compliance. Any development will be obliged to comply with applicable lot coverage
requirements.

Two Family Residential Lot Designations. The preliminary plat designates Lots 19 and 20 as
"two femily residential" lots. Public comments objected to the establishment ofthe two family
lots, both as to use and location. Much of the concern is with potential diqrlex development and
rental useofsuchproperties.

Uses allowed within a zoning district are specifically those listed as Class 1permitted, Class 2
administrative or Class 3 conditional uses within Chapter 10.28, Table A5 pursuant to SMC
10.08.010(6). Table 10.28A-5 shows duplexes to be permissible in the R-1 district.
Permissibility of duplexes in the R-1 is dependent on compliance with SMC 10.12.040. That
provision allows 10% ofthe lots inasubdivision of10 lots ormore to be designated for a"future
two femily dwelling," solong asthe lots meet specified minimum lotsize requirements and two

' The application materials (Exhibit 7) indicated that rear lot line structural setbacks would be 15 feet At hearing,
the Applicant clarified that the setback was intended tobe20 feet This recommendation assumes diat the setback
will in&ctbe20feet inaccordance with SMC 10.08.090 and diat Exhibit 7 iscorrected accordingly.

Page 11
Somerset n
912.42.15-02; 915.42.15-01



family dwellings would be "haimoniously compatible" with adjacent properties. The 20 lot
subdivision allows for the designation of two two-femily residential lots under the requirements
ofSMC 10.12.040. Such lots can still be developed with single femily structures.

a. Lot Size: Lot size in the R-1 is based on the slope and utility infirastiucture
presenton theproperty. SMC10.12.030. Theslopeof the twolotsis lessthan 10%, so the
minimum lot size for atwo family dwelling is 9,000 square feet Both ofthe desigiiated lots •
meet the minimmn lot size requirement As discussed above, this in not affected by the use of^
private access easements.

b. Harmonious Compatibility with Adjacent Property: Compatibility is a question of
fact. As reviewed under SEPA, propos^ structure on the two lots would be 28 feet in height.
Although some public comment suggested to the contrary, tire development of 10% of the lots
within an R-1 district subdivision into duplexes is not inherently incompatible with adjacent
properties, given theallowance for the lotdesignations in SMC 10.12.040 andTable 28A-5.

Some contextfor the understanding of what constitutes "harmonious" compatibility is provided
by the Comprehensive Plan. Objective HSG 1 seeks to maintain and upgrade the character of
existing residential neighborhoods. Objective HSG 4 encourages new residential construction to
becompatible with existing residential development. Policy HSG 4 relates this compatibility to
architectural, maintenance and landscaping standards within developments.

The staff report notes that the two lots border existing residential lots to the north. The
developed lots to thenorth areall 0.44 acre more or less. Thehouses areoneand twostory (i.e.,
finished or partially finished daylight basements) single family homes of wood fiame
construction with brick or painted trim. They have 1,100 to 1,500 square foot footprints. All
three of these homes are set back 90 to 100 feet finm the rear lot line shared with the proposed
duplex lots. There are fences, a retaining wall and a detached garage inthe rear yards that appear
to provide some site screening of the proposed designated lots. The subject lots are at a lower
elevation than the neighbors, and their adjoining on the rear property lines provides for some
physical separation between theexisting uses and theproposed lots.

The subject lots are also located at the rear lot lines the proposed new lots on Lyle Loop Road
rather tban sharing common access. One of the lots also borders a 2.8 acre parcel to the east
which ispartially undeveloped with a single family home located about 170 feet away that gains
its access fiom Selah Loop Road to the east The home is two stories about 1,300 square feet,.
plusa partially finished basement

The subject lots are 100 feet in width, consistent with the widths of the developed residential
lots to tiie north, and enough width to allow for single story units. Lot depths are a slightly
shallower 96.5 feet The building envelopes as shown on a site plan included with the
application is4,360 square feet This is based ona 15 foot rear setback, which does not meet the
minimiitn standard for the R-1 zone (20 feet). The 30 foot front setback shown on the site
exceeds thestandard butmay be necessary foroff-street parking. The35% lotcoverage standard
reduces the potential building fooqirint to 3,365 to 3379 square feet (1,682 to 1,690 square feet

Page 12
Somerset II
912.42.154)2; 915.42.15-01



per one-story unit - including garages). Conversely, there is no substantial evidence that the
subject lots cannot be developed in a manner compatible with adjacent land uses.

If a land use application, such as a preliminaryplat review ^plication is to be denied in whole or
in part, the denial must be support^ by findings offiict and the basis for denial set out to avoid
arbitrary action. Popular prejudices or potentially inaccurate stereotypes do not provide adequate
evidence for denial of an plication. Sunderland Family Treatment Services v. City ofPasco,
127 Wn.2d 782, 797,903 P.2d 986 (Wash. 1995). Generalized concerns about property values
fall into this categoryofevidence.

Somepubliccomment suggests that it is not appropriate to "hide away"the prospective duplexes
on Lots 19 and 20. Rather, it is argued that the duplex lots should be locat^ in close proximity
to Herlou Drive where additional hip generation effects can be better absorbed. However, these
points do not substantively address the incompatibility wifii adjacent properties, if any, of
duplexes such as thosedescribed in the SEPAdocuments. To the contrary, the factual recitation
in the staffreport gives no indication that the proposed uses would substantially affect adjacent^
properties. Again, generalized concerns about the potential rental use of duplexes do not i
a denial ofa proposed use.

(4) Provisions for schools:

No school district conunents or comments finm any other party indicate that the school system
will not be able to adequately absorb prospective increases in numbers of students in local
schools as a result of the project

(5) Otherconsiderations ofpublichealth,safetyand welfare and the publicinterest:

Thehearing examiner may, at the examiner's discretion, recommend higher standards than those
set forth in the subdivision and zoning provisions ofthe Title 10 SMC if the examiner determines
it is necessary to protect the health, safety, wel&re and public interest of the city. SMC
10.50.026. Neitherthe application materials nor the staff report contain information that resolve
the questions of adequate pedestrian safety or the standards diat may be applicable to private
roadway design, lite fact that the street is private does not mean tl^ public interest'
considerations do not apply. As noted above, the City's design standards serve to assure that
adequate provision is made for streets and pedestrian traffic as required under ROW 58.17.110
and SMC 10.50.025. A conunon means of serving residential lots not otherwise integrated into
the street system is with a cul-de-sac. While a cul-de-sac is not a required means of street
termination in residential areas it is noteworthy that a street section connecting a cul-de-sac
turnaround area to a through street is subject to roadway design requirements. These include
sidewalks.

No specific private streetdesign standards are included in the subdivision ordinance. Asa matter
of public record, in some Planned Development residential subdivisions, 20-foot road widths
have been approved in the City. However, the current proposal is not part of a planned

Page 13
Somerset 11

912.42.15-02; 915.42.15'4)1



development The propose road width is on par with that ofan alley.' In addition, as a private
street the proposed street would not be subject to typical city parking regulation and other,
measures to manage congestion, parking and traffic safety. Since no information has provided ^
by the Applicant to suggestthat trafBcand pedestrian safety is effectively served by a road and "
sidewalk design that is different finm typical local access roadway design in residential areas, it-
is appropriate that the private street should also comply with such design requirements.

11. ADDITIONAL PUBLIC COMMENT ISSUES

Most of the public comments received on this proposal have been addressed in the context ofthe
specific standards applied in the preliminary plat review. One commenter raised issues bearing
on the adequacy of completion of the application materials, including the plat map.
Administrative procedures are addressed in Title 21 SMC. The administrative official
determines when an land use application is complete. The determinationofcompleteness is to be
made when the rqiplication is sufficient for continued processing even though additional-'
information may be required or project modifications may be subsequently undertaken. If the'
information necessary for a final administrative action (such as a Hearing Examiner*
recommendation) is not provided, such information can be addressed in the coiuse of the'
proceeding. A determination of completeness may be incorrect, but generally, this does not-
invalidate an administrative decision unless a person can claim that thev were prejudiced as a ^
i^ult of the procedural feilure. Though one public commenter clearly claimed that more
irformation w^ requned-for the application materials, no claim ofprejudice was made.

Several commenters raised concerns regarding the adequacy of evidence to support any SMC
10.50.070 exception determination. In short, while the private street proposal was raised on
forms indicating that the Applicant was seeking a modification of subdivision design standards,
such a proposal does not require a an exception request.

Fivmthe foregoing findings, the Hearing Examinermakesthe following

IV. CONCLUSIONS.

1. The Hearing Examiner has jurisdiction to conduct an open record hearing on the
application for a preliminary plat review, and make a recommendation tothe Selah City Council
regarding the sufficiency of die plat The Hearing Examiner also had jurisdiction to make
discretionary recommendations concerning additions to the minimum siMvision standards in
the public interest

2. Theproposed preliminary platis consistent withthe 2005 Comprehensive Plan future
land use designation.

^Per Ai^iendix AtoTitle 10, "'Alley' means apublic thorougblare orway having a width ofnotmore than twenty
feet wdiich affords only a secondarymeans ofaccess to abutting property."

Page 14
Somerset 11

912.42.15-02; 915.42.15-01



3. The designation ofLots 19 and 20 as future two family residential lots is consistentwith
SMC 10.12.040.

4. No exception to the subdivision design standards is required for the proposed private
street to serve Lots 17,18,19 and 20.

5. Theproposed preliminary plat, ifproperly conditioned, complies with^plicable
subdivision and zoning standards.

6. The proposed private street meets the requirements of SMC 10.S0.041(d)(4) and related
ordinances. However, since no information has provided by the Applicant to suggest that traftic
and pedestrian safety is effectively served by a road and sidewalk design that is diifisrent from
typi^ local access roadway design in residential areas, it is appropriate that tiie private street
roadway width should also be recommraided to comply with such typical design requirements,
and the access easement should be sized to such a width accordingly. In the event that the
Applicant can demonstrate satisfaction of exception requirements for a reduction in suitable
private roadway width, it can do so in a specific proceedingcomplying with SMC 10.S0.070.

7. Any ofthe findings set forth in III. FINDINGS, above that are properly characterized
conclusions are deemed to be such.

V. RECOMMENDATIONS.

The HearingExaminermakes two recommendations;

First, the application for preliminary plat review by Zuker-Sample Development, LLC for
"Preliminary Plat ofSomersetH" as specified in the application materials(File No. 912.82.13-01
should be APPROVED SUBJECT TO THE FOLLOWING CONDITIONS:

1. All designand/orimprovement notations indicated on the preliminary platare
included as conditions of preliminary platapproval. This condition is notintended to limitthe •
Public Works Department in theexercise of itsauthorities under otherprovisions ofthe Selah
Municipal Code.

2. All thedesign and improvement notations indicated onExhibit 7 inthe record ^ -
("Variance Proposal, Somerset II,March 17,2015), except asmodified bythe other conditions
imposed by theCityCouncil in thispreliminary platreview proceeding, are included as
concBtionsgfprelinmiary plat'^roval

3. Lots 19 and 20 are authorized to be designated as two-family residential lots on
thefinal platand maybe developed into two-family residential structures upto28feet inheight
following final plat approval, subject to the following additional special requirements:

Page 15
Somerset II

912.42.15-02; 915.42.15-01



a. The two-femily residential designation ofthese lots applies only to these lots and
may not be transferred to other lots in the sulxUvision.

b. OfT-street parking shall be provided on the lots to provide 4 spaces per each
duplex. No credit against tUs requirement shall be allowed for garages and
tandem parking.

c. Buildingmatmals shall be consistent in s^pearance with that ofsurrounding
single-family homes. To furtherensure hmmonious development ofthe
designated lots with the development ofsingle &mily lots in the subdivision, \
restrictive covenants that describe the r^uired building specifications for the two- \ [
family dwellings shall be recorded prior to recording the final plat for the phase in \
which they are in. f \

d. Building specifications from the restrictive covenants for the proposed two-&mily J
dwellings shall be submittedto the PlanningDepartmentto reviewfor
consistency with these conditions prior to recording the final plat for the phase in ( ^
which they are in.

e. This decision does not preclude the development ofdetached single-family
residences on any ofthese lots.

plat.
Final lot dimensions and lot area must substantially conform to the preliminary

5. Apreliminaiy engineering report and/orplan, preparedby a Licensed
Professional Engineer, demonstrating the feasibility of constructing all public improvements
required by Selah Municipal Code, Chapter 10.50, must be submitted toandapproved by the
Public Works Department foreachseparately designated phaseof development priorto
commencement ofconstruction.

6. Construction plansand specifications mustbe reviewed andapproved by the
PublicWorksDepartment priorto commencement ofconstruction of eachseparately designated
phase of development. Specifications for improvements shown on the preliminary platare
minimmn specification which maybe superseded by the conditions contained hereinor by
specific conditions asapproved bythePublic Works Department Upon completion of
construction and prior to final plat ^proval (ofeach development phasefor which final plat
approval is sought), reproducible final "as-built" construction plans and a written certification by '
a Licensed Professional Engineer that said improvements werecompleted in accordance with the -
City ofSelah Design and Construction Stand^s dated March, 2012, must be submitted to the
Public Works Department forapproval. Allrequired compaction andinspection reports shall also'
be submitted to the Public Works Departme

7. Reports, plans and specifications previously submitted shall count toward meeting
therequirements of Conditions #5and#6if accepted bythePublic Works Director to theextent
ofthe improvements for which theyare determined to be sufBcient.

8. All lots must be served with a frill range ofpublic services/private utilities. All
public services/private utilities mustbe underground andinstalled priorto the surfacing of

Page 16
Somerset II
912.42.15-02; 915.42.15-01



streets. Lots 17 through 20 shall be served by an 8 inch sewer line extended in the utility
easement across Lots 11 and 12 and then continued to the other lots in die access and utility.
easement as shown on the Preliminary Plat. There shall be a moratorium on street cuts for a
period of five (5) years from the date of each phase recording.

9. Lvle Loop Road: Street improvements must be constructed to City standards as
approved by the PublicWorksDirector including50 foot wide right-of-way, 32 foot wide
asphalt pavement, concrete rolled (or better)curb and gutter, five (5) foot widesidewalkon one
street side and street illumination. The sidewalk shall be installed on the same side of the street

as it is on the existing completed portion of Lyle Loop Road. Utility improvements shall be
extended beyond street pavement edge to facilitate future extension where appropriate. Street
grade shall not exceed 10%.

9. The private street roadway shall be constructed as a hard-surfaced street to
specifications approved bythe Public Works Director prior to recording the final plat. Thestreet
shall have a minimum surface width of 20 feet, subject to increased requirements imposed by the
City Council in this proceeding. — " ^

10. The private street shall be designated "no-parking"as shownby the site plan
submitted withthe preliminary platapplication and shall be posted withsigns priorto final plat
approval.

11. Covenants or a road maintenance agreement among the owners of Lots 17,18,19
and20, providing forthe perpetial maintenance of theprivate roadway and thatestablish a road
maintenance fund shall be recorded with the Yakima County Auditor and a recorded copy"
submittedto the SelahPlanning Department prior to recordingthe final plat. If driveway access
to Lots 13 and 14 is made available from the private street, such covenants or agreement shall •
include owners of Lots 13 and 14.

12. Driveway access to Lots 13 and 14shall be limitedto Lyle Loop Roadand the
partof the private access easement passing in a north-south direction between them.

13. Street Illumination shall be installed by the developer at locations and to the
specifications of thePublic Works Director (typically at 300 foot intervals or as othervrise
determined bythe Director ofPublic Works inorder tomaximize illumination). Street lights
shall be installed on metal poles.

14. Fire hydrants shall be provided and installed by the developer at locations
approved bythe City ofSelah Fire Chief and tothe specifications of Selah Municipal Code,
Chapter 11.30.

15. Storm Waterdrainagefacilities to accommodate runoff generated in the plat must
comply with a drainage facilities plan prepared by a Licensed Professional Engineer and
approved bythe Public Works Director. Plans submitted previously will count toward meeting

Page 17
Somerset II

912.42.15-02; 915.42.15-01

ijV'i



this requirement if approved by the Public Works Director. Additional documentation may be
required for portions of the site not covered by any such previously submitted plans.

16. Areas reserved for sight distance vision triangles shall be shown and noted on the
final plat. (Selah Code, Chapter 10.50).

17. Dust control measures shall be implemented as required by the Yakima Regional
Clean Air Authority rules and regulations. The Developer shall advise the Public Works
Department of the name andphone number of thecontact person to report alleged dustcontrol
violations.

18. All required street signs, posts and appurtenances must be supplied by the
developer and will be installed by the City.

19. An NPDES Construction Stormwater General Permit shall be obtained unless
determined by the Department ofEcology that it is not required.

20. The following notesshall be placed on the final plat map(s):

"The ovmer(s) shown hereon, their grantees and assignees in interest
herebycovenantand agree to retainall surface water generatedwithinthe
plat on-site."

21. The applicant shall recommend a streetnameto assign to the private access street
and shall submit the name to the Planning Department for approval prior to recording the final
plat. The approved street name shall be shown on the face of the final plat.

22. A surety bond, or such othersecure financial method, in theamount of 15%of the
costof the public improvements (aseachfinal platphase is submitted) (i.e., roads, sidewalks,
street lights, drainage facilities, sewer collection and water distribution facilities, etc.)shall be
remitted to theCity and held for a period of two years to guarantee against defects of
workmanship and materials.

23. Prior to final plat recording, all required plat improvements (utilities, streets,
drainage facilities, etc.) must beinstalled and accepted by the City ora surety bond pledged to
theCity to ensure installation oftheplatimprovements within two years offinal platrecording.

24. Improvements required for the subdivision must be completed and the final plat
must be submitted within the maximum 5-year time period required by RCW 58.17.140. A one
time, one-year extension maybe authorized in accordance with SMC 10.50.033(c) but the
request must be made before the 5-year timeperiod >

Second, the HearingExaminerrecommends/(fiat the private access streetcomplywith roadway
section design standards applicable to local qccess residential streets asdetennined^jttne Public
Works Director in accordance with City of Sel^ Design andConstruction dated

Page 18
Somerset 11
912.42.15-02;915.42.15-01



March, 2012. This recommendatioD supplements Condition 9 and 10 recommended for the
preliminary plat in the first recommendation, above.

DATED TfflS 26"^ DAY OFJUNE, 2015.

Page 19
Somerset II
912.42.15-02; 915.42.15-01

paVrickd.sp
HEARING E;



CITY OF SELAH

CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEMSUMMARY

Council Meeting Action Item

7/28/2015 M-2

Title: Resolution Supporting the Bond for the construction or renovation of the
Selah Pool

Thru; Donald Wayman, City Administrator

From: Charles Brown, Recreation Manager

Action Requested: Approval

Board/Commission Recommendation: Approval

Fiscal Impact: $4.2 - 6.2 Million

Funding Source: Fund 190

Staff Recommendation:

I recommend that the City Council support the SPRSA in their efforts to get the
voters of Selah to approve a new pool facility.

Background / Findings & Facts:

There was a survey put out to the public last December and again at
Community Days this year. This survey collected input from the Selah
community members about what features they use at the pool, how often they

use the pool, if they don't use the pool why. These results were then given to a

committee with representatives from the Selah School District, Selah Parks

Foundation, Selah Parks and Recreation Service Area and the City. Pool

designs were created and given to an auditor who evaluated each proposal and
gave cost estimates for each proposal. The bond has been written with a range
included instead of a hard number. From the 22nd of July until the 3rd of



CITY OF SELAH

CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEMSUMMARY

August, the public will have had the opportunity to take a quick survey and tell
us which pool they would support if it went to vote today. On August 3rd, the

information will be collected and the SPRSA will hold a special meeting to

look at the public opinion and put that number on the bond that will be
submitted on Aug 4th.

The current pool location is Wixson Park and both options leave the pool at
Wixson, one of which does take up the entirety of the east side of the park.

Recommended Motion:

I move to approve the Resolution supporting the SPRSA putting forth a Bond
to the public for the construction or renovation of the Selah Pool at Wixson
Park.



CITY OF SELAH

CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEMSUMMARY

Record of all prior actions taken by the City Council and/or a City Board, City
Committee, Planning Commission, or the Hearing Examiner (where applicable)

Date: Action Taken:

7/20/2015 SPRSA Approved Bond to be put to public vote in
November

Click here to enter a date. Click here to enter text.

Click here to enter a date. Click here to enter text.

Click here to enter a date. Click here to enter text.

Click here to enter a date. Click here to enter text.

Click here to enter a date. Click here to enter text.



RESOLUTION NO.

RESOLUTION SUPPORTING THE SELAH PARK AND SERVICE AREA'S

(SPRSA'S) BOND MEASURE PROPOSITION AUTHORIZING THE SPRSA
TO ISSUE GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS TO FINANCE THE COSTS OF

ACQUIRING, CONSTRUCTING, AND EQUIPPING SWIMMING POOL
FACILITIES.

WHEREAS, the Selah Park and Recreation Service Area (SPRSA) Board has passed a
Resolution to place a bond measure on the ballot for a special election to be held on November 3,
to ask the voters to support its issuance of general obligation bonds to finance the acquisition,
construction, installation and equipping ofa new outdoor swimming pool suitable for
competitive swimming meets (e.g.25-yards in length with 8 or more lanes) enclosed (or semi-
enclosed) a new 4-Iane swimming pool, a new "zero-entry" wading pool, and a new bathhouse
facility (including locker rooms, office space, storage areas and equipment rooms), together with
pool decks, parking areas, landscaping and other capital improvements pertaining thereto, such
improvements to be located at WixsonPark on land owned by the City. Such improvements may
incorporate all or any portion ofthe existing facilities located at Wixson Park, and may include
the renovation and repair of such existing improvements;

WHEREAS, the Cityof SelahPoolat Wixson Parkhas served the community well but is
old and in disrepair and shouldbe replaced with modem facilities that are saferand easierto
maintain while at the same time enhancing recreational opportunities for residents within the
SPRSA's boundaries;

WHEREAS, the costs for replacing such facilities continues to rise each year with the
cost of inflation and other factors;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF SELAH, WASHINGTON that the Selah City Council does support the Selah Park
and Recreation Service Area's bond measure and encourages our residents to vote "yes" on
November 3,2015 in favor of passing the bond measure.



PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL DP THE CITY OF SELAH,
WASHINGTON this 28*^ day ofJuly, 2015.

John Gawlik, Mayor

ATTEST:

Dale E. Novobielski, Clerk/Treasurer

APPjROVEP AS TO FORM;

Robert F. Noe, City Attorney

RESOLUTION NO.



SELAH PARK AND RECREATION SERVICE AREA

RESOLUTION NO. _1_-2015

A RESOLUTION of the Selah Park and Recreation Service Area Board

providing for the submission to the voters of the Service Area at a special election to
be held on November 3,2015, ofa proposition authorizing the Service Area to issue
general obligation bonds to finance the costs of acquiring, constructing, and
equipping swimming pool facilities, and providing for other matters properly
related thereto.

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE SELAH PARK AND RECREATION SERVICE AREA

BOARD as follows:

Section 1. Findings and Detefffilnaitons. Tbe Selah" Pairtc and Recreation Service Area

Board (the "Board") hereby makes the following findings and determinations:

(a) By Resolution No. 195-2001, the Board of County Commissioners of Yakima
County (the "Coimty") initiated the formation of the Selah Park and Recreation Service Area (the
"Service Area") and, at an election held on November 6,2001, the establishment of Service Area
was approved by the voters. The Service Area is a quasi-municipal corporation, a body
coirporate, ah ihdepehdehl taxing "authority" witfuh the meaning of Section I, Article 7 of the
Washington Constitution and a "taxing district" within the meaning of Section 2, Article 7 of the
Washington Constitution.

(b) The area within the boundaries of the Service Area includes certain
unincorporated areas of Yakima Coimty as well as the City of Selah (the "City"). Pursuant to
RCW 39.68.400 and chapter 39,34 RCW, the County and the City entered into an interlocal
agreement in December 2001 providing for the govemance of the Service Area.

(c) The Service Area is authorized to: "purchase athletic equipment and supplies, and
provide for the upkeep of park buildings, grounds and facilities, and provide custodial,
recreational and park program personnel at any park or recreational facility owned or leased by
the service area or a county, city, or town" (RCW 36.68.400); "acting independently or in
conjunction with ... any ... city ... to acquire ... land ... and to build, construct, care for,
control, supervise, improve, operate and maintain ... swimming pools ... and other recreational
facilities ... upon any such land" (RCW 36.68.600 and 67.20.010); "issue general obligation
bonds, together with any outstanding voter approved and nonvoter approved general
indebtedness, [in an amount] equal to two and one-half percent of the value of the taxable
property within the service area ... when such bonds are approved by the voters of the service
area at a special election called for the purpose in accordance with the provisions of Article VIII,
section 6 of the Constitution" (RCW 36.^8.520); and retire such bonds "by excess property tax
levies when such levies are approved by the voters at a special election in accordance with the
provisions ofArticle VII, section 2 of the Constitution and RCW 84.52.056" (RCW 36.68.520).

(d) The Service Area, in conjunction with the City, currently provides for the
operation and maintenance of a swimming pool at Wixson Park on land owned by the City. To
provide a higher level of park and recreation services within the County, it is desirable that the
Service Area acquire, construct and equip one or more swimming pools at Wixson Park, on land
owned by the City, all as more particularly defined and described in Section 2 hereof (the



"Project"). The total cost of the Project is expected to range from $4,200,000 to $6,200,000,
depending on the final plans and specifications therefor. The Service Area lacks sufficient money
with which to pay costs of the Project. To pay costs of the Project, it is necessary and advisable
that the Service Area issue and sell unlimited tax general obligation bonds in the principal
amount of up to $ (the "Bonds").

(e) RCW 29A.04.330 provides that the Yakima County Auditor (the "Auditor"), as ex
qfficio supervisor of elections withinYakima County, upon request in the form of a resolution of
the Board, presented to the Auditor prior to the proposed election date, may call a special
election within the Service Area on one of the authorized special election dates, as decided by
the Board. Provided this resolution is presented to the Auditor no later than August 4, 2015, the
Service Area could call a special election on November 3,2015.

(f) The best interests of the Service Area's residents require that (i) the Service Area
to carry out and accomplish the Project as hereinafter provided, subject to the approval of the
Service Area's voters, and (ii) the Service Area submit a proposition to its voters as soon as
possible to undertake the Project, issue Bonds therefor, and levy excess property taxes to repay
such Bonds.

Section 2. Description of Proiect. The Project to be paid for with proceeds of the
Bonds, including interest earnings thereon ("Bond Proceeds"), is more particularly defined and
described as follows:

(a) The acquisition, construction, installation and equipping of a new outdoor
swimming pool suitable for competitive swimming meets {e.g. 25-yards in length with 8 or more
lanes), a new six-lane enclosed (or semi-enclosed) swimming pool, a new "zero-entry" wading
pool, and a new bathhouse facility (including locker rooms, office space, storage areas and
equipment rooms), together with pool decks, parking areas, landscaping and other capital
improvements pertaining thereto, such improvements to be located at Wixson Park on land
owned by the City. Such improvements may incorporate all or any portion of the existing
facilities located at Wixson Park, and may include the renovation and repair of such existing
improvements.

(b) The acquisition, construction and installation of furniture, equipment, apparatuses,
fixtures andappurtenances for the improvements described in Section 2(a).

(c) The payment pursuant to RCW 39.46.070 of incidental costs incurred in
connection with carrying out and accomplishing the Project described above. Such incidental
costs shall be deemed part of the Project and shall include, but are not limited to: costs related to the
sale, issuance and delivery of the Bonds; payments for fiscal and legal expenses; costs of obtaining
ratings and bond insurance; costs of printing, advertising, establishing and funding accounts;
payment of interest due on the Bonds for up to six months after completion of construction;
necessary ajjd related engineering, architectural, planning, consulting, inspection and testing costs;
administrative and relocation expenses; site improvement; demolition; on and off-site utilities; and
other similar activities or purposes, all as deemed necessary or advisable by the Board.

The Board shall determine the exact order, extent and specifications for the Project,
including without limitation, the final configuration of the improvements comprising the Project

514SS439.2



(such as the length of any pool, the number of fanes in any pool, and the furnishings, fixtures and
equipment to be acquired and installed).

Section 3. Use ofBond Proceeds and Other Available Amounts.

(a) The Project, or any portion or portions thereof, shall be acquired or made insofar as
is practicable with available Bond Proceeds, together with any other money of the Service Area
legally available therefor, and in such order oftime as shall be deemed necessary or advisable by the
Board. The Board shall allocate Bond Proceeds, together with any other legally-available money of
the Service Area, between the various parts of the Project so as to accomplish, as near as may be,
the entire Project.

(b) If the Bond Proceeds are more than sufficient to pay costs of the Project, or should
state or local circumstances require any alteration in the Project, the Service Area may acquire,
construct, equip and make other capital improvements to the Service Area's park and recreation
facilities, or retire and/or defease a portion ofthe Bonds, all as deemed necessary or advisable by the
Board and as permitted by law.

(c) If the Board shall determine that it has become impractical to accomplish the Project
or portions thereof by reason of state or local circumstances, including, but not limited to, changed
conditions or needs, regulatory considerations, incompatible development or costs substantially in
excess of those estimated, die Service Area shall not be required to accomplish the Project (or
particularportionthereof)and may apply the Bond proceeds or any portionthereof to otherportions
of the Project, to other capital purposes of the Service Area, or to retire and/or defease a portion of
the Bonds, all as deemed necessary or advisable by the Board and as permitted by law. In the event
that the proceeds of sale of the Bonds, plus any other legally-available money of the Service Area,
are insufficient to accomplish the Project, the ServiceArea may use the available moneyfor paying
the cost of that portion of the Project that is deemed by the Board most necessary and in the best
interest ofthe Service Area.

Section4. Calling of Election. The Auditor is requested to call and conduct a special
election in the Service Area, in the manner provided by law, to be held therein on November 3,
2015, for the purpose of submitting to the Service Area's voters, for their approval or rejection, the
proposition ofwhetherthe Service Area shall issue the Bonds to pay costs of the Project and levy
annual excess property taxes to pay and retire the Bonds. If the proposition is approved by the
requisite number ofvoters, the Service Area will be authorizedto: sell, issue, and deliver the Bonds
in the manner described in this resolution; spend the Bond Proceeds to pay costs of the Project; and
levy armual excess property taxes to pay and retire the Bonds. The Bond Proceeds shall be used,
either with or without additional money now available or hereafter available to the Service Area, for
capital purposes only, as permitted by law, which shall not includethe replacementofequipment.

Section 5. Authorization to Issue the Bonds.

(a) The Bonds authorized may be issued as a single issue, as a partofa combined issue
with other authorized bonds, or in more than one series, all as deemed necessary and advisable by
the Board and as permitted by law. Further, the Bonds may be issued, as deemed necessary and
advisable by the Board, as taxable bonds, tax-exempt bonds and/or any other type of tax credit
bonds that are now or in the future may be authorized underapplicable state and federal law.

S14SS439.2 -3-



(b) Each series of the Bonds shall bear interest payable as permitted by law; shall
mature within 20 years from the date of issuance of such series of the Bonds (but may mature at an
earlier date or dates as fixed by the Board); shall be paid by annual property tax levies sufficient in
amount to pay both principal and interest when due, which annual property tax levies shall be made
in excess of regular property tax levies without limitation as to rate or amount but only in amounts
sufficient to meet such paymentsofprincipal and interest as they come due; and shall be issued and
sold in such manner, at such times and in such amounts as shall be required for the purpose for
which each seriesofthe Bonds are to be issued, all as deemednecessary and advisable by the Board
and as permitted by law. The life of the Project to be financed with the Bond Proceeds shall
exceed the term of the respective series ofBonds that finance such Project.

(c) The date, form, terms, option of prior redemption, price, interest rate or rates and
maturities of the Bonds shall be hereafter fixed or provided for by one or more resolutions of the
Board (each a "Bond Resolution"), which resolutions may delegate to a Service Area official the
authority to fix any ofthe foregoing. The Boardhereby authorizes and directs the ChairPerson of
the Board (the "Designated Official") to determine for each series of Bonds whether such series
should be sold by negotiated or competitive sale, and with respect to such series ofBonds that are to
be sold by competitive sale, to: (i) specify a date and time of sale of such Bonds; (ii) give notice
of that sale; (iii) determine any bid requirements and criteria for determining the award of the
bid; (iv) provide for the use of an electronic bidding mechanism if the Designated Official deems
electronic bidding to be beneficial to the Service Area; and (v) specify other matters m his or her
determination necessary, appropriate or desirable to carry out the sale of the Bonds.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the exact date, form, terms, option of prior redemption, price,
interest rate or rates and maturities of the Bonds so offered (or the parameters pertaining thereto)
shall be hereafter fixed by a Bond Resolution authorizing the issuance, sale and delivery of such
series ofBonds.

{d) The Bo£ud declares that, to die extent the Service Area makes capital expenditures
for the Pmject from available Service Area money, those capital expenditures are intended to be
reimbursed out of the Bond Proceeds (or the proceeds of short-term obligations issued in
anticipation of the issuance of the Bonds) and proceeds of other indebtedness. The maximum
principal amount of obligations expected to be issued for the Project is set forth in Section 1(d) of
this resolution.

(e) Pending the issuance of any series of the Bonds, the Service Area may issue
short-term obligations pursuant to chapter 39.50 RCW to pay for any portion of the costs of the
Project. Such obligations may be paid or refunded with the Bond Proceeds.

(f) If the Service Area receives voter approval to issue the Bonds in the manner
described in this resolution, the Board authorizes and directs the Designated Official to: (i) review
and "deem final" (within the meaning of Rule 15c2-12 of the Securities and Exchange
Commission), if necessary and upon such official's satisfaction, any preliminary official
statementprepared in connection with the sale of each series of the Bonds by the Service Area;
(ii) authorize the "deemed final" preliminary official statement to be distributed prior to the date
any imderwriter or purchaser bids for, purchases, offers or sells each series of the Bonds; and (c)
acknowledge in writing any action taken pursuant to clauses (a) and (b) of this paragraph.

S14SM39 2 -4-



Section 6. Form of Ballot Title. Pursuant to RCW 29A.36.07f, the Yakima County
Prosecuting Attorney is requested to prepare the concise description of the aforesaid proposition
for the ballot title in substantially the following form:

PROPOSITION 1

SELAH PARK AND RECREATION SERVICE AREA

SWIMMING POOL IMPROVEMENTS

The Selah Park and Recreation Service Area Board adopted Resolution No. -
2015 concerning a proposition to acquire, construct, install and equip swimming
pool improvements. This proposition would authorize the Service Area to acquire,
construct, install and equip up to two new swimming pools, a wading pool, a
bathhouse and related improvements; Issue no more than $ of
general obligation bonds maturing within 20 years: and levy annual excess
property taxes to repay the bonds, all as provided in Resolution No. -2015.
Should this proposition be:

Approved •
Rejected •

Section 8. Authorization to Deliver Resolution to Auditor and Perform Other

Necessary Duties, The Designated OfTicial or his designee is directed to (a) present a certified
copy of this resolution to the Auditor no later than August 4, 2015, and (b) perform such other
duties as are necessary or required by law to submit to the Service Area's voters at the aforesaid
special election, for their approval or rejection, the proposition of whether the Service Area shall
issue the Bonds to pay costs of the Project and levy annual excess property taxes to pay and retire
the Bonds. All actions of tlte Service Area or its staff or officers taken prior to the effective date
of this resolution and consistent with tlie objectives and terms of this resolution are ratified and
confirmed.

Section 9. Notices Relating to Ballot Title. For purposes of receiving notice of the
exact language of the ballot title required by RCW 29A.36.080. the Board hereby designates the
(a) Designated Official (KelHann Ergeson), 509.961.7995 (telephone), kcllicrucson'^ hotmail.com
(email), and (b) bond counsel, Foster Pepper PLLC (Jeff Nave), 509.777.1601 (telephone),
navciftt'l'oster.com (email), as the individuals to whom the Auditor shall provide such notice. The
Designated Official is authorized to approve changes to the ballot title, if any, deemed necessary
by the Auditor or the Yakima County Prosecuting Attorney.

Section 10. Authorization of Local Voters' Ptunphlei. To the extent a local voters'

pamphlet and/or online voters' guide (the "Pamphlet") will be produced for the November 3,
2015 State General election, tlie preparation and distribution of information on the ballot title for
inclusion in the Pamphlet is hereby authorized; provided that, the Service Area reserves the right
not to participate in the preparation and distribution of the Pamphlet if such participation would
create undue financial hardship for the Service Area or would otherwise not be in the best
interests of the Service Area. The Designated Official is authorized to exercise the Service Area's
right not to participate in the preparation and distribution of the Pamphlet. The Pamphlet shall
include, if applicable, an explanatory statement and statements in favor of and in opposition to
the ballot title. The preparation of the explanatory statement, the appotntmcm of pro/con

SI45S4J92 -5-



committees and the preparation ofstatements in favor and in opposition to the ballottitle shall be
in accordance with chapter 29A.32 RCW and the rules and guidelines of the Auditor.

Section 11. Severabilitv. If any provision of this resolution shall be declared by any court
of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, then such provision shall be null and void and shall be
separable from the remaining provisions of this resolution and shall in no way affect the validity of
the other provisions of this resolution,of the Bonds or of the levy or collection of the taxes pledged
to payandretire theBonds.

Section 12. Effective Date. This resolution shall become effective immediately upon its
adoption.

ADOPTED by the Selah Park and Recreation Service Area Board at a regular meeting
thereof held on July 20, 2015, the following Members being present and voting in favor of the
resolution.

SELAH PARK AND RECREATION SERVICE

AREA BOARD

Chairperson and Member

Member

Member

Member

Member

Member

Member
ATTEST:

Secretary

S1455439 3 -6-



CERTIFICATION

I, the undersigned, the Secretary of the Selah Park and Recreation Service Area Board (the
"Board"), hereby certify as follows:

1. The foregoing Resolution No. -2015 (the "Resolution") is a full, true and
correct copy of the Resolution duly adopted at a regular meeting of the Board held at the regular
meeh'ng place thereof on July 20, 2015, as that Resolution appears on the minute book of the
Service Area, and the Resolution is now in full force and effect; and

2. A quorum of the members of the Board was present throughout the meeting and a
sufficient number of members of the Board present voted in the proper manner for the adoption
of the Resolution.

IN WITNESS WHEREOT, 1have hereunto set my hand on July 20,2015.

SELAH PARK AND RECREATION SERVICE

AREA BOARD

Secretary



CITY OF SELAH

CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEMSUMMARY

Council Meeting Action Item

7/28/2015 N-1

Title: Ordinance Amending the2015 Budget for Professional Services to Update the Police
Department's Operating Policy & Procedure Manual

Thru: Donald Wayman, City Administrator

From: Dale Novobielski, Clerk/Treasurer

Action Requested: Approval

Board/Commission Recommendation: Not applicable

Fiscal Impact: $ 5,000

Funding Source: FOG I General - .3% Public Safety Tax

Staff Recommendation:

Approve a $ 5,000 increase in the 2015 Budget for Police department
Professional Services to update their standard operating policy and procedure
manual.

Background / Findings & Facts:

At the July 14, 2015 Council Meeting the Police Department was given
approval to contract with a consultant, dba Lexipol, to assist in updating the
department's operating policy and procedure manual and add an integrated
training system.



CITY OF SELAH

CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEMSUMMARY

Recommended Motion:

I move to approve the Ordinance amending the 2015 Budget for the hiring of a
consultant to assist in updating the Police department's operating policy and
procedure manual.



CITY OF SELAH

CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEMSUMMARY

Record of all prior actions taken by the City Council and/or a City Board, City

Committee, Planning Commission, or the Hearing Examiner (where applicable)

Date; Action Taken;

7/14/2015 Council approved the hiring of a consultant to assist in
updating the Police department's operating procedure

manual.

Click here to enter a date. Click here to enter text.

Click here to enter a date. Click here to enter text.

Click here to enter a date. Click here to enter text.

Click here to enter a date. Click here to enter text.

Click here to enter a date. Click here to enter text.



ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE 2015 BUDGET FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES TO

UPDATE THE POLICE DEPARTMENT'S POLICY & PROCEDURE MANUAL

WHEREAS, the City desires to approve an adjustment to the 2015 Budget for the hiring of a
consultant t» assist in i^ating the Police dqiartment's policy & procedure manual;

NOW THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SELAH, WASHINGTON, does
ordain as follows: that the Clerk-Treasurer be authorized to amend the 2015 Budget as follows:

001 General

001.000.021.313.15.00.00 .3% Public Safety Tax $ 5,000

001.000.021.521.20.41.00 Professional Services $ 5,000

PASSED AND ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SELAH,
WASHINGTON this 28"^ day ofJuly 2015.

John J. Gawlik, Mayor
ATTEST:

Dale E. Novobielski, Clerk-Treasurer

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Robert Noe, City Attorney

ORDINANCE NO.



CITY OF SELAH

CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEMSUMMARY

Council Meeting Informational Item

7/28/2015 0-4a

Title: flanning Commission Minutes- March 17,2015

Thru: Donald Wayman, City Administrator

From: Caprise Groo, Public Works Department Assistant

Actiou Requested: Informational - No action

Board/Commission Recommendation: Not applicable

Fiscal Impact: N/A

Funding Source: N/A

Staff Recommendation:

Information only

Background / Findings & Facts:

Information only

Recommended Motion:

Information only



Selah Council Chambers

115 W. Naches Ave.

Selah, Washington 98942

City ofSelah
Planning Commission Minutes

of

March 17,2015

A. Call to Order

The meeting was called to order by ChairmanQuinnell at 5:34 p.m.

B. Roll Call:

Members Present: Commissioners: Miller, Torkelson, and Quinnell.
Members Absent: Commissioner Smith and Pendleton.

Staff Present: Tom Durant, Consultant, Caprise Groo, Secretary
Guests: None

C. Agenda Chances: None.

D. Communications:

1. Oral: None

2. Written: None

E. Approval ofminutes

1. December 16,2014

Chairman Quinnell called for a motion to approve/disapprove the minutes.

Commissioner Miller motioned to approve the minutes with some small edits.

Commissioner Torkelson seconded the motion.

Chairman Quinnell called for a voice vote and the minutes were approved with a voice vote of3-0.

F. Public Hearings

1. Old Business: None

2. New Business: None

G. General Business

1. Old Business: None

2. New Business:

1. Proposed Amendment to Title 10. Chanter 10.12:
Repeal SMC 10.12.040 Designated two-familv residential lots.

2. Proposed Amendment to Title 10. Chapter 10.28. Table A-5:
Amend the Table to remove two-family dwellings as a Class 1 use in the R-1 zone.
Repeal SMC 10.28.040(1)

Chairman Quinnell turned the floor over to Mr. Durant.

Planning Commission Minutes
March, 17,2015



Mr. Durant addressed the amendments to the staffreport.

Mr. Worby asked if he could approach the podium. He stated his address as 200 Weems Way. He stated that he was
the one who proposed the amendment. He questioned ifCommissioner Torkelson needed to recuse himself due to
his position before the Coimcil. He declared that there were not enough Conunissioners to recuse Mr. Torkelson.
Mr. Worby requested that the meeting keep moving forward.

Commissioner Torkelson stated that he had talked to Mr. Noe and he did not need to recuse himself.

Mr. Durant went over the exhibits list (Attached.). He declared that he had amended the staff report and he listed
each correction.

Corrected Staff Report:

CITY OF SELAH PLANNING COMMISSION

STAFF REPORT

March 17, 2015

PROPOSAL: Wayne Worby has made a request to the Selah City Council to amend portions of SMC 10.12 and
10.28 to repeal certain provisions allowing duplexes in the One Family Residential (R-1) zoning district.

Under the requirements of SMC 10.40.020, amendments to text, standards or other provisions ofTitle 10 are
initiated by the action ofthe legislative body or the planning commission. The proponent presented his request to the
City Coimcil who indicated that it should be considered by the Planning Commission.

Action on Code amendments is by the City Council after a reconunendation from the Planning Commission or
Hearing Examiner (SMC 10.40.020(b)).

CURRENT CODE PROVISIONS; SMC 10.12.040 allows ten percent of the lots in a proposed land division of
ten or more lots to be designated for future two-family dwellings (or duplexes). The Ordinance requires the
reviewing authority, specifically the Hearing Examiner, to consider the lot locations and to carefully consider
adjacent properties to ensure harmonious conqiatibility. These provisions indicate that designated two-family
residential lots are not permitted outright, but that the reviewing body has the authority to deny them if requirements
are not met. The specific standards required for two-family residential lots by SMC 10.12.040 are (emphasis is
added):

1. They must be in a proposed land division of ten or more lots

2. Ten percent of the lots may be so designated.

3. The lots shall be clearly identified on the recorded subdivision providing public disclosure of

such approval.

4. The minimum lot size is 9,000 square feet or the minimum lot size based on slope as specified in

SMC 10.12.030 (the higher minimum lot sizes range from 10,000 square feet to five acres based

on steepness of slope).

5. The requirement for the Hearing Examiner to consider adjacent properties to ensure

harmonious compatibility.

SMC 10.28,Table 10.28A lists the land uses that are permitted by zoning district under the zoning ordinance and
assigns a class of use based on the level ofreview required. Class 1 being permitted. Class 2 is administrative and
Class 3 are conditional uses. Two family dwellings (duplex) is listed as a Class 1 use in the R-1 zone subject to
foomote '1', which corresponds to SMC 10.28.040(1)and specifies that duplexes are only permitted on lots that have
been designated per SMC 10.12.040 (i.e., approved lots in proposed land divisions). This provision repeats the
requirement ofcareful consideration by the Hearing Examiner ensuring harmonious compatibility. However, this

Planning Commission Minutes
March, 17,2015



Mr. Durant addressed the amendments to the staff report.

Mr. Worby asked if he could approach the podium. He stated his address as 200 Weems Way. He stated that he was
the one who proposed the amendment. He questioned if Commissioner Torkelson needed to recuse himself due to
his position before the Council. He declared that there were not enough Commissioners to recuse Mr. Torkelson.
Mr. Worby requested that the meeting keep moving forward.

3. Commissioner Torkelson stated that he had talked to Mr. Noe and he did not need to

recuse himself.

Mr. Durant went over the exhibits list (Attached.). He declared that he had amended the staff report and he listed
each correction.

Corrected StaffReport:

CITY OF SELAH PLANNING COMMISSION

STAFF REPORT

March 17,2015

PROPOSAL: Wayne Worby has made a request to the Selah City Council to amend portions of SMC 10.12 and
10.28to repeal certain provisions allowing duplexes in the One Family Residential (R-1) zoning district.

Under the requirements ofSMC 10.40.020, amendments to text, standards or other provisions ofTitle 10 are
initiated by the action ofthe legislative body or the planning commission. The proponent presented his request to the
City Coimcil who indicated that it should be considered by the Planning Commission.

Action on Code amendments is by the City Council after a recommendation ftom the Planning Commission or
Hearing Examiner (SMC 10.40.020(b)).

CURRENT CODE PROVISIONS; SMC 10.12.040 allows ten percent of the lots in a proposed land division of
ten or more lots to be designated for future two-family dwellings (or duplexes). The Ordinance requires the
reviewing authority, specifically the Hearing Examiner, to consider the lot locations and to carefully consider
adjacent properties to ensure hsirmonious conq)atibility. These provisions indicate that designated two-family
residential lots are not permitted outright, but that the reviewing body has the authority to deny them if requirements
are not met. The specific standards required for two-family residential lots by SMC 10.12.040 are (enqihasis is
added):

1. They must be in a proposed land division of ten or more lots

2. Ten percent of the lots may be so designated.

3. The lots shaii be clearly Identified on the recorded subdivision providing public disclosure of

such approval.

4. The minimum lot size is 9,000 square feet or the minimum lot size based on slope as specified in

SMC 10.12.030 (the higher minimum lot sizes range from 10,000 square feet to five acres based

on steepness of slope).

5. The requirement for the Hearing Examiner to consider adjacent properties to ensure

harmonious compatibility.

SMC 10.28, Table 10.28A lists the land uses that are permitted by zoning district under the zoning ordinance and
assigns a class ofuse based on the level ofreview required. Class 1 being permitted. Class 2 is administrative and
Class 3 are conditional uses. Two family dwellings (duplex) is listed as a Class 1 use in the R-1 zone subject to
foomote i', which corresponds to SMC 10.28.040(1)and specifies that duplexes are only permitted on lots that have
been designated per SMC 10.12.040 (i.e., approved lots in proposed land divisions). This provision repeats the
requirement ofcareful consideration by the Hearing Examiner ensuring harmonious compatibility. However, this

2

Planning Commission Minutes
March, 17, 2015



presumably should havealready beendone, sincethe lotswould have already beendesignated andtheHearing
Examinerdoes not have jurisdiction over Class 1 uses.

The two-family residential lotsallowed by SMC 10.12.040 wouldalsobe subjectto the requirements for land
divisions ofSMC 10.50. One notable standard is SMC 10.50.041(e)(6)(C),which requires a minimum lot size
increased by ten percenton comer lots.This wouldpresumably be in additionto the largerminimumlot size
required for two-family residential lotsand wouldincrease it to 9,900square feetor morewhere the largerlot sizes
required for slopes apply.

REQUEST SPECIFICS; The specific requests for Code Amendment made by the proponent are the repeal of
SMC 10.12.040, deletionofthe provisionofSMC 10.28.040 thatpermitduplexes in the R-1 zone and any other
Codeprovisionthat wouldallow duplexes in the R-1 zone. The requestmakesa numberofarguments basedon the
Growth ManagementAct, intent of the zoning ordinanceand comprehensive plan policies. It also raises issues
concerningthe amount of rental housing in the community.

BACKGROUND & HISTORY; The provisions ofSMC 10.12.040 and 10.28 that are proposed for amendment
were adopted in 2004 under Ordinance 1634.They were amended to their current form on January 13,2015 by
Ordinance 1958, the purpose of which was to make a connection between the two-family lot provision of SMC
10.12.040 and Table 5-A and the regulatory notes of SMC 10.28.040.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW; A Determination ofNonsigniflcance (DNS) (971.42.14-07) was issued on March
11,2015. It was issued without a comment period under WAC 197-1l-340(2)(a) because there are no agencies with
jurisdiction.

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN & ZONING ORDINANCE: The purpose ofthe One-Family Residential (R-1) zone
is to provide for single-family residentialdevelopmentwhere urban governmentalservices are currentlyavailableor
will be extended to facilitate development. Specific intent statements include providing for an orderly, phased
transition from vacant or partially developed to single-family residential development, facilitate coordinated and
collaborative public infrastructiureinvestment, require individual lot connection to mimicipal water and sewer
systems, require development to meet the City's minimum urban development standards, and ensure that R-1 land
uses and land division will facilitate urban development and the extension of utilities (SMC 10.12.010).

The R-1 zoning district corresponds to the Low Density Residential designation from the Comprehensive Plan
which provides for densities ofup to 5 dwelling units per gross acre. Clustering ofdwelling units within the
permitteddensity range is encouraged.The comprehensiveplan also includesthe followingstatement with regard to
the LDR designation:

"The predominate use will be low density residential; however, it is the intent and desire of the
City ofSelah that its low density neighborhoods develop with a mix ofhousing types including
single-family, duplexes, townhouses and multi-family dwellings. The mix ofhousing types will
be limited by the maximum permissible density and zoning standards will regulate development
to assure compatibility" (City ofSelah Urban Growth Area Comprehensive Plan, p. 34).

Comprehensive Plan Policies relevant to this issue, and including the policies in the request made for this
amendment are as follows:

Objective LUGM 3: Encourage economic growth while maintaining quality development and controlling
the cost ofpublic improvements in Selah's UGA.

Policy LUGM 3.2: Direct development to areas where infrastructure (water, sewer, and streets) is either
present, can easily be extended, or is planned to be extended.

Goal: Encourage the availability ofaffordable housing to all economic segments of the population,
promote a variety ofresidential densities and housing types, and encourage preservation of existing housing stock.

Objective HSG 1: Maintain and upgrade the character of existing residential neighborhoods.

3

Planning Commission Minutes
March, 17,2015



Policy HSG 1.1: Discouragerezoningwhichwouldallowincremental conversionofexistingsingle-family
dwellings to duplexes or multi-family dwellings.

Policy HSG 1.2: Encouragenew single-familydevelopment throughoutexisting single-family
neighborhoods as redevelopment and infill construction at appropriate densities.

Objective HSG 2: Encourage new residential development to approximate existingresidential densities
and housing mix levels.

Policy HSG 2.1: Encouragethe combinednet density of all residentialdevelopment to remain at present
levels. Exceptionsto this policy shouldbe permitted where the developercan demonstrate that the quality of the
project design, constructionand amenitieswarrants a different housing density.

Policy HSG 2.2: Ensure codes and ordinancespromote and allow for a compatible mix of housing types in
residential areas.

Objective HSG 3: Minimize the negative impacts of medium and high-density residential projects on
adjacent low-density residential areas, but encourage mixed use/density projects.

Objective HSG 4: Encourage new residential construction to be compatible with existing residential
development.

Policy HSG 4.1: Encourage developers to use private covenants and deed restrictions which specify
architectural, maintenance and landscaping standards within their development.

ISSUES:

Definitions: The terms Multifamily Dwelling and Two-Family Dwelling (or Duplex) are defined by the
Zoning Ordinance (Appendix A to Giapters 10.02 through 10.48). Although not specifically defined in the
Comprehensive Plan, the terms are used in a way that clearly distinguishesthem, both in the text and in the tables,
primarily in the Land Use Element. It is clear that with respect to the plan policies and zoning ordinance
requirements it is not intended that duplexes be included in the term multi-family dwellings.

Density: The Comprehensive Plan requires density to be limited to that allowed in the Low Density
Residentialplan designation. This is also referenced in the intent statement that encouragesa mix of housing types.
Table 1 evaluates the consistency of the existing code requirements to this density standard. Based on 10% ofthe
lots being designated duplex lots with the minimum allowed lot size of9,000 square feet and the remainder of the
lots at the 8,000 square foot minimum lot size. Table 1 shows that the maximum level ofdevelopment allowed under
the existing code standards is consistently at a gross residential density of4.7 dwelling units per acre. This is less
than the maximum density of five units per acre.

Table 1: Maximum Gross Density of Subdivision Under SMC 10.12.040

Acreage Net Number of Number of Total Gross

Acreage Duplex Lots SFR Lots Dwelling Density
(9,000 sf) (8,000 si) Units (dwelling

units per
acre)

10 8 4 39 47 4.7

20 16 8 78 94 4.7

25 20 10 97 117 4.7

30 24 12 116 140 4.7

50 40 21 194 236 4.7

Notes:

Planning Conunission Minutes
March, 17,2015



1. Net acreage assumes 20%of land area dedicated to right-of-way, or 80% avaiiable for

deveiopment

2. Duplex lots: 10% of total lots in the subdivision with no rounding.

3. Number of SFR Lots is the net acreage divided by 8,000 after taking out the 9,000 sf duplex lots

4. Gross Density: Total dwelling units divided by Acreage

Compatibility; An evaluation of compatibility beginswithexisting zoning ordinance standards. The 9,000
squarefoot minimumlot size is fairlyhigh. On comer lots, that may havemore visibility, the minimumlot size goes
up to almost 10,000squarefeet. Otherjurisdictionsin the area considered by staff, that allowduplexes in the R-1 or
equivalent zone, had minimumlot sizesbetween7,200and 8,000square feet. In R-2 zones,minimumlot sizes can
go downto 7,000 square feet. Setbackrequirements from the SelahCodeshouldbe sufficientto provideroomfor
off-streetparkingand the parkingstandardof4 off-streetspaces(2 per unit) is consistentwith typicalparking
requirements. The lot coverage standardfor the R-1 zone is substantially less than that in the R-2 zone, whichalong
with the larger minimum lot size, should prevent over-buildingthe lot.

It is harder to evaluate architectural features such as building materials through plat approval. However,
developerscould be encouragedto present covenants that demonstrateminimum standards and consistencywith
single-family constraction.

Analysis of Consistency with the Comprehensive Plan: The standards of SMC 10.12.040 and 10.28 as they
currentlyexist are consistent with the intent statement from the ComprehensivePlan for the Low Density
Residential land use designationto develop low density neighborhoods with a mix of housing types that include
duplexes.The higher standards for two-familyresidential lots and the authority of the reviewing official to approve
or deny based on con^atibility is consistentwith the policy of zoningstandards to regulate development.

Obiective LUGM 3 and Policv LUGM 3.2: While not inconsistent with the policy ofdirecting development to
areas where water, sewer and streets are present or can be extended, these standards don't really promote them and
are not necessary for those policies to be met.

Obiective HSG 1: The standards seem to be consistent with the goal ofencouraging the availability of
affordable housing and they do promote a variety ofresidential densities and housing types. The requirement and
authoritygiven to reviewing official to determine that the two-family lots are compatible with the neighborhood
along with the higher standards for duplexes in the R-1 zone is supported by ObjectiveHSG 1 to maintainand
preserve the character ofexisting neighborhoods.

Policies HSG 1.1 and 1.2: There is no rezoning involved nor do the standards allow the conversion ofexisting
single-family dwellings or redevelopment ofexisting single-family development. They are specifically limited to
new lots. While designating two-family residential lots is not new single-family development, it doesn't discourage
it. Ninety percent ofthe lots in a new plat under these provisions must be for single-family dwellings.

Obiective HSG 2 and Policv HSG 2.1: Comparing the net residential density of the 90% ofsingle-family lots in
a given subdivisionwith the net density of the entire subdivision including the maximum number of allowabletwo-
family lots, using the same assunqitions in Table 1 above for determining gross density, it is determined that the net
density of the single family lots would be 5.4 units per acre. Including the two-family lots, it is 5.9 units per acre. It
would seem that this approximates the density that would be allowed in a new subdivision without the two-family
lots. With regard to existing neighborhoods outside ofthe new plat, it may or it may not approximate the existing
densities and housing levels dependingon the neighborhoodsbeing considered.

Policv HSG 2.2: The code standards as they exist are consistent with this policy in that they allow for a mix of
housing types in residential areas. Assuming that the higher standards and the authority of the reviewing official to
evaluate compatibility are effective, they would be consistent with the requirement that the mix ofhousing types be
compatible.

Planning Commission Minutes
March, 17, 2015



Objective HSG 3: The code standards are consistent with encouraging mixed use/density projects. Otherwise,
this objective does not apply because as shown above, they do not permit mediumor high-density residential
projects, as those terms are defined by the ComprehensivePlan.

Objective HSG 4 and Policy HSG 4.1: Consistency with this objective and policy depends on the effectiveness
of evaluating the compatibility ofthe two-family residential lotswithexisting residential development. The factthat
theyrequire thatevaluation, and givethe reviewing officialthe authority to denythe application basedon
compatibilityshould be considered to promote consistencywith these policies.The higher standards being imposed
on two-familyresidential lots as described above are also consistent. Encouragingdevelopers to use private
covenants and deed restriction with speciEc architectural, maintenance and landscaping standards and to include
them in the evaluation would also be consistent.

STAFF ANALYSIS; Based on this evaluation, the existing code requirements are generally consistent with the
comprehensive plan, especially based on the intent statement for the Low Density Residential plan designation that
encourages a mix ofhousing types and also based on the determination that when combined with other existing
zoning and subdivisionstandards, these standard don't result in the maximumallowable density being exceeded. If
there is any uncertainty it is in how effective the standards are in ensuring the compatibilityof two-family lots with
existing residential neighborhoods.

It is also important to point out that although duplexes are shown to be a Class 1 (permitted) use in the R-1 zone,
they are actually quite restricted. They are only allowed in proposed land divisions that must meet minimums in
terms of size and number ofunits. The preliminary plat review process is the equivalent ofa Class 3 review in terms
of notice, review process and the discretion given to approve or deny. Other jiuisdictions that allow duplexes in R-1
zones or their equivalent typically allow them on any lot, whether new or existing and often without specified
limitation of the number oflots.

RECOMMENDATION; Leave the current code provisions as they are without change. The fact that they were just
recently adopted with the new requirement for compatibilityanalysis is also a factor in this recommendation. If the
PlanningCommissionor City Council feel that changes are appropriate, they should be to provide more specificity
in how compatibility is to be reviewed and/or including die review criteria from the Zoning Ordinance for Class 2 or
3 land uses.

Chairman Quinnell asked if there were any questions.

Commissioner Miller stated that he did not understand why duplexes needed to be eliminated when there were
checks and balances regulating them. He stated that there were places that duplexes seemed to fit nicely.

Chairman Quinnell asked ifa person outside of the City ofSelah could make changes to the City of Selah Code.

Mr. Durant declared that the ordinance stated that the Planning Commission or the City Council must initiate the
amendment process and his understanding was that the City Council wanted it to go to the Planning Commission.

Commissioner Torkelson stated that Mr. Worby went to the City Council and asked ifhe could make the proposal.

Mr. Worby agreed.

Discussion ensued about the process that took place.

Commissioner Miller asked if there was a difference between a duplex and a mother-in-law apartment.

A discussion ensued and the final concussion was that the connection code needed to be looked at to answer that

question.

Chairman Quinnell opened the floor for the discussion ofthe text amendment.

Planning Commission Minutes
March, 17,2015



Mr. Worby approached thepodiumand statedhis address as 200Weems Way. He handed out a typedstatement
which was marked Exhibit 6. (Attached)Mr. Worbyproceeded to outline why R-2 units should not be in R-1
developments. He referenced Ae Growth Management act and asked if therewasa directive demanding R-2 housing
in R-1 Zoning.

Mr. Durant stated that to his knowledge there was no directive.

Discussion continued to a variety ofissues from the growth management act to Cluster housing to Covenants and
owner occupieddwellings, rentals and affordable housing.

Mr. Worbycontinuedto refer to Exhibit6 (Page one, red writing).Mr. Worbyaskedwhat a duplexwasconsidered,
one unit or two. He gave an example of two acres with ten lots and one ofthose lots being a duplex and creating 11
addresses. Mr. Worby wanted a conversationstarted to discuss the wordingof the text amendment.

Commissioner Miller stated that it all comes back to units per acre.

Mr. Worby asked how many square feet.

Commissioner Miller and Mr. Durant stated that a duplex was two units.

Conunissioner Torkelson stated that it was counted as one unit with the connection code.

Mr. Worbyreplied that a duplexis two livingunits. He stated that a homeowneroccupiedunits are better takencare
of than renter occupied homes.

Mr. Miller asked ifcovenants could be used to resolve that issue.

Mr. Worbyproceeded to tell a story about Alaska and covenantedowner occupieddevelopmentscompared to non-
owner occupieddevelopments.Mr. Worby stated that he wanted to know if there was any other place that allowed
duplexes in the R-1 zone

Mr. Durant replied that Yakima allows duplexes in r-1 zones.

Mr. Worbywanted to know what the process was for that to happen.What was the criterion for a duplex in and R-1
zone?

Mr. Durant stated that it would go thm the class 2 review processes to get approval.

Mr. Worby wanted to know it there was a city that would allow a single duplex to build in and R-1with out rezoning
the land.

Mr. Durant stated that City ofYakima allowed that

Mr. Worbyasked what it took for Yakima to refuse the applicant.

Mr. Torkelson stated that there are minimal standards that are embedded in the Yakima's system.

Mr. Worbyproceeded to state that he had requested languagebe provided that could be discussed.

Mr. Durant stated that he called Mr. Worby to inform him the duplexes are not a given for a development. He
continuedto state that the provision of harmoniouscompatibility, gave the hearing examiner leeway to deny the
request.

Mr. Worby and Mr. Durant discuss Harmoniums Compatibility. Mr. Worby proceeded to argue his point. He also
stated that he had not seen an occasion where a duplex would be appropriate. He then asked Commissioner
Torkelson where he had placed the duplexes in his Development.

7

Planning Commission Minutes
March, 17,2015



Commissioner Torkelson(Eagle Ridge) answered that the majorityof the Duplexes whereon the mainarterial
because that is where they work best. It is what made sense with the surrounding property.

Mr.Worby proceeded to question Commissioner Torkelson about theEagle Ridge Development.

Commissioner Torkelson stated that he had two things to address - He stated that Lisa Smith added that comment to
the text. It gave the HearingExaminera little wiggleroom, then the comment that Dennismade about a developer
fouling his own nest.The point is that the Developerwouldn't. Eachdevelopment has differentcircumstances and
there are manycircumstances where a duplexcouldhelp the community. Examples: Elderlyparents, or
handicapped childwhoneedsa littlehelpbut also needs to feel independent. Commissioner Torkelson stated that
not all situationsare negative and there was a time and place for everything.

Mr. Worbyresponded with the statementthat he felt that too manytimesthe communityinterestand or benefitwas
shuffled back down the line because we have not defined what is appropriate. A developer cannot stay in business
without making a profit.

CommissionerMiller stated sparsely placed duplexescould be good for the community.He stated that he had 4
persons between the ages of83-90 ^at he would love to have living next tohim but he isunable to arrange itatthis
time.

Mr. Miller suggested that a covenant for owner occupied wouldbe reasonable.

Mr. Worbystated that a covenant would be measurableand make sense, but to just 10% doesn't

CommissionerMiller replied that no contractor would build a new developmentand build second class duplexes.
The duplexes would be the same style, level and quality of the other homes with covenants in place

Mr. Worby replied that he would have thought so imtil six monthsago when a planned development was propose
near his home.

Commissioner Torkelson asked what would have happened if the developer had presented his ideas with clear detail
and given you a clear picture ofhow the development would look.

Mr. Worby started describing a development that was proposed behind his property.

Chairman Quiimell stated that he had seen a development that had duplexes on one side and single family homes on
the other. It was located at88"" andTieton. It was called Cotton Wood Grove. It was a perfect example ofhow
common walls, zero lot lines, single family, and duplexes can work together. If the garages had not been connected
no one would know they were duplexes. He stated that that neighborhood sold out fast and the property values had
increased

Mr. Worby asked Chairman Quinnell what made that development happen.

Chairman Quinnell stated that he had not participated in that development.

Mr. Worby replied that a directive that controls the quality of the outcome is what he wanted, not a 10%designation
for duplexes.

Chairman Quinnell responded that had the developer provided all the information the first time the outcome may
have been different. He stated that Cotton Wood Grove was a good example ofhow they marriage up.

Mr. Worby presented Exhibit 7 and read through it for the Commissioners. (Attached)

Discussionensued between Mr. Worby and CommissionerTorkelson about the correlationofrentals and poverty,
impact funds for schools and homeownership.

Planning Commission Minutes
March, 17, 2015



Mr. Worby implied the community would ratherhavesinglefamily homes andnot rentalproperty. He stated that the
communityneeded long term homeownersand not short term renters.

Commissioner Torkelson and Commissioner Miller stated that the community needed both Renter and homeowners.

Discussion ensued

Commissioner Miller declared that he saw no reason to eliminate this option unless different language was
developed to address the issue.

CommissionerTorkelson asked wherea mimicipality draws the line at telling people what they can and can't do
with their land.

Mr. Worbystatedthat it is done all the time throughbuildingcodes,municipal code and standards.

Discussion ensued

Mr. Miller commended Mr. Worby's spirit.

Mr. Durant assigned numbers to the exhibits.

ChairmanQuinnell thanked Mr. Worby for coming. He asked if anyone else wanted to speak.

Mr. Durant wanted to clear up some mistakes. Minimal lot size placed constraintson the number of lots.The other
point is that 10 lots or more is a substantialpiece of land. Then 10%can be designated duplexes and a duplex is
countedas two units. Refer to staffreport table one for density. Mr. Durant also clarified that not all duplexes are
rentals and vice versa. Mr. Durant reiterated the duplexes are restricted in that they only apply to new developments
and they have to be designated from the beginning ofthe PlaimedDevelopment. Whereas odter countiesallow
duplexesto be place in old and new properties.He stated that comparedto other districts it is not a free ride.

Chairman Quinnell asked if there were any more comments.

Commissioner Torkelson replied that they should vote tonight and move this forward.

Chairman Quinnell stated that he saw nothing wrong with duplexes when developed correctly.

Commissioner Miller stated that Mr. Worby was worried about the consistency ofthe language.

Chairman Quinnell asked if that language was already there.

Commissioner Torkelson stated that it was contradictory because in a nice neighborhood why billed a cheap duplex.

Commissioner Miller replied that there are a lot of what ifs here and anything can happen.

Mr. Worby requested that the commissioners delay their vote and go to the code to find a reason to deny a
development.

Discussion ensued on the legality, restrictions, language and standards.

Chairman Quinnell proposed that the commission vote on it tonight and send it to council

Commissioner Torkelson moved to accept the StaffRecommendation.

Planning Commission Minutes
March, 17, 2015



CITY OF SELAH PLANNING COMMISSION

FINDINGS AND DECISION

THIS MATTER, having come on for public hearing before the City of Selah Planning Commission on March 17,
2015. The Commission is considering zoning ordinance text amendments to Selah Mimicipal Code Title 10 (zoning
ordinance) Chapter 10.12.040, Chapter 10.28 A-5 and Chapter 10.28.040 Regulatory Note (1).

The Membersof the Commission present were Quinnell,Miller and Torkelson.

Legal notification pursuant toSelah Municipal Code was given onthe 6"* ofMarch 2015. All persons present were
given the opportimity to speak for or against the proposed text amendments.

Zoning Ordinance Text Amendments

1. The proposed zoning ordinance text amendments will not further the goals and their imderlying policies of
the 2005 City ofSelah Urban Growth Area Conq)rehensive Plan to avoid compatible land uses, preserve
natural resoiuces and protect against floodingand drainageproblems.The goals and underlyingpolicies to
promote orderly growth, avoid incompatibleland uses and maintain and improve air and water quality were
determined to be not applicable.

2. The Planning commission does not find changes in circumstances which justify the proposed zoning
ordinance text amendments.

3. The Planning Commission does not find that there is a demonstrated and/or recognized need to amend
Chapter 10.12.040, Chapter 10.28,Table 5-A and Chapter 10.28.040 Regulatory Notes.

4. The public testimony that was offered was in favor of the proposed text amendments.

5. The Planning Commission finds that environmental review has been conqileted on the proposal and further
finds that such environmental review was adequate.

6. The Planning Commission determines the findings of the staff report to be controlling in its deliberations
on the proposed zoning ordinance text amendments.

DECISION

The Planning Commission, based upon the aforementioned findings and controlling factors, finds that the proposed
zoning ordinance text amendments are not in furtherance of the public health, safety and general welfare of the
peoples; therefore the proposed zoning ordinance text amendments should be DENIED and additional amendatory
language not added to Chapter 10.12.040.

Motion to DENY by: Torkelson Seconded by: Miller

Vote: 3-0 in favor of the motion

Reports/Announcements

1. Chairman- None

10

Planning Commission Minutes
March, 17,2015



I,

2. Commissioners- None

3. Staff-None

Adjournment

CommissionerTorkelson motioned to adjourn the meeting, Commissioner Miller seconded the motion. Chairman
Quinnelt adjourned the meeting at 7:33 pm with a voice vote of 3-0.

Planning Commission Minutes
March, 17, 2015

11


